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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forwaaabking” statements within the meaning of Section 27A ofSbeurities Act of 193
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange AcB8#1including, without limitation, statements retdjag future financial results and
performance, potential sales revenue, potentidl closures, High Value Low Price (“HVLP”) conversi) our strategic review process, legal
contingencies and tax benefits and contingencigsrd declarations and payments of dividends, hadxkistence of adverse litigation and o
risks, uncertainties and factors set forth undamltA., entitled “Risk Factors”, of this Annual Repon Form 10-K and in our other reports
and documents filed with the Securities and Exckabgmmission (“SEC”). You can identify these fordidmwoking statements by the use of

words such as “outlook”, “believes”, “expects”, teatial”, “continues”, “may”, “will", “should”, “seeks”, “approximately”, “predicts”,
“intends”, “plans”, “estimates”, “anticipates”, ‘figet”, “could” or the negative version of these d®or other comparable words. These
statements are subject to various risks and unctes many of which are outside our control, utthg, among others, the level of market
demand for our services, economic conditions affgabur business, the success of our HVLP stratidmgygeographic concentration of our
clubs, competitive pressure, the ability to achimdctions in operating costs and to continuategrate acquisitions, outsourcing of certain
aspects of our business, environmental mattergppbcation of Federal and state tax laws andlegigus, any security and privacy breaches
involving customer data, the levels and terms ef@ompany’s indebtedness, and other specific fachiscussed herein and in other SEC
filings by us. We believe that all forward-lookistatements are based on reasonable assumptiongwealtien however, we caution that it is
impossible to predict actual results or outcomethereffects of risks, uncertainties or other fextun anticipated results or outcomes and that,
accordingly, one should not place undue reliancthese statements. Forward-looking statements spaglas of the date when made, and we
undertake no obligation to update these stateniefitght of subsequent events or developments. @atesults may differ materially from
anticipated results or outcomes discussed in anyaial-looking statement.

PART |

Item 1. Business
In this Annual Report, unless otherwise statedherdontext otherwise indicates, references to “T&parts”, “TSI”, “the Company”,

“we”, “our” and similar references refer to Town@is International Holdings, Inc. and its subsiidisy references to “TSI Holdings” refers to
Town Sports International Holdings, Inc., and referes to “TSI, LLC” refer to Town Sports Internai@d, LLC, our wholly-owned operating

subsidiary.

General

Based on the number of clubs, we are one of thdirigaowners and operators of fitness clubs in thetidast and Mid-Atlantic regions of
the United States (“U.S.”) and one of the largéseEs club owners and operators in the U.S. A3eafember 31, 2014, the Company, through
its subsidiaries, operated 158 fitness clubs ("€ubnder our four key regional brand names; “NeavkySports Clubs” (NYSC), “Boston
Sports Clubs” (BSC), “Philadelphia Sports ClubsS®) and “Washington Sports Clubs” (WSC). As of Deber 31, 2014, these clubs
collectively served approximately 484,000 memb¥fe.owned and operated a total of 107 clubs undetNlew York Sports Clubs” brand
name within a 120-mile radius of New York City &@cember 31, 2014, including 37 locations in Maitdn where we are the largest fitness
club owner and operator. We owned and operatedu®3 i the Boston region under our “Boston Sp@itss” brand name, 13 clubs (two of
which are partly-owned) in the Washington, D.Cioegunder our “Washington Sports Clubs” brand name five clubs in the Philadelphia
region under our “Philadelphia Sports Clubs” braathe as of December 31, 2014. In addition, we ovametoperated three clubs in
Switzerland as of December 31, 2014. We employliloe brand names for our clubs to create an inaagkeatmosphere consistent with the
local community and to foster recognition as a loedwork of quality fitness clubs rather than éiaraal chain.

We develop clusters of clubs to serve densely miedimajor metropolitan regions and we service paghulations by clustering clubs
near the highest concentrations of our target custs’ areas of both employment and residence. Dbs@re located for maximum
convenience to our members in urban or suburbasactose to transportation hubs or office or femters. Our members include a wide age
demographic covering the student market to theactiature market. For many years, our target mavkstfocused on the population that has
annual income levels of between $50,000 and $180@&0the "mid-value" segment of the market. In£20&e began to expand our target
market to include members that prefer a lower gomnbership, and have introduced a new pricingeggyato most of our clubs called High
Value Low Price ("HVLP"). Monthly dues at theseluduare offered at a reduced price and advertigisgis increased. The HVLP strategy
offers the same current level of service and an@nitut at a lower price point giving us an oppoitiuto recapture market share and compete
against low cost gyms that have opened in our nisrkée will offer only the Passport Membership gpr@ximately 25 of our clubs. We
believe our offerings are more compelling than otbes cost operators because we include excitimgigexercise classes, top of the line
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equipment, pools and courts with price of membershihen available. We believe that our strategglw$tering clubs provides significant
benefits to our members and allows us to achieatesgfic operating advantages. In each of our mariet have developed clusters by initially
opening or acquiring clubs located in the more @ ntrban markets of the region and then branchbirgrom these urban centers to suburbs
and neighboring communities.

Traditionally, we have offered three principal tgpe#f memberships in our clubs, “Passport,” whidersfaccess to all clubs at all times,
“Core,” which offers access to a single home clullligimes, and “Restricted” memberships, which i&vorably priced, restricted month-to-
month membership offering access to a single hdaoteduring all operating hours except certain pleailtrs Monday through Thursday,
otherwise a usage fee applies. We are in the psaxfaatroducing the HVLP strategy to most of olubs, where certain membership types
currently being offered will be discontinued andheerted to new membership types, and our new offsrwill be at a discounted price
principally under month-to-month membership plaismembership types are described in further détahe Sales discussion that follows.

Over our 41-year history since 1973, we have deexland refined our club formats, which allowsausdst-effectively construct and
efficiently operate our fitness clubs in the diffet real estate environments in which we operate fithess-only clubs average approximately
21,000 square feet, while our multi-recreationabslaverage approximately 37,000 square feet. Gorgate average size of our clubs is
approximately 26,000 square feet. Our clubs typidave an open fitness area to accommodate casiiolar and strengtiaining equipmen
as well as special purpose rooms for group fitetssses and other exercise programs. We seek\vapra broad array of highuality exercisi
programs and equipment that are popular and effigqtromoting a quality exercise experience forrmembers. When developing clubs, we
carefully examine the potential membership basetlaadikely demand for supplemental offerings sastswimming, basketball, children’s
programs, tennis or squash and, provided suitallleasstate is available, we will add one or morthee offerings to our fitness-only format.
For example, a multi-recreational club in a fanmigrket may include Sports Clubs for Kids prograwisich can include swim lessons and
sports camps for children.

As the fitness industry continues to see a riggojpularity of private studio offerings, we have digeir extensive industry experience to
offer our own private studio brand, BFX Studio 2014, we introduced our first BFX Studio with atsgening in July and a grand opening in
September. We currently plan to open three additiBfrX Studio units in 2015. This three-dimensiordry studio brand takes advantage of
the rise in consumer demand for studio experierBEX. Studio includes three unique offerings: RidgpRblic, which is indoor cycling, Prive
Sessions for personal training and Master Clasa f@riety of specialty group exercise classes. Bxtlio is staffed with high caliber
instructors in each of the three core offerings tedstudios are designed to appeal to all agesihasperience levels of metropolitan, active
healthy lifestylers. This studio concept requirppraximately 9,000 to 12,000 square feet of spa&cesfudio which compares to the
approximately 26,000 square feet aggregate avaiagef our Clubs.

In February 2015, our Board of Directors annourtbedl it is evaluating strategic alternatives, idighg a possible sale of the Company,
and has retained Deutsche Bank Securities, Irasgist it in such process. The Company also aneautiie promotion of Daniel Gallagher to
Chief Executive Officer and President from the posiof President and Chief Operating Officer alnel transition of Robert Giardina from
Chief Executive Officer to the position of Exec@i€hairman.

Reportable Segments

During the fourth quarter of 2014, we began marggimd reporting operating results through two regide segments: Clubs and BFX
Studio. The Clubs segment comprised clubs undeN¥®C, BSC, PSC and WSC brand names, and the wlalmsvn in Switzerland. BFX
Studio is our private studio brand that was intetlin 2014 and is reported as a separate repeagment as it does not meet the
aggregation criteria to be aggregated with ouefisiclubs. Previously, we had managed and repopiemting results through one reportable
segment. We reflect these segments for all theriisi periods presented. For certain financiabinfation relating to our segments, see Note
19 to our consolidated financial statements.

Industry Overview

According to the most recent information releasgdhe International Health, Racquet and Sportsélsociation (“IHRSA”), total U.S.
fitness club industry revenues increased at a comgannual growth rate of 3.5% from $19.5 billior2i009 to $22.4 billion in 2013, with a
2.8% increase from 2012 to 2013. According to IHRB&rticipation in health clubs has been growirggily with total U.S. fitness club
memberships increasing at a compound annual gnatehof 4.0% from 45.3 million in 2009 to an ath#é high of 52.9 million in 2013, with a
5.4% increase from 2012 to 2013. Currently, appnaxely 18% of the total U.S. population belonga teealth club, leaving room for possible
substantial growth in the industry and indicatingjgnificant opportunity to convert these non-merstie members. In 2013, health club
members visited clubs at an all time high of 108sdan average, up 4% from 99 days in 2012. Accgrtirnthe IHRSA, the fitness industry is
witnessing a shift in the exercise and prefereridealth club members. The club landscape now estéeyond the traditional, full-service
fitness centers
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as studio concepts including bootcamp, high intgnsterval training, group cycling, barre, Pilatgega, boxing, and sports-specific training,
also shape the market in a more pronounced way.

According to the IHRSA, demographic trends haveéeéldrive the growth experienced by the fithessistiy over the past decade. The
average age of a health club member in 2013 wa®4% old and more than one-fourth of health cleinitmers were between the ages of 18
and 34 years old. The greatest membership growttheipast few years has been in the under-18 agggwhich has grown 67.4% from 2009
to 2013 and in the over-55 age group, where merhigegsew 20.4% from 2009 to 2013. These two agegsanade up approximately 39% of
total U.S. health club members in 2013. The inguiséis benefited from the “millennials”, and agifmby boomer” and “Eisenhower”
generations as they place greater emphasis onhiialth, including a focus on fitness.

According to the Centers for Disease Control arel/@ntion, during the past 20 years, there has delramatic increase in obesity in
the U.S. and rates remain high. State prevalenobesity continues to remain high across the cgunt2013, with no state with a prevalence
of obesity less than 20.0%. In 2013, 43 statesahaitvalence of 25% or more and 20 of these shaigs prevalence of 30% or more. As
healthcare costs continue to rise in the U.S., soitlee focus on combating obesity and other dsg&sbeing directed at prevention. Both
government and medical research has shown thatiszemd other physical activity plays a critiaakrin preventing obesity and other health
conditions, thereby reducing healthcare costsréating obesity related sicknesses.

As the focus on exercise and overall healthy Kfiestcontinue to impact the health club industrg,lvelieve that we are well
positioned to benefit from these dynamics as elamerator with recognized brand names, leadingmagmarket shares and an established
operating history.

Competitive Strengths
We believe the following competitive strengths imstrumental to our success:

Strong market position with leading bran@ssed on number of clubs, we are one of the leadlinters and operators of fitness clubs in
the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic regions of the Udittates and one of the largest fithess club owarelsoperators in the United States. We ar
the largest fitness club owner and operator inNew York and Boston regions. We are also the tlairgest in our Washington region and
second largest in our Philadelphia region. Oumgin@al estate presence in the metropolitan regohances convenience to our members. W
attribute our positions in these markets in pathestrength of our localized owner and operatant names, which foster recognition as a
local network of quality fitness clubs.

Regional clustering strategy provides significaahbfits to members and corporationBy operating a network of clubs in a concentr
geographic area, the value of our membershipsharered by our ability to offer members access yoddmour clubs, which provides the
convenience of having fitness clubs near a membeorkplace and home. This is also a benefit tocogporate members, as many corpora
have employees that will take advantage of muliiglm locations. Approximately 237,000 , or 65% paf members currently have a Passpol
Membership, including our corporate and group Ragdpemberships, and because these membershipsofianced privileges and greater
convenience, they typically generate higher monthigs than our single club memberships in eacteotisp region. Regional clustering also
allows us to provide special facilities to all afranembers within a local area, such as swimmirgjspand squash, tennis and basketball cc
without offering them at every location. In the yeaded December 31, 2014, 43% of all club usagebyanembers visiting clubs other than
their home clubs.

Regional clustering strategy designed to enhaneemees and achieve economies of scalée believe our regional clustering strategy
allows us to enhance revenue and earnings growgrdwiding high-quality, conveniently located fisgefacilities on a cost-effective basis. We
believe that potential new entrants would needstaldish or acquire a large number of clubs in &ketao compete effectively with us. Our
clustering strategy also enables us to achieveoenims of scale with regard to sales, marketingclpasing, general operations and corporate
administrative expenses and reduces our capitadapg needs. Regional clustering also provideogportunity for members who relocate
within a region to remain members of our clubssthigding in member retention.

Expertise in site selection and development procéde believe that our expertise in site selectioth d@evelopment provides an
advantage over our competitors given the complakastate markets in the metropolitan areas in lwhie operate and the relative scarcity of
suitable sites. Before opening or acquiring a nkeds,ave undertake a rigorous process involving dgmraphic and competitive analysis,
financial modeling, site selection and negotiatdtease and acquisition terms to ensure that enpiat location meets our criteria for a model
club. We believe our flexible club formats are wstlited to the challenging real estate environmientsir markets.
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Expertise of senior managemete believe that our senior management’s industpegise, particularly that of our Chief Executive
Officer, Daniel Gallagher, and our former Chief Extive Officer and now Executive Chairman, Robegr@ina, provides us with a
competitive strength. Mr. Gallagher joined the Campin February of 1999 as Vice President of Fieaamud served as the Company’s Chief
Financial Officer from 2008 to 2013. Mr. Gallaghesis promoted to President and Chief Operating &ffic January 2014 and Chief
Executive Officer and President in February 20XtrRo joining the Company, Mr. Gallaghsréxperience included management roles at
public accounting firms including Coopers & Lybraaad PricewaterhouseCoopers. Mr. Giardina has sixieknowledge of the fithess
industry and over 30 years of experience with tben@any. Mr. Giardina originally joined the Companyl981 and served as President and
Chief Operating Officer from 1992 to 2001, and d&seCExecutive Officer from 2002 through 2007. Nhiardina was appointed President and
Chief Executive Officer from 2010 to 2013, and dsef Executive Officer through February 2015. Miafélina now serves as Executive
Chairman. We believe that Mr. Gallagher and Mr.r@irza, as well as the other members of our seniecdtive team are highly talented and
innovative executives who have extensive retail mnidti-unit experience, strong strategic skills and lesltiprcapabilities to lead the Comp:
and execute its strategies.

Business Strategy

In the long-term, we seek to maximize our net mangbewth, revenues, earnings and cash flows usiadallowing strategies:

High Value Low Price strategin 2014, we began to expand our target marketdindte members that prefer a lower cost membership,
and have introduced a new pricing strategy to mabeur clubs called HVLP. Monthly dues at theséslare offered at a reduced price and
advertising cost is increased. The HVLP stratedgroefthe same current level of service and ameriitigt at a lower price point giving us an
opportunity to recapture market share and compgmat low cost gyms that have opened in our mark#e will offer only the Passport
Membership at approximately 25 of our clubs. Weedwel our offerings are more compelling than otlogr tost operators because we include
exciting group exercise classes, top of the lingmygent, pools and courts with price of membershipen available.

The sales process has been greatly simplifiedeatlttbs operating under the HVLP strategy. All olubployees have the ability to sell a
membership, however the majority of membershipsal@ by a membership consultant. Prior to intraclyi¢he HVLP pricing strategy, the
Company offered Passport Membership, Core Memher&uold Membership and Restricted Membership. Th&Pistrategy introduces the
Premier Membership, which is a month-to-month miffaring the same level of quality service currgmtifered under the Core Membership,
but at a significantly reduced rate and higherifarfees. The Premier Membership allows memberisniteld use of a single "home club" with
access to use other non-home clubs for an additimage fee. The Passport Membership continuefedotbhe same current level of service
and amenities, which allows members to use anyaany time. In the HVLP strategy, the Core Mershgr, Gold Membership and
Restricted Membership will no longer be offered arillbe converted to either Passport Membershipmmier Membership as described
below.

As of December 31, 2014, 71 clubs were under thvg pricing strategy with the majority of clubs atlog this strategy in the fourth
quarter of 2014. We expect most of our clubs tgate HVLP strategy by May 31, 2015, with approately 25 clubs offering only Passport
Memberships. The HVLP clubs are expected to expegi@arnings pressure in the near-term relatexistirey members opting for lower dues
as well as new members enrolling at lower ratesvél@r, we believe this strategy will improve resuhd increase market share for our br.
in the long-run from the increased membership sadésme.

BFX Studio concepWe have used our extensive industry experiencéféo aur own private studio brand, BFX Studio. 012, we
introduced our first BFX Studio with a soft openiimgJuly and a grand opening in September. We ntlyrelan to open three additional BFX
Studio units in 2015. This three-product luxurydétubrand takes advantage of the rise in consum@add for studio experiences. Our BFX
Studio includes three unique offerings: Ride Rejulthich is indoor cycling, Private Sessions fergonal training and Master Class for
certain group exercise classes. BFX Studio isediaffith high caliber instructors in each of theethcore offerings and the studios are designe
to appeal to all ages and all experience levelaaifopolitan, active healthy lifestylers. Each B&Xidio is approximately 9,000 to 12,000
square feet.

Grow ancillary and other non-membership revenu&¥e intend to grow our ancillary and other non-rbenship revenues through a
continued focus on increasing the additional vadded services that we provide to our members. eepast five years, we have expanded
the range of ancillary club services provided tamhers. Non-membership revenues have increased#é@n3 million, or 19.5% of revenues
for the year ended December 31, 2010, to $98.6amillor 21.7%of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2@r4oRal training revent
in particular, increased 15.5% over this five-ypariod and increased as a percentage of total vevieom 13.2% in 2010 to 15.5% in 2014.
Our long-term goal is to generate approximately 2% venue from personal training. We offer a rinséission personal training membership
product and fee-based class offerings to genedaliti@nal revenue. The fee-based class offeringsidte our Ultimate Fitness Experience
(“UXF") class and our fee-based Small Group Tragnmmograms. The Small Group Training programs idelafferings such as Pilates
Reformer Technique,
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Total Body Resistance Exercise (“TRX") and Kettléheand our Signature Classes which include VBana Pilates Tower. We also offer
Sports Clubs for Kids programs at select club20m5, we plan to remain focused on increasing oaillary programs with continued
improvements in training and hiring and buildingamcillary programs such as our personal trainiegnimership product. These sources of
ancillary and other non-membership revenues gemératemental profits with minimal capital investm@nd assist in attracting and retaining
members.

Build and acquire new clubsWe plan to expand our club base through bothgdésj and building clubs and through selective
acquisitions. During 2014, we opened four clubs amel BFX Studio unit. We also plan to open one N¥8@ three BFX Studio units in 201
We expect to fund our club expansion with cashamdhor through internally generated cash flows #ntkeded, we can utilize borrowings
under our revolving credit facility.

Retain members by focusing on the member experie®ee Company’s mission is “Improving Lives Througkercise.” We enact our
mission through our “Ten Essentials,” which providelear road map for how we want our clubs to lao# how we want to serve our
members. This is the core of our member experistragegy and allows us to crystallize how we engagestaff to deliver a superior member
experience. We tailor the hours of each club toneds of the specific member demographic utilizagh club and offer a variety of ancillary
services, including personal training, group clasSenall Group Training, Sports Clubs for Kids peogs, and the XpressLine strength
workout which is an eight-station total-body cittowiorkout designed to be used in 22 minutes andranwodates all fitness levels. We offer a
variety of different sports facilities in each regal cluster of clubs; modern, varied and well-rtaimed exercise and fithess equipment; and al
assortment of additional amenities including actedmbysitting, sports massage and pro-shopsughrbiring, developing and training a
qualified and diverse team that is passionate dftoess and health; maintaining and enhancingooograms and services; and continually
increasing our attention to individual member neadsexpect to demonstrate our commitment to irserélae quality of the member
experience, and thereby increase net membershipeffer measure the member experience, we utilemalmer surveys and website feedbac
help analyze the areas we can improve upon asawétie areas in which the members are satisfieclbve

Provide state-of-the-art fitness equipment andisess We help educate our members to best practicéinpursuit of fitness, wellne
and healthy lifestyles and each of our clubs hiasge array of cardiovascular machines, resisténagging equipment, free weights and
functional training zones. To further enhance ttemer experience we have developed a proprietainirig tool called FitMap which guides
members and our fitness team through safe exquoiggessions for all age groups and active lifestyExercise equipment is positioned to
allow for easy movement from machine to machineijifating a convenient and efficient workout. Eguient in these areas is generally
arranged in long parallel rows that are labelednongcle group, which allows members to convenietulgtomize their exercise programs and
reduce downtime during their workouts. We have tégans who service and maintain our equipment imaly basis. In addition, we have
personal viewing television screens on most pie€esirdiovascular equipment which accommodate idda preferences and viewing, and
many cardio machines now include embedded techypdlag offers both entertainment and tracking fesguhat record workout results and
communicate with many mobile technologies. Mosbslhiave between one and three studios used farigg@tasses, including at least one
large studio used for most group exercise classegcling studio and a mind and body studio usegdga and Pilates classes. We further «
a large variety of group fitness classes at eadh @hd these classes generally are at no addittosato our members. The volume and variety
of activities at each club allow each member t@gtie club, whether customizing their own workouparticipating in group activities and
classes.

In addition, as part of our efforts to provide staf-the-art fithess equipment and services, auls &rmats are flexible and can easily
adapt and respond to the changing demands of storoers. This flexibility allows us to compete agiiprivate studios with unique specialty
offerings by adapting the space and formats inosur clubs to match the offerings provided by theseate studios. In 2014, we completed
roll-out of our UXF training zone to the majority aur existing club base, with a total of 151 clihsluding this zone at December 31, 2014.
The UXF training zone is a training area within thab that features an array of innovative equipngesigned to maximize the member’s
workout. The UXF training zone is approximately 80@00 square feet with AstroTurf flooring, a TRXspension training frame and a vat
of functional training equipment including Kettlels, Battling Ropes and Power Sleds. The UXF ingirzone is open to members for free
guided workouts and UXF fee-based workout prograrhs. UXF training zone is also used by our perstmadthers for their personal training
sessions with our members.

Marketing

Our marketing campaign, which we believe has irswdawareness of our brand names, is directedropaiketing department. In 20:
we increased marketing spend to introduce the Hsti&tegy to most of our clubs. Our marketing cagpdor the HVLP clubs typically
features a price/value message and uses a hidgfilitysaipproach within close proximity of the cluBur marketing team develops advertising
strategies to convey each of our regionally branusdorks as the premier network of fithess clubigs region. Our marketing team’s goal is
to focus on growing our membership base, achiebingd awareness of
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our regional brand names and be “top of mind”. \Weaxganized to enable close collaboration betveeemmarketing, sales, fithess and
operations staff, which helps to align efforts amdwperational objectives and new product develapmwhile ensuring a primary focus on the
member experience.

Brand awareness and preference is aided by a nuvhbsstors, including visibility of multiple rethiocations and associated signage
across each region, word-of-mouth recognition &fierrals generated by our membership base of appately 484,000 as of December 31,
2014, a 41-year operating history and continuakdibing investment. All of these factors providsti@ng foundation for our ongoing
marketing and advertising efforts.

Our regional concentration and clustering stratgates economies of scale in our marketing andréiding investments which increase
their overall efficiency and effectiveness. Clustgrenables broader reach and higher frequenciefponal advertising campaigns that
typically include a mix of traditional media inclung radio, newspapers, magazines, television atadbou advertising, which includes banners,
billboards, transit and mall advertising. Geo-téegeand behaviorally targeted digital and sociaflissesuch as paid search, email blasts, onlin
banners and video, as well as other emerging netvanvehicles are also utilized. These broader niaferts are bolstered by local marketing
plans and tactics, which include direct mail, log@bnsorships and co-promotions, as well as comgneglations and outreach and street-level
lead generation activities. Optimization of markgtmix through measurement and modeling of thecéffeness of various media investments
and formats continues to be a priority.

Our advertising and marketing message is designbditd our brand while creating an approachabtsgrelity that is attractive to
prospective members and allows them to feel comiftetwith our brand. In contrast to most healtbb@dvertising, we generally forego
depicting images of hard bodies, facilities and g@euipment. Advertisements generally feature ctiegants and trending stories to
communicate the serious approach we take towaresftin a light-hearted way. We believe this apgras easily communicated and
understood and makes our product more approacfatad consumers regardless of their health clgiegience.

Promotional marketing campaigns will typically fea opportunities to participate in a variety ofueadded services such as personal
training, Small Group Training and youth centerpdrts activities. We also may offer reduced joiniegs to encourage enrollment.
Additionally, we sponsor member referral incentiregrams periodically and other types of memberepation, acquisition activities and
internal promotions to enhance loyalty and to enage more members to take advantage of our ancgkawices.

We engage in public relations, sponsorships andiap&vents to promote our brand image across ewvark, regionally and in our local
communities. We have been featured in nationaldwast channels and television shows, such as Hereds, CNBC, Fox News, Fox
Sports, ABC News, ESPN and Dr. Oz Show; and magarspapers and magazines, such as USA Today, BGsbbe, Fitness, Self, Shape,
New York Magazine, Family Circle, Glamour, Detaglweek, and Me's Fitness.

Our philosophy of giving back to our communitieslirdes sponsoring company-wide and local charitafftats. Our club management
teams and staff are also encouraged to organizerageie in charitable activities. These events bawnefited organizations such as the
HealthCorps, ALS Therapy Development Institute, Muar Dystrophy Association, American Cancer Sggi8usan G. Komen Race for the
Cure, Wounded Warrior Project, No Kid Hungry, adhae many smaller local and specific charitiestsas: Boston Children’s Hospital,
Josephine’s Garden for Pediatric Cancer, North RockSoccer Association, The Theatre Offensive@stBn and Verrazano Babe Ruth
League.

Sales

We sell our memberships through four channelsctisales at the club level; through corporate aodgsales; through our online
website; and through our call center which we idimed in September 2010 principally to reach odbtmer members and to handle specific
campaigns. We are constantly reviewing other ptessipportunities to sell memberships through tHecemter. We employ approximately 4
“in-club” membership sales consultants who areasijble for new membership sales in and around tlesignated club locations. Each club
generally has either two or three membership salasultants. These consultants report directiheéoctub general manager, who, in turn,
reports to a business director. Additional incesddased compensation represents a majority ofdimpensation for the membership sales
consultants. Membership sales consultants musessfidly complete an in-house four week traininggoam through which they learn our
sales strategy and gain valuable hands-on experiémour New York and Boston regions, this trainprimarily occurs in our two sales
academies. All membership sales consultants hinddraorking within these regions attend these trgjrdenters where a full time sales trair
manager is available to them. These academiesoatechwithin “working clubs” and the membershipesatonsultants all have the opportunity
to learn and experience the entire sales process (frospecting to after care) and product knowdeidgvhat we consider a live but supervi
environment. There are assessments throughoutahenty and the membership sales consultants nasst e course prior to being selected
and placed in a club. Both the in-house/in-club salds academy training allows us
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to achieve consistency in our selling process. &sgfal completion of our training program allowsleanembership sales consultant to be
consistently trained and exit the training prognaith a high level of brand standard selling skiaich will assist them in achieving their
targeted sales objectives. Through our corporadegamup sales approach we concentrate on building-term relationships with local and
regional companies and other large groups. As aasnebcontinuing to grow our corporate and groupssave launched the Fitcorp Private
Fitness Center in June 2013 as part of the Fitaoquisition in May 2013. The Fitcorp Private Fith€enter is responsible for managing
private fithess centers for both large and smatbemtions, colleges and universities, and pricaibs. These managed sites include three
managed university locations, and seven manages) giicluding four managed sites acquired in cotmegvith our Fitcorp acquisition.

We also sell individual memberships onlinevatw.mysportsclubs.corfor our standard membership types and the webisibteemables t
to sell memberships for pre-established corponatiegroup programs. The website also allows our neesito give us direct feedback about
our service levels and enables prospective mentbesign up for our popular ongeek trial membership. The online sales channeirsf higl
degree of convenience for customers who know argd tur brand and do not require fupnt interaction with a membership sales constlta
make their decision. In addition, selling onlingrsficantly reduces our cost of sale. Members wiingd online accounted for approximately
1.5% of memberships sold in 2014. The web site @ievides information about club locations, prograiferings, exercise class schedules an
sales promotions. Job seekers can also begin thivyment application process through the site amdstors can access financial information
and resources.

We believe that clustering clubs allows us to semberships based upon the opportunity for memtbarslize multiple club locations
near their workplace and their home. As of Decen3ie014, we currently offer the following typelsneemberships at our Clubs:

* The Premier Membership is offered at our HVL&bsl and is a month-to-month plan offering the skewel of quality service
currently offered under the Core Membership, bt significantly reduced rate. The Premier Memberaliows members unlimited
use of a single "home club”. Premier members cam elect to pay a per visit fee of $12.95 to usetmame clubs.The current list pr
of a Premier Membership generally ranges from $803839.95 per month with joining fees ranging fréthto $250 and an annual
to be paid on each anniversary date of enrollmegito to $50.

e The Passport Membership is our higher priced beship and entitles members to use any of oursdlulany region at any time and
our Regional Passport Membership, offered in oulO/d8d PSC regions, entitles members to use anyraflobs within one region.
These membership plans provide the conveniencawin@ fitness clubs near a member’s workplace amdeh The current list price
of commit Regional Passport and Passport Membesglgperally ranges from $69.99 per month to $9pe€39month, excluding
passport restricted members, corporate and grompbeies and premium memberships available at a irefietl number of clubs. Our
corporate and group memberships are sold as Pasépamberships and averaged approximately $70 patfor those sold in the
year ended December 31, 2014. In addition, we haRassport Premium Membership at two select ciubigh includes a great:
array of member services and facilities, with fistes currently ranging from $105.99 per mont$1d5.99 per month. Further, our
Boston Racquet Club offers a higher level Premiuenmidership with pricing ranging from $135.00 to $089per month. Joining fees
under the Passport Membership range from $50 t0.$l5e Passport Membership also includes an arfieealf $50 to be paid on
each anniversary date of enroliment.

We expect most of our clubs to be converted tdH¥&P pricing strategy by May 31, 2015, with apprmetely 25 clubs offering only
Passport Memberships. The conversion of clubs taifiscontinues the currently existing membershjges described below including the
Core Membership, the Restricted Membership andsibld Membership. The Passport Membership contitmesfer the same current level of
service and amenities under a month-to-month pléiich allows members to use any club at any tiniesE& memberships continue to be
offered at those clubs that have not yet been atetve

e The Core Membership enables members to useciisggub at any time. The current list price o€@ammit Core membership
generally ranges from $39.99 per month to $89.99mmth based on club specific facilities and s=sj the market area of
enrollment and length of the membership contracte@nembers can also elect to pay a per visitf&®.95 to use non-home clubs.
Core members existing at the time of HVLP adoptidihconvert to a Passport Membership.

* The Restricted Membership is a favorably-priaedtricted-use month-to-month only membership peilcharily by students and
teachers. Usage fees of $12.95 per visit are apflaerestricted member chooses to use a clumdwertain peak hours, Monday
through Thursday. The Restricted Membership isanily listed from $19.99 per month to $39.99 penthoAdditional groups may
also be offered a restricted membership at timesitih our call center. Restricted members exisirttpe time of HVLP adoption wi
convert to a Premier Membership.

e Prior to November 1, 2010, we also offered Thdd@viembership. This membership enables membansda@ specific club at any
time and any of our clubs during off-peak timeslddnembers can elect to pay a per visit fee of $8.20 use
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non-home clubs during peak hours. Gold membersirgiat the time of HVLP adoption will convert tdPassport Membership.

We offer both “month-to-month” and “commit” membkeis options. A member may cancel a month-to-monémimership at any time
with 30-days notice. Under the commit model, newrbers commit to a one year membership. In 20142848, 77% and 90%, respectively,
of our newly enrolled members opted for a commitrrbership. The decrease in commit membership in 2&siprimarily due to the HVLP
conversion, which reflected an increased numbenerhbers joining the new month-to-month Premier Mership. As of December 31, 2014,
approximately 54% of our members had originatedenradmonth-to-month non-commit membership and 46&driginated under a commit
membership. When the members’ commit period is,dhely retain membership as a month-to-month membtrthey choose to cancel. As
of December 31, 2014, approximately 85% of ourl te@mbers were on a month-to-month basis.

Prior to the implementation of our rate lock guaeanand maintenance fee in May 2011, we increasedxsting member dues annually
by between 1% and 3% on average, in line with imsee in the cost of living. In May 2011, we impleneel a combined rate lock guarantee
and maintenance fee to which all members agrdeedirhe of enroliment. This fee, which is currer#89.99, is collected annually in January
and is recognized in membership revenue over theesjuent 12 month period following collection. &mdary 2014 and January 2013, we
collected approximately $9.0 million and $7.0 noifli respectively, related to this new fee. The HVh&mberships also charge an annual fee
beginning on the first day of membership and orheamual anniversary date thereafter. In 2014, neeshlip dues increases were applied to
approximately 25% of our membership base (for thmeenbers joining prior to the May 2011 rate loclaiguntee) resulting in an overall dues
increase of approximately less than 3% on theselraesn

In joining a club, a new member signs a memberabipement that typically obligates the member joqueetime joining fees, an annu
rate lock guarantee and maintenance fee, and nyadhtiels on an ongoing basis. Joining fees colldictedew monthly electronic funds
transfer, or EFT, members averaged approximatedy $89 and $57 per member for the years ended Desredd, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Joining fees related to the Premiemership are generally higher than those chargadqusly under the Core Membership.
Joining fees under the Premier membership averagpximately $100 compared to $60 for non-HVLFbslin the fourth quarter of 2014.
Monthly EFT of individual membership dues on a pegmber basis, including the effect of promotiond amemberships with reduced dues,
averaged approximately $59 per month for both #wryended December 31, 2014 and 2013, and $%8qweth for the year ended December
31, 2012. Currently, approximately 98% of our mermshmay their membership dues through EFT, with Bf€émbership revenue constituting
approximately 73.1% of total consolidated reverarelie year ended December 31, 2014. Substandililbther membership dues are paid in
full in advance. Our membership agreements califonthly dues to be collected by EFT based on toedd or bank account debit
authorization contained in the agreement. Durirgfitst week of each month, we receive the EFT doethat month after the payments are
initiated by a third-party EFT processor. Discrepasa and insufficient funds incidents are reseat@rel resolved by our in-house account
services department.

Usage

Our suburban clubs are generally open 5:00 AM t6A®M on weekdays and 7:00 AM to 7:00 PM on wedkewhile our urban clubs
are generally open 5:30 AM to 11:00 PM on weekdays$ 8:00 AM to 9:00 PM on weekends. Our total elsbhge, based on the number of
member visits, was 28.7 million and 29.1 millionmizer visits for the years ended December 31, 2084813, respectively. In the year
ended December 31, 2014, approximately 43% of tetafje or club visits was to members’ non-homes;linalicating that our members take
advantage of our network of clubs. Our memberspigss allow for club members to elect to pay avist fee of $12.95 to use non-home
clubs, subject to peak and non-peak hourly regirnstdepending on the membership type. In the gadee approximately $2.2 million and
$2.1 million of usage fees were generated in 20112913, respectively, and are reported in memigdikes in our consolidated statement
operations.
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Non-Membership Revenue

The table below presents non-membership revenupaoemts as a percentage of total revenue for thesyaded December 31, 2010
through 2014.

For the Years Ended December 31, ($ in thousands)
2014 % 2013 % 2012 % 2011 % 2010 %
Total revenue $ 453,84: 100.(% $ 470,22 100.(% $ 478,98: 100.(% $ 466,94: 100.% $ 462,38 100.(%

Non-
Membership
Revenue:

Personal

training

revenue(1) 70,33¢ 15.5% 66,36 14.1% 65,64 13.7% 62,39 13.2% 60,87: 13.2%
Other ancillary

club revenue(2) 22,30« 4.9% 24,72( 5.2% 29,89’ 6.2% 28,297 6.1% 24,68« 5.2%

Fees and Othe
revenue(3) 5,971 1.2% 5,98t 1.2% 5,80¢ 1.2% 4,89( 1.C% 4,761 1.C%

Total non-

membership
revenue $ 98,61! 21.% $ 97,07: 20.7% $ 101,34: 21.2% $ 95,58 20.5% $ 90,32( 19.5%

(1) Personal training revenue in the year ended Dece&1he2010 includes $2,697 related to unused apitexksessions in three jurisdictio
of which $570 is related to expired sessions thaild/have been recognized in 2010.

(2) Other ancillary club revenue primarily consistsSofiall Group Training, Signature Classes, Sportb£far Kids, and racquet spo

(3) Fees and other revenue primarily consist nfaldncome, marketing revenue and management Téeesyear ended December 31, 2013
includes $424 for the correction of an accountirgrerelated to out of period rental income.

Club Format and Locations

Our clubs are generally located in middle- or uppeome residential, commercial, urban and suburti@ghborhoods within major
metropolitan areas that are capable of supportiaglevelopment of a cluster of clubs. Our clubgslfy have high visibility and are easily
accessible. In the New York metropolitan, Bostorashington, D.C. and Philadelphia markets, we haeated clusters of clubs in urban areas
and their commuter suburban areas aligned wittoparating strategy of offering our target membbesdonvenience of multiple locations
close to where they live and work, reciprocal uselpges, and standardized facilities and services

Approximately 66% of our existing clubs are fitnessy clubs and the remaining clubs are multi-ratiomal. Our fitness-only clubs
generally range in size from 15,000 to 25,000 sgfreet and average approximately 21,000 square@eetmulti-recreational clubs generally
range in size from 20,000 to 65,000 square feeh @ne club being approximately 200,000 square felet average multiecreational club siz
is approximately 37,000 square feet. We are irptbeess of introducing the new HVLP pricing strgtégmost of our clubs. We expect this
pricing strategy to drive membership with our regtliprice point and increased advertising. Alsojnt@duced our first BFX Studio in 2014,
with a soft opening in July and a grand openin§éptember. We currently plan to open three additiBiFX Studio units in 2015. The BFX
Studio generally ranges from 9,000 to 12,000 sqgfeseand consist of three spaces including amgdtudio, group exercise studio and a
personal training area.

Our existing club base consists of clubs which weehdeveloped and constructed as well as clubsawe &cquired. Over the past five
years from January 1, 2010 to December 31, 20140nstructed six new clubs and one BFX Studio amét acquired six clubs, while closi
or relocating 15 clubs. Currently, 55 of our clubsapproximately 35% of our existing club basereMeom acquisitions of privately owned
single and multi-club businesses. In the year emszbmber 31, 2014, we constructed and openedtfolns and one BFX Studio unit, and
closed eight clubs, ending the year with 158 toliaths under operation. This compares to six cliquisitions and four club closings during the
year ended December 31, 2013. In both 2014 and, 284 3lso upgraded certain existing clubs and fdaontinue to do so in 201

To identify potential new club opportunities, wegage in detailed trade area analyses and selgutimesses. Target areas are identified
based upon population demographics, psychographadic and commuting patterns, availability ofesi and competitive market information.
As part of our club growth strategy we also evayadtential targeted acquisitions of both singldand multiple club operators in our core
markets that would complement our existing clubvoek. In addition, we evaluate
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growth opportunities in secondary markets locatea our existing markets. In the future, we mayl@epexpansion opportunities in other
markets in the U.S. that share similar demographésacteristics to those in which we currently aperWe currently have two signed lease
place for club openings in New York and three sigleases in place for BFX Studio units in Bostod Alew York.

Our facilities include a mix of state-of-the-arrd@mvascular and strength equipment from some ®b#st manufacturers including Life
Fitness, Technogym, Nautilus, CybexPrecor®, Star Trac®, Hammer®, Woodway® and Octané& . At many locations, additional amenities
are also offered, including swimming pools, raccued basketball courts, UXF functional training espbabysitting services, and pro-shops.
Personal training services are offered at all iocatfor an additional charge. In addition, in eantinuing efforts to provide our members with
the best tools and equipment to take advantageedhtest exercise techniques, in 2014 we revisegmprietary TSI FitMap training protocol
which guides our members through safe and effeetvegcise progressions. Our fee-based programeedfée many of our clubs, include
personal training, Small Group Training, childrepiegrams, and other signature classes targetinij m@mbers such as VBarre and Pilates
Tower. We also offer our Xpressline strength wotkatuall of our clubs which is provided for freedor members. Xpressline is an eight-
station total-body circuit workout designed to Isediin 22 minutes and to accommodate all fithessde

In 2014, we completed the roll-out of our UXF tiaimzone to the majority of our existing club baséh a total of 151 clubs including
this zone at December 31, 2014. The UXF trainingeze a training area within the club that featuresirray of innovative equipment desig
to maximize the member’s workout. The UXF trainzane is approximately 600 to 800 square feet wihr@Y urf flooring, a TRX suspension
training frame and a variety of functional trainiaguipment including Kettle Bells, Battling RopesldPower Sleds. The UXF training zone is
open to members for free self guided workouts aK& fee-based workout programs. The UXF trainingezisnalso used by our personal
trainers for their personal training sessions with members.

Our clubs also feature personal entertainment .ufiits units are typically mounted on or near indiivl pieces of cardiovascular
equipment and are equipped with a flat-panel catoeen for television viewing. We believe our mermshgefer the flexibility to view and
listen to the programs of their choice during tle@irdiovascular workout. Recently most manufactuaee including embedded screens on the
newest cardio fithess equipment which offer enharesgs to both on-demand entertainment along wittkewg data tracking and connectivity
to most mobile technologies.

Club Services and Operations

Our clubs are structured to provide an enhancedbaesxperience through effective execution of querating plan. Our club and
support team members are the key to deliverinduedanember experience and our operations are izeghto maximize their overall
effectiveness. Our club operations include:

Management. We believe that our success is largely depemaethe selection and development of our team neesalOur
management structure is designed to strike the biglance between consistent execution of operatiexcellence and nurturing a leader’s
capacity for entrepreneurial decision making. @arhing and development system allows for all gabitions to receive training on the key
elements of their role as well as development itngifor growth. We believe a critical componenbta growth is our ability to leverage
internally-developed management talent.

Functional Support. Functional teams provide technical expertise support designed to drive the member experiendeevenue
growth in specific areas of our clubs’ services)uding sales and marketing, fithess and ancilfgogramming, learning and development, as
well as facility management and member service.

Driving excellence in fithess and ancillary prograimg is critical to our success. Members receivintnoductory one-hour assessment
session with a fitness manager who helps to develmpstomized routine that supports the membedrieds goals. This initial assessment
session includes a 30-minute workout evaluatiomgdlpressure and heart rate measurement, body sittop@nalysis, cardio, strength and
endurance testing, and movement screening. Memiferlect to receive personal training can beffiefin one-on-one coaching and
guidance, with refreshed programs that evolve asrttmbers achieve their fithess goals. All of amess clubs offer our personal training
membership products where members can select fioackage of one to 16 personal training sessionmpath. These sessions must be use
in each respective month they are issued. Membleospurchase this product commit to a three montiogeMembers can also purchase
prepaid single sessions or multi-session packagéshvare sold at a premium to the personal trainiregnbership product. The personal
training membership product provides members witbréfied personal trainer who works with the memto create an individualized goal-
based program. Our fitness teams are trained tag@@uperior fitness solutions to address membeds. We believe the qualifications of the
personal training staff help to ensure that memimgsive a consistent level of quality service tigtoout our clubs and that our personal
training programs provide valuable guidance toraembers as well as a significant source of increéateavenue for us. We believe that
members who participate in personal training progréypically have a longer membership life.
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Our commitment to providing a quality exercise eigrece to our members also includes group exepisgramming. Our instructors
teach a variety of classes, including dance, cg¢ktrength conditioning, boxing, yoga, Pilates atap classes. Instructors report through loca
club management and are further supported by ragimanagers responsible for ensuring consistenclass content, scheduling, training and
instruction. We also provide Small Group Trainirfieangs to our members, which are fee-based prograt have smaller groups, with a
maximum of four to eight members per class, andigeomore focused and typically more advanced elsSur fee-based offerings also
include UXF classes, as well as our signature efasacluding VBarre and Power Pilates Tower.

In addition to group exercise, we offer a varietyncillary programming for children under our Ssa€lubs for Kids brand. As of
December 31, 2014, Sports Clubs for Kids was beffeyed in 36 locations throughout our New York 8pclubs, Boston Sports Clubs,
Washington Sports Clubs and Philadelphia SportbLtagions. Our Sports Clubs for Kids programmiagifions our multi-recreational clubs
as family clubs, which we believe provides us vaitbompetitive advantage. Depending upon the fesldvailable at a location, Sports Clubs
for Kids programming can include traditional youwtffierings such as day camps, sports camps, swisomas hockey and soccer leagues,
gymnastics, dance, and birthday parties. It alsoirelude non-competitive “learn-to-play” sport®grams.

Our facilities and equipment management teams edtedted to ensuring our clubs and fitness equipm@enoperating at the highest
standard of performance for our members. Local seara deployed to provide on-site support to cagreeded.

Our club support and member services groups axtcasrdinating point for all departments, supparéxcellence in program execution
and ensuring consistency of policies and procedarssss the entire organization that support thelbee experience.

Employee Compensation and Benefits

We provide performance-based incentives to our g@mant. Senior management compensation, for exampled to our overall
performance. Departmental directors, businesstireand club level managers can achieve bonusgsaimeeting specific revenue and
member retention targets. We offer our employee®ws benefits including health, dental and disgbihsurance; pre-tax healthcare,
commuting and dependent care accounts; free gymbersinip; and a 401(k) plan. We believe the avditglnf employee benefits provides us
with a strategic advantage in attracting and rétgiguality managers and staff, program instrucéom professional personal trainers and that
this strategic advantage in turn translates imwge consistent and higher-quality workout expexéefor those members who utilize such
services.

Centralized Information Systems

We recognize the value of enhancing and extendiegises of information technology (“IT”) in virtlskevery area of our business. Our
IT strategy is aligned to support our businesdesgraand operating plans. We maintain an ongoimgprehensive program to replace or
upgrade key systems and to optimize their perfoo@an

In 2014, we continued our program to replace oappetary, internally developed Club Managementesysthat is used to process new
memberships, bill members, check-in members amtd and analyze sales and membership statitiedrequency and timing of member
workouts, cross-club utilization, member life, veladded services and demographic profiles by memiblera new third-party developed
software system. As of December 31, 2014, all ofatubs were running on the new platform for cletated activities with 71 clubs also
processing new membership sales on the new platfbinearemaining clubs are still processing membprséles under the legacy Club
Management system but all clubs are expected t@lenthe conversion to the new system in the ffiadt of 2015.

In 2014, we introduced a new technology packagripport of the BFX Studio brand. This new systewedaged the platform chosen for
the existing TSI brands and new features and fanatity were developed in support of the BFX Stualiand goals. Large self service check ir
kiosks allow clients to manage their arrival pracasthe studio, freeing up our team members tstebe clients instead of working behind a
desk. A fully automated loyalty program identifimsr most engaged clients and gives them additiamlak-added privileges to incentivize
continued and increased participation. The BFX$tedim website was launched as the primary poisaltes allowing clients to purchase and
fully manage their appointments at BFX Studio tlglothe internet. This highly transactional siteasively available for personal computers,
tablets and phones.

We continuously implement infrastructure changeadmommodate growth, provide network redundancigebmanage
telecommunications and data costs, increase effi@s in operations and improve management ofoatiponents of our technical architecture,
including disaster recovery. Improvements in thénffastructure will continue to be made in theuhetin order to better serve our business
needs.
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Intellectual Property

We have registered various trademarks and servacgswvith the U.S. Patent and Trademark Officduiiog, NEW YORK SPORTS
CLUBS and NYSC, WASHINGTON SPORTS CLUBS and WSC, BOSTON SPORTS CLUBS and BSG PHILADELPHIA SPORTS
CLUBS and PSC, UXF, SPORTS CLUBS FOR KIDSC OMPANIESGETFIT.COM, BFX STUDIO, RIDE REPUBLIC, MAST ER
CLASS, andPRIVATE SESSIONS.We continue to register other trademarks and semwarks. We believe that our rights to these ptogser
are adequately protected.

Competition

The fitness club industry is highly competitive azahtinues to become more competitive. The numbkealth clubs in the U.S. has
increased from 29,750 in 2009 to 32,150 in 2018edan the most recent information available adngrtb the IHRSA. In each of the mark
in which we operate, we compete with other fitndebs, physical fithess and recreational facilities

We consider the following groups to be our primeoynpetitors in the health and fitness industry:

» commercial, multi-recreational and fitness-oains, including, among others, Equinox Holdirigs,, Lifetime Fitness, Inc.,
Crunch, New York Health and Racquet, LA Fitnessimational LLC, 24 Hour Fitness Worldwide, Inc. [IBa otal Fitness Holding
Corporation, Gold’'s Gym International, Inc., Refitness, Snap Fitness, Anytime Fitness and Platre2ds;

e private studios, including, among others, Flyeln&oul Cycle, Barry’s Bootcamp and Cross-Fitwadl as other private studios
offering cycling, yoga or Pilates;

» the YMCA and similar noprofit organizations

» physical fithess and recreational facilities essdtad by local governments, hospitals and busiise
» exercise and small fitness clubs; racquet, tenmilscgher athletic club

e amenity gyms in apartments, condominiums and coff

* weightreducing salon

» country clubs; ar

» the homaise fitness equipment indus

The principal methods of competition include pricend ease of payment, required level of membersractual commitment, level and
quality of services, training and quality of supsovy staff, size and layout of facility and coniegrce of location with respect to access to
transportation and pedestrian traffic.

Competitive Position Measured by Number of Clubs

Number of
Market Clubs Position
Boston metropolitan 30 #1 owner and operator
New York metropolitan 107 #1 owner and operator
Washington, D.C. metropolitan 13 #3 owner and operator; #1 in urban center
Philadelphia metropolitan 5 #2 owner and operator; #1 in urban center
Switzerland 3 Local owner and operator only

Historically, our club service offerings were iretmid-tier of the value/service proposition andigiesd to appeal to a large portion of the
population who utilize fitness facilities. The nuenlof competitor clubs that offer lower pricing amtbwer level of service have continued to
grow in our markets over the last few years. Thabgles have attracted, and may continue to attraeimbers away from both our fitness-only
clubs and our multi-recreational clubs. As a mearfacing the shift in fitness industry, we arettie process of introducing the HVLP strategy
to most of our clubs where we believe we have adrigalue-to-service proposition with reduced mgnttues under month-to-month
membership plans.

As of December 31, 2014, 71 clubs were under thvg pricing strategy. We expect most of our clubadopt the HVLP strategy by May
31, 2015, with approximately 25 clubs offering oRigssport Memberships. The HVLP clubs are expéoted
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experience earnings pressure in the riean related to existing members opting for lowmeeslas well as new members enrolling at lower !
However, we believe this strategy will improve désand increase market share for our brands itotigrun from the increased membership
sales volume.

We also face competition from club operators offgricomparable or higher pricing with higher levafiservice. Larger outer-suburban
family fitness centers, in areas where suitableastate is more likely to be available, also corag#fectively against our suburban formats.

Also, we face competition from the rising popukaidind demand for private studios offering nichetloue experiences. As a means of
growing and expanding our business, we launchedwurprivate studio concept, the BFX Studio, in $keeond half of 2014. This three-
dimension luxury studio brand takes advantage efige in consumer demand for studio experiencésias a higher membership pricing p
versus our clubs.

We also compete with other entertainment and rbteiinesses for the discretionary income in ogeisdemographics. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to compete effelgtiviethe future in the markets in which we oper&empetitors, who may include companies
that are larger and have greater resources thanaysenter these markets to our detriment. Thesgettive conditions may result in
increased price competition and limit our abilibyattract new members and attract and retain geglfersonnel. Additionally, consolidation
the fitness club industry could result in increasethpetition among participants, particularly largelti-facility operators that are able to
compete for attractive acquisition candidates anaéavly constructed club locations. This increaseahpetition could increase our costs
associated with expansion through both acquisitiortsfor real estate availability for newly consted club locations.

We believe that our market leadership, experiemceoperating efficiencies enable us to providecthesumer with a superior product in
terms of convenience, quality service and afforiitgbWe believe that there are barriers to entrpur metropolitan areas, including restrictive
zoning laws, lengthy permit processes and a shexdégppropriate real estate, which could discoriaayy large competitor from attempting to
open a chain of clubs in these markets. Howeveh aicompetitor could enter these markets moréyeasbugh one, or a series of,
acquisitions. These barriers of entry are signifiéda our four metropolitan regions; however, ttaeg less challenging in our surrounding
suburban locations.

Seasonality of Business

Seasonal trends have a limited effect on our oMeuginess. Generally, we experience greater meshipegrowth at the beginning of
each year and experience an increased rate of mshibattrition during the summer months. In additiduring the summer months, we
experience a slight increase in operating expetseso our outdoor pool and summer camp operatgarserally matched by seasonal revenu
recognition from season pool memberships and cavgnue.

Government Regulation

Our operations and business practices are subjéetieral, state and local government regulatiathénvarious jurisdictions in which our
clubs are located, including general rules andlegiguns of the Federal Trade Commission, statelecal consumer protection agencies and
state statutes that prescribe certain forms andgons of membership contracts and that goverrathertising, sale, financing and collection
of such memberships as well as state and locaththesjulations.

Statutes and regulations affecting the fithesssirgthave been enacted in jurisdictions in whichceleduct business and other states int
which we may expand in the future have adopteday adopt similar legislation. Typically, these agtat and regulations prescribe certain
forms and provisions of membership contracts, dffoembers the right to cancel the contract withspecified time period after signing or in
certain circumstances, such as for medical reasioredocation to a certain distance from the nearied, require an escrow of funds received
from pre-opening sales or the posting of a bonproof of financial responsibility and may establishximum prices for membership contracts
and limitations on the term of contracts. The sfi@procedures and reasons for cancellation vagytduiffering laws in the respective
jurisdictions, but in each instance, the cancetiregnber is entitled to a refund of unused prepaiduants. In addition, several states h
proposed legislation that would prohibit the auttimepllover of membership once a memisecommitment period expires. We are also sul
to numerous other types of federal and state régokgoverning the sale of memberships. These tmdsregulations are subject to varying
interpretations by a number of state and fedefalreement agencies and courts. We maintain inteevééw procedures to comply with these
requirements and believe that our activities arguipstantial compliance with all applicable staguteles and decisions.

The tax treatment of membership dues varies bg.sEime states in which we operate require satds tae collected on membership
dues and personal training sessions. Several attees in which we operate have proposed singilalegislation. These taxes have the effect
of increasing the payments by our members, whichdcinpede our ability to attract new members aluice members to cancel their
membership.
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Changes in any statutes, rules or regulations doaveé a material adverse effect on our financiabi@mn and results of operations.

Employees

On December 31, 2014, we had approximately 8,00@laraes, of whom approximately 3,200 were empldydidime. We are not a
party to any collective bargaining agreement with @mployees. We operate with an open door polcyencourage and welcome the
communication of our employees’ ideas, suggestmsconcerns, and believe this strengthens our@melrelations. We have never
experienced any significant labor shortages ordmddifficulty in obtaining adequate replacememwtsdeparting employees. We consider our
relations with our employees to be good.

Available Information

We make available through our web site latttp://investor.mysportsclubs.coriil the “Investor Relations — SEC Filings” sectidmge of
charge, all reports and amendments to those refiledsr furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) ofd)®f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended (the “Exchange Act} soon as reasonably practicable after we eléctdynfile such material with, or furnish it tche Securitie:
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). Occasionallymay use our web site as a channel of distribuifanaterial company information.
Financial and other material information regarding Company is routinely posted on and accesstbléta://investor.mysportsclubs.cormih
addition, you may automatically receive email alemd other information about us by enrolling yenmail by visiting the “E-mail Alerts”
section at_http://investor.mysportsclubs.com/

The foregoing information regarding our website #adontent is for convenience only. The contdmiw website is not deemed to be
incorporated by reference into this report nor $thittbe deemed to have been filed with the SEC.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

Investors should carefully consider the risks digsa below and all other information in this AnndRéport on Form 1@. The risks an
uncertainties described below are not the only dhaswe face. Additional risks and uncertainties presently known to us or that we
currently deem immaterial may also impair our besis and operations. If any of the following risktually occur, our business, financial
condition, cash flows or results of operations cook materially adversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Business
We may be unable to attract and retain members,ehhiould have a negative effect on our business.

The performance of our clubs is highly dependenbanability to attract and retain members, andweg not be successful in these
efforts. Most of our members hold month-to-monthmberships and accordingly, most members can cémeielclub membership at any time
without penalty. In addition, we experience atritand must continually engage existing membersastnact new members in order to
maintain our membership levels and ancillary saleégre are numerous factors that have in the pastauld in the future lead to a decline in
membership levels or that could prevent us fromeiasing our membership, including a decline inahility to deliver quality service at a
competitive cost, the presence of direct and irtlicempetition in the areas in which the clubslacated, the public’s interest in fithess clubs
and general economic conditions. In order to immeeaembership levels, we may from time to timerdfe&er membership rates and joining
fees. Any decrease in our average membershipeatesiuctions in joining fees may adversely impactresults of operations.

Negative economic conditions, including increasedmployment levels and decreased consumer conéidéage in the past contributed
to and in the future could lead to significant gregs and declines in economic growth, includirtyiced consumer spending. In a depressed
economic and consumer environment, consumers agiddases may postpone spending in response tertigiedit, negative financial news
and/or declines in income or asset values, whiciidchave a material negative effect on the demanddr services and products and such
decline in demand may continue as the economymaesito struggle and disposable income declindger@actors that could influence
demand include increases in fuel and other enavgiscconditions in the residential real estaterandgage markets, labor and healthcare
costs, access to credit, consumer confidence dred otacroeconomic factors affecting consumer spenigehavior. We believe the challenges
to the global economy during the past several yieave adversely affected our business and our uegeand profits and continuing challenges
may result in additional adverse effects. As altedithese factors, membership levels might noatlequate to maintain our operations at
current levels or permit the expansion of our opens.
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In addition, to the extent our corporate clients adversely affected by negative economic condititiiey may decide, as part of expens
reduction strategies, to curtail or cancel club hership benefits provided to their respective erygds. Any reductions in corporate
memberships may lead to membership cancellatiomgasannot assure that employees of corporate roessowill choose to continue their
memberships without employer subsidies. A decimmémbership levels may have a material adversetesh our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

The conversion of certain of our clubs to our higlalue - low price strategy may negatively impact gomparable club revenue growth and
our operating margins.

We have adopted a strategic initiative to convessinof our clubs to our new HVLP strategy, whiclpeleds in substantial part on our
ability to attract a significant number of addittdmew members at each of our clubs. We expecitially experience lower revenues and
margin pressure in connection with these convessidn the extent we are unable to attract a sefftahumber of new members, or if existing
members at such clubs convert their existing mestiygs to our new lower cost memberships at higherters than we have anticipated, our
revenues and results of operations will be matgréalversely impacted. Further, we expect to irsignificant additional advertising expenses
in connection with our implementation of this nexcimg strategy. Our results of operations willrbaterially impacted by the new strategy to
the extent we do not attract sufficient numberaei members to offset these costs.

Low consumer confidence levels, increased compmtititnd decreased spending could negatively impactfmancial position and result in
club closures and fixed asset and goodwill impainmbe

In the year ended December 31, 2014, we closed €ligibs, while in 2013 we closed four clubs. Weogatized $4.6 million of fixed asset
impairments in the year ended December 31, 2014ahd,000 of fixed asset impairments in the yededrDecember 31, 2013. In addition
the year ended December 31, 2014, we recorded gbadpairment charges of $137,000 related to oatier club, in part due to decreased
membership. Some of our club closures and impaitsn@are due, in large part, to the economic andwmer environment, and increased
competition in areas in which our clubs operat¢hdf economic and consumer environment were taidedée or not improve or if we are
unable to improve the overall competitive positarour clubs, our operating performance may expegeleclines and we may need to
recognize additional impairments of our fixed assetd goodwill and may be compelled to close aulthiti clubs. In addition, we cannot ens
that we will be able to replace any of the reveloséfrom these closed clubs from our other clubrapons.

We have experienced reduced membership levelsmat ofeour clubs. During the year ended DecembePB14 , we tested 36
underperforming clubs and recorded an impairmes# &f $4.6 million on fixed assets related to altof nine clubs, including five
underperforming clubs, and three clubs which wérssed and one club we expect to convert to a mahgation in February 2015. The 27
other clubs tested that did not have impairmentgggmhad an aggregate of $38.3 million of net lealskimprovements and furniture and
fixtures remaining as of December 31, 2014 . Theaiaing impaired clubs have been converted or \&a fi convert to the HVLP pricing
strategy in the first half of 2015 other than ohéavhich will be converted into a managed locaiiofrebruary 2015. We expect increased
membership under the HVLP strategy. To the extemHVLP pricing strategy does not meet our expaxtat we may record additional
impairment charges.

Our geographic concentration heightens our exposuoceadverse regional developments.

As of December 31, 2014, we operated 107 fitnagssah the New York metropolitan market, 30 fitnekgos in the Boston market, 13
fitness clubs in the Washington, D.C. market, fitrgess clubs in the Philadelphia market and tliteess clubs in Switzerland. Our geograf
concentration in the Northeast and Mid-Atlanticioeg and, in particular, the New York metropolitmea, heightens our exposure to adverse
developments in these areas, including those tetateconomic and demographic changes in thesenggiompetition, severe weather,
potential terrorist threats or other unforeseemtsze

For example, in the year ended December 31, 2®12 rasult of flooding and power outages causeduyicane Sandy, 131 clubs were
closed on October 29, 2012, with one club thatezlgzermanently, 16 clubs that remained closedvfer a week and one club that was closed
for over a year and reopened in December 2013. alleat predict the impact that any future severehezavents will have on our ability to
avoid wide-spread or prolonged club closures. Aimghsevents affecting the areas in which we opamégéit result in a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition, cash flowd egsults of operations in the future.
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Any condition that causes people to refrain, or pents people, from visiting our clubs, such as sewseather, outbreaks of pandemic
contagious diseases, or threats of terrorist attackay adversely affect our business, operating tessand financial condition.

Our business and operations could be materiallyagivérsely affected by severe weather or outbreBgandemic or contagious diseases,
threats of terrorist attacks or other conditioret tause people to refrain, or prevent people, frimiting our clubs. Our business could be
severely impacted by a widespread regional, natimnglobal health epidemic. A widespread healtldemic or perception of a health
epidemic (such as Ebola), whether or not tracemhtoof our clubs, may cause members and prospeauntwnebers to avoid public gathering
places or otherwise change their behaviors anddtmpa ability to staff our clubs. Outbreaks ofafise, such as influenza, could reduce traffic
in our clubs. Any of these events would negativalpact our business. In addition, any negative ipitplrelating to these and other health-
related matters may affect members’ perceptiormiotlubs, reduce member and prospective membigs tasour clubs and negatively impact
demand for our club offerings.

Further, terrorist attacks, such as the attacksatt@urred in New York City and Washington, D.C.®eptember 11, 2001, and other ac
violence or war may affect the markets in whichoperate, our operating results or the market orclivbur common stock trades. Our
geographic concentration in the major cities inNtoetheast and Mid-Atlantic regions and, in pardécuthe New York City and Washington,
D.C. areas, heightens our exposure to any suclheftewrorist attacks, which may adversely affeat@ubs and result in a decrease in our
revenues. The potential near-term and long-terecethese attacks may have for our members, thketsafior our services and the market for
our common stock are uncertain; however, their oecice can be expected to further negatively affext).S. economy generally and
specifically the regional markets in which we operd he consequences of any terrorist attacksyaaned conflicts are unpredictable; anc
may not be able to foresee events that could havesleerse effect on our business.

The level of competition in the fitness club indugtcould negatively impact our revenue growth ancbfitability.

The fitness club industry is highly competitive asahtinues to become more competitive. In each®ihtarkets in which we operate, we
compete with other fithess clubs, private studabgsical fitness and recreational facilities essdigld by local governments, hospitals and
businesses for their employees, amenity and condomiclubs, the YMCA and similar organizations atwda certain extent, with racquet and
tennis and other athletic clubs, country clubsghreducing salons and the home-use fitness eguipimdustry. We also compete with other
entertainment and retail businesses for the discr@ty income in our target demographics. We migtitbe able to compete effectively in the
future in the markets in which we operate. Compegitnclude companies that are larger and haveaegressources than us and also may entel
these markets to our detriment. These competitivelitions may limit our ability to increase dueghwiut a material loss in membership, att
new members and attract and retain qualified peedodditionally, consolidation in the fitness blindustry could result in increased
competition among participants, particularly langelti-facility operators that are able to compededttractive acquisition candidates or newly
constructed club locations, thereby increasingscassociated with expansion through both acquisitamd lease negotiation and real estate
availability for newly constructed club locations.

The number of competitor clubs that offer lowercng and a lower level of service continue to giowur markets. These clubs have
attracted, and may continue to attract, membery &wen both our fithess-only clubs and our multcreational clubs, particularly in the
current consumer environment. Furthermore, smaherless expensive weight loss facilities presemrapetitive alternative for consumers.

We also face competition from competitors offerammnparable or higher pricing with higher levelssefvice or offerings. Larger outer-
suburban, multi-recreational family fitness cent@rsareas where suitable real estate is moreylifeebe available, also compete against our
suburban, fithess-only models.

We also face competition from the increased pofiyland demand for private studios offering groupreise classes. The prevalence of
these smaller studios may compete against our twdiostype offerings, such as cycling, Yoga anétes, as well as our new BFX Studio, as
consumers may opt to use these competing studfodfitbtheir fitness needs.

In addition, large competitors could enter the arbaarkets in which we operate to open a chainud<in these markets through one, or
a series of, acquisitions.

Our trademarks and trade names may be infringedsappropriated or challenged by others.

We believe our brand names and related intellepiiggderty are important to our continued success S@£k to protect our trademarks,
trade names and other intellectual property byasieg our rights under applicable trademark arulydght laws. If we were to fail to
successfully protect our intellectual property tggfor any reason, it could have an adverse effiect
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our business, results of operations and finanaiadtlition. Any damage to our reputation could camnsenbership levels to decline and make it
more difficult to attract new members.

If we are unable to identify and acquire suitablées for new clubs, our revenue growth rate and fite may be negatively impacte

To successfully expand our business over the leng,twe must identify and acquire sites that meetsde selection criteria. In addition
to finding sites with the right geographical, demsgghic and other measures we employ in our seleptiocess, we also need to evaluate the
penetration of our competitors in the market. Weefaompetition from other health and fitness ceoparators for sites that meet our criteria
and as a result, we may lose those sites or wel cmuforced to pay higher prices for those sitewel are unable to identify and acquire sites
for new clubs on attractive terms, our revenuewgitaate and profits may be negatively impacteddifidnally, if our analysis of the suitabili
of a site is incorrect, we may not be able to recamur capital investment in developing and buidine new club.

We may experience prolonged periods of losses inreaently opened club and when we open new clubexisting markets our comparab
club revenue growth and our operating margins mag begatively impacted.

Upon opening a club, we typically experience atiahperiod of club operating losses. Enrolimewinirpre-sold memberships typically
generates insufficient revenue for the club taaiiit generate positive cash flow. As a resulteavrtlub typically generates an operating loss i
its first full year of operations and substantidiyer margins in its second full year of operasidhan a club opened for more than 24 months
These operating losses and lower margins will neglgtimpact our future results of operations. Thégative impact will be increased by the
initial expensing of pre-opening costs, which imiddegal and other costs associated with leasetinégns and permitting and zoning
requirements, as well as depreciation and amaidizatxpenses, which will further negatively impaat results of operations. We may, at our
discretion, accelerate or expand our plans to agenclubs, which may adversely affect results faparations.

We currently operate clubs throughout the NorthaadtMid-Atlantic regions of the United Statesthe case of existing markets, our
experience has been that opening new clubs macasiome memberships away from other clubs alrepdyated by us in those markets and
diminish their revenues. In addition, as a restiftew club openings in existing markets and becalder clubs will represent an increasing
proportion of our club base over time, our matuubd cevenue increases may be lower in future psribdn in the past.

Another result of opening new clubs is that oubabperating margins may be lower than they have héestorically while the clubs build
a membership base. We expect both the additionesbpening expenses and the lower revenue volumeadeaistic of newly opened clubs
affect our club operating margins at these newsclub

We are subject to government regulation, and chasge these regulations could have a negative effeatour financial condition and
results of operations.

Our operations and business practices are subjéetieral, state and local government regulatiathénvarious jurisdictions in which our
clubs are located, including, but not limited te following:

» general rules and regulations of the Federal TG&alamissior

» rules and regulations of state and local consun@egtion agencie

» state statutes that prescribe certain forms andgions of membership contra

» state statutes that govern the advertising, sal@nding and collection of membersh
» federal and state laws and regulations governingigy and security of information; a
» state and local health regulati

Any changes in such laws or regulations could tzameaterial adverse effect on our financial conditmd results of operations.

We could be subject to claims related to healthsafety risks at our clubs.

Use of our clubs poses some potential health etysatks to members or guests through physicattiexeand use of our services and
facilities, including exercise equipment. Claimghtibe asserted against us for injury sufferecobgleath of members or guests while
exercising at a club. We might not be able to sssftdly defend such claims. As a result, we might
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not be able to maintain our general liability iresute on acceptable terms in the future or maimstdével of insurance that would provide
adequate coverage against potential claims.

Depending upon the outcome, these matters mayaaneterial effect on our consolidated financialif@s, results of operations and
cash flows.

Security and privacy breaches may expose us talliigtand cause us to lose custome

Federal and state law requires us to safeguardustomers’ financial information, including credérd information. Although we have
established security procedures and protocol, defucredit card industry compliance proceduregratect against identity theft and the theft
of our customers’ financial information, our setyidnd testing measures may not prevent securigdires and breaches of our customers’
privacy may occur, which could harm our business.é¢xample, a significant number of our users mtevis with credit card and other
confidential information and authorize us to Hileir credit card accounts directly for our produantsl services. Typically, we rely on
encryption and authentication technology licensethfthird parties to enhance transmission secofigonfidential information. Techniques
used to obtain unauthorized access or to saboyatenss change frequently and are constantly ewplihese techniques and other advances
in computer capabilities, new discoveries in tieddfiof cryptography, inadequate facility securityother developments may result in a
compromise or breach of the technology used by usie of our vendors to protect customer data. Vg be unable to anticipate these
techniques or to implement adequate preventiveaxtive measures. Several recent, highly publiocilsd security breaches at other
companies have heightened consumer awareness adsbe. Further, a significant number of statgsire the customers be notified if a
security breach results in the disclosure of thensonal financial account or other informationdaidnal states and governmental entities are
considering such “notice” laws. In addition, otlpaiblic disclosure laws may require that materiausigy breaches be reported.

Any compromise of our security or that of our thirarty vendors or noncompliance with privacy orestlaws or requirements could he
our reputation, cause our members to lose confelenas, or harm our financial condition and, tfiere, our business. In addition, a party whc
is able to circumvent our security measures ora@kpladequacies in our security measures or thatothird party vendors, could, among
other effects, misappropriate proprietary informaticause interruptions in our operations or expesmbers to computer viruses or other
disruptions. We may be required to make signifieaqienditures to protect against security breachés remedy problems caused by any
breaches. Actual or perceived vulnerabilities meadlto claims against us. To the extent the mesisaken by us or our third party vendors
prove to be insufficient or inadequate, we may beeagubject to litigation or administrative sanctipwhich could result in significant fines,
penalties or damages and harm to our reputation.

Loss of key personnel and/or failure to attract anetain highly qualified personnel could make it me difficult for us to develop ou
business and enhance our financial performance.

We are dependent on the continued services ofemioismanagement team, including our Chief Exeeu@ficer and President, Daniel
Gallagher. We believe the loss of Mr. Gallagherlddwave a material adverse effect on us and oanfiial performance. Currently, we do not
have any long-term employment agreements with pecive officers, and we may not be able to attaad retain sufficient qualified
personnel to meet our business needs.

Disruptions and failures involving our informatiorsystems could cause customer dissatisfaction angeegkly affect our billing and othe
administrative functions.

The continuing and uninterrupted performance ofioformation systems is critical to our success. We a fully-integrated information
system to process new memberships, bill membeeskeim members and track and analyze sales and ership statistics, the frequency and
timing of member workouts, cross-club utilizatiomember life, value-added services and demograpbfidgs by member. This system also
assists us in evaluating staffing needs and progffenings. We believe that, without investing mhancements, this system was approaching
the end of its life cycle. Thus, in 2011, we betganprocess of replacing this system with a newesyshrough a multi-year phase in
implementation program which is expected to be deted in 2015. Correcting any disruptions or fakthat affect our proprietary system or
the new system, as it is implemented, could bécdiff time-consuming and expensive because wedvwoeéd to use contracted consultants
familiar with our system.

Any failure of our current system could also causé¢o lose members and adversely affect our busied results of operations. Our
members may become dissatisfied by any systemspdiign or failure that interrupts our ability togqwide our services to them. Disruptions or
failures that affect our billing and other admirasive functions could have an adverse effect aroperating results.
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Infrastructure changes are being undertaken tonacmaate our growth, provide network redundancytebehanage telecommunications
and data costs, increase efficiencies in operatodsmprove management of all components of ahrtieal architecture. Fire, floods,
earthquakes, power loss, telecommunications fa|umeeak-ins, acts of terrorism and similar eveotdd damage our systems. In addition,
computer viruses, electronic break-ins or otheilaingisruptive problems could also adversely dffaar sites. Any system disruption or
failure, security breach or other damage thatiintis or delays our operations could cause uss®heembers, damage our reputation, and
adversely affect our business and results of ojpesat

Our growth could place strains on our managementgoyees, information systems and internal controlhich may adversely impact our
business.

Future expansion will place increased demands omaministrative, operational, financial and othesources. Any failure to manage
growth effectively could seriously harm our busmebo be successful, we will need to continue tprisme management information systems
and our operating, administrative, financial andoamnting systems and controls. We will also neeiaim new employees and maintain close
coordination among our executive, accounting, fo@gmarketing, sales and operations functions. & pescesses are time-consuming and
expensive, increase management responsibilitiesliaed management attention.

Outsourcing certain aspects of our business couddult in disruption and increased costs.

We have outsourced certain aspects of our bustoghid party vendors that subject us to risks|uding disruptions in our business and
increased costs. For example, we have engagedpthities to host and manage certain aspects afatarcenter, information and technology
infrastructure and electronic pay solutions. Acaogty, we are subject to the risks associated tighvendor's ability to provide these services
to meet our needs. If the cost of these servicemi® than expected, if the vendor is not ableatodhe the volume of activity or perform the
quality of service that we expect, if we or the denare unable to adequately protect our datarfodnation is lost, if our ability to deliver o
services is interrupted, or if our third party veralface financial or other difficulties, then daursiness and results of operations may be
negatively impacted.

Our cash and cash equivalents are concentrated isnaall number of banks.

Our cash and cash equivalents are held, primamilg,small number of commercial banks. These dépasé not collateralized. In the
event these banks become insolvent, we would bleleima recover most of our cash and cash equivalgposited at the banks. Cash and ca:s
equivalents held in two commercial banks as of Demr 31, 2014 totaled $85.4 million. During 20Iany one month, this amount has beer
as high as approximately $118.0 million.

Regulatory changes in the terms of credit and dedatd usage, including any existing or future recatbry requirements, could have ¢
adverse effect on our business.

Our business relies heavily on the use of creditdebit cards in sales transactions. Regulatorpgdato existing rules or future
regulatory requirements affecting the use of cradit debit cards or the fees charged could impacténsumer and financial institutions who
provide card services. This may lead to an adviempact on our business if the regulatory changssltrén unfavorable terms to either the
consumer or the banking institutions.

Because of the capit-intensive nature of our business, we may havertour additional indebtedness or issue new equitgugities and, if
we are not able to obtain additional capital, oubitity to operate or expand our business may be aimpd and our results of operations
could be adversely affected.

Our business requires significant levels of capadlnance the development of additional sitesnfexwv clubs and the construction of our
clubs. If cash from available sources is insuffitier unavailable due to restrictive credit marketsif cash is used for unanticipated needs, we
may require additional capital sooner than antigigaln the event that we are required or chooseise additional funds, we may be unable tc
do so on favorable terms or at all. Furthermore,abst of debt financing could significantly incseamaking it cost-prohibitive to borrow,
which could force us to issue new equity securitiiewe issue new equity securities, existing shatéers may experience additional dilutior
the new equity securities may have rights, prefegeror privileges senior to those of existing hida# common stock. If we cannot raise fu
on acceptable terms, we may not be able to exeeuteurrent growth plans, take advantage of futymeortunities or respond to competitive
pressures. Any inability to raise additional capithen required could have an adverse effect orbasiness plans and operating results.
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We may incur rising costs related to constructiohrew clubs and maintaining our existing clubs. ¥We are not able to pass these cost
increases through to our members, our returns may ddversely affected.

Our clubs require significant upfront investmefibur investment is higher than we had plannedmag need to outperform our
operational plan to achieve our targeted return.céfeot assure that we can offset cost increasegtBasing our membership dues and othe
fees and improving profitability through cost effiocies.

We may be required to remit unclaimed property tates for unused, expired personal training session

We recognize revenue from personal training sesssrthe services are performed (i.e., when tteogeis trained). Unused personal
training sessions expire after a set, disclosegaf time after purchase and are not refundabledeemable by the member for cash. The
State of New York has informed us that it is coasitg whether we are required to remit the amoeceived by us for unused, expired
personal training sessions to the State of New “asrknclaimed property. As of December 31, 2014hadeapproximately $15.2 million of
unused and expired personal training session$iithhot been recognized as revenue and was recasdigferred revenue. We do not believe
that these amounts are subject to the escheatmabtndoned property laws of any jurisdiction, ilibhg the State of New York. However, it
is possible that one or more of these jurisdictiory not agree with our position and may claim thatmust remit all or a portion of these
amounts to such jurisdiction. This could have aemal adverse effect on our cash flows.

Our growth and profitability could be negatively ipacted if we are unable to renew or replace our @mt club leases on favorable terms,
at all, and we cannot find suitable alternate lodans.

We currently lease substantially all of our fitnekgb locations pursuant to long-term leases (galyet5 to 20 years, including option
periods). During the next five years, or the peffimm January 1, 2015 through December 31, 20&have leases for 25 club locations that
are due to expire without any renewal options,alowhich expire in 2015, and 48 club locatioret thre due to expire with renewal options.
For leases with renewal options, several of theowige for our unilateral option to renew for adaiital rental periods at specific rental rates
(for example, based on the consumer price indestated renewal terms already set in the leasdsdsmd on the fair market rate at the
location. Our ability to negotiate favorable teramsan expiring lease or to negotiate favorablmseon leases with renewal options, or
conversely for a suitable alternate location, caldgend on conditions in the real estate marketpedition for desirable properties and our
relationships with current and prospective landiamd may depend on other factors that are not withr control. Any or all of these factors
and conditions could negatively impact our revemuewth and profitability.

We have a stockholders rights plan which could detar prevent a change in control; implemented insponse to significant stock
accumulation and threatened proxy contest, which yrdivert resources and distract management.

On December 31, 2014, our Board adopted a stockhalghts plan (the “Rights Plan"yhe Rights Plan may cause substantial dilutic
a person or group that attempts to acquire our @Gompn terms that our Board does not believe aoaiirstockholders’ best interest. The
Rights Plan is intended to protect stockholdetthéevent of an unfair or coercive offer to acqaivatrol of the Company and to provide our
Board with adequate time to evaluate unsolicitddref The Rights Plan may prevent or make takeoweusisolicited corporate transactions
with respect to our Company more difficult, evestifickholders consider such transactions favorablesibly including transactions in which
stockholders might otherwise receive a premiuntHeir shares. For more information on the Righés Pplease see the Rights Agreement
dated December 31, 2014 filed as an exhibit toGaurent Report on Form 8-K filed January 2, 2015.

The Rights Plan was implemented in response to Bihé&rs Atlas Fund Il LP and HG Vora Special Oppoities Master Fund, Ltd.
and certain of their affiliates (collectively, “W&il/Vora”) accumulation of a significant positiorc¢arding to their filings with the SEC,
approximately 26%) of the outstanding shares ofdbmpany’s common stock and a letter dated Deceie2014 on behalf of Walsh/Vora
threatening to launch a proxy contest in the alsena settlement that provided them with a majaftthe seats on our board. The current
holdings of our common stock by Walsh/Vora havetriggered the Rights Plan at this time becaush shares or our Common Stock were
beneficially owned by them prior to the first publinnouncement of the adoption of the Rights Rfawvever, the acquisition by Walsh/Vora
of any additional shares of our common stock, sulifecertain exceptions set forth in the RightsPmay trigger the Rights Plan. On January
7, 2015, we received notice from Walsh/Vora of thriention to nominate six director candidatesdlarction to our Board at our 2015 annual
meeting of shareholders. If elected, the Walsh/\tam@inees would constitute a majority of our Bofmitbwing the 2015 Annual Meeting. A
proxy contest could require significant time angtion by management and our Board. Further, anggived uncertainties as to our future
direction and control could result in the loss ofgntial business opportunities and may make itendiéfficult to attract and retain qualified
personnel and business partners, any of which cdrsely affect our business and operating esult
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The outcome of our publicly announced process oékating strategic alternatives is uncertain, maptresult in a transaction or may
result in the disruption of our business.

In February 2015, our Board of Directors annourtbed it is evaluating strategic alternatives, inghg a possible sale of the Company,
and has retained Deutsche Bank Securities, Inasgist it in such process. While we intend to catepbur evaluation expeditiously, there i<
guarantee that the process will result in a sath@fCompany or other transaction. In addition,aumouncement that we are evaluating variou
strategic alternatives may make it more difficoltécruit, retain and motivate our employees, nayse disruption in our relationship with
vendors or members or may deter potential vendonsemnbers from entering in any business transacdtianembership with us until we have
announced a final outcome. The potential for aeffia transaction may divert the attention of mamagnt and any announcements or
speculation regarding the status or result of sacgss of evaluating strategic alternatives mageawlatility in our stock price. In the event
we decide to pursue into a strategic transactt@retis no assurance that such transaction widbb@pleted or will be successful.

We may have exposure to additional tax liabilities.

From time to time, we are under audit by federal lmcal tax authorities and we may be liable fadiddnal tax obligations and may
incur additional costs in defending any claims that/ arise. For example, as of December 31, 2tHr#in of our state and local tax returns
from years 2006 through 2012 were currently beixay@ned by certain state and local jurisdictiond #ris difficult to predict the final
outcome or timing of resolution of any particulaatter regarding these examinations. In particula@rreceived from the State of New York a
revised assessment related to tax years 2008-for $3.5 million, inclusive of $1.2 million afterest. We have subsequently received a re
for additional information from the State of New rKoAll of the information was submitted by Janu@@15. We continue to evaluate the
merits of the proposed assessment as new informbé&oomes available during continued discussiotfs the State of New York. We have not
recorded a tax reserve related to the proposedsmsat. It is difficult to predict the ultimatetoame of this or any other tax examination and
the result of any such tax examination could haweaterial adverse effect on our results of openatend financial condition.

Risks Related to Our Leverage and Our Indebtedness

On November 15, 2013, TSI, LLC entered into a $8T0illion senior secured credit facility (“2013 $@nCredit Facility”). The 2013
Senior Credit Facility consists of a $325.0 millienm loan facility (“2013 Term Loan Facility”), dra $45.0 million revolving loan facility
(2013 Revolving Loan Facility”). The 2013 Term Lo&acility matures on November 15, 2020, and thHE3ZRevolving Loan Facility matures
on November 15, 2018.

We may be negatively affected by economic condgionthe U.S. and key international markets.

We must maintain liquidity to fund our working ctgj service our outstanding indebtedness and é@aémvestment opportunities.
Without sufficient liquidity, we could be forced ¢uirtail our operations or we may not be able tspe new business opportunities. The
principal sources of our liquidity are funds genedafrom operating activities, available cash aashcequivalents and borrowings under our
$45.0 million 2013 Revolving Loan Facility. If ogarrent resources do not satisfy our liquidity riegments, we may have to seek additional
financing.

Economic conditions, both domestic and foreign, @iigct our financial performance. Prevailing eamimconditions, including
unemployment levels, inflation, availability of ciig energy costs and other macro-economic facémsyell as uncertainty about future
economic conditions, adversely affect consumer dipgrand, consequently, our business and resutip@fations.

Our leverage may impair our financial condition, @ahwe may incur significant additional debt.

We currently have a substantial amount of debifABecember 31, 2014, our total outstanding codatdid debt was $308.3 million. In
addition, as of December 31, 2014, under the 268 Ring Loan Facility there were no outstandingrbwings and outstanding letters of
credit issued totaled $3.0 million. The unutilizeattion of the 2013 Revolving Loan Facility as acdd@mber 31, 2014 was $42.0 million and
the available unutilized portion, based on the Canyfs total leverage ratio exceeding 4.50:1.00fd3ezember 31, 2014, was $11.3 million .
Our substantial debt could have important consetggerincluding:

e making it more difficult for us to satisfy our opditions with respect to our outstanding indebtest
» increasing our vulnerability to general adverseneooic and industry conditior

» limiting our ability to obtain additional finaimg to fund future working capital, capital expetndés, acquisitions of clubs and other
general corporate requirements;
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* requiring a substantial portion of our cash flisam operations for the payment of interest ondeist, which is variable on our 2013
Revolving Loan Facility and partially variable onr®2013 Term Loan Facility, and/or principal punsut excess cash flow
requirements and reducing our ability to use oshdbow to fund working capital, capital expendésrand acquisitions of new clubs
and general corporate requirements;

e increasing our vulnerability to interest ratecfiuations in connection with borrowings under 20t3 Senior Credit Facility, some of
which are at variable interest rates;

» limiting our ability to refinance our existing indeedness on favorable terms, or at all;
« limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our business and the industmghioh we operat
These limitations and consequences may placeais@npetitive disadvantage to other less-leveragetpetitors.

If new debt is added to our and our subsidiariestent debt levels, the related risks that we &eg turrently face could intensify.

The current debt under the 2013 Senior Credit Faigilhas a floating interest rate and an increaseiimterest rates may negatively impact
our financial results.

Interest rates applicable to our debt are expdctéldctuate based on economic and market fact@tsare beyond our control. In
particular, the unhedged portion of $148.3 milliohpur outstanding debt under our 2013 Senior iCFeatility as of December 31, 2014 has a
floating interest rate. Any significant increasemarket interest rates, and in particular the stesrh Eurodollar rates, would result in a
significant increase in interest expense on out,defiich could negatively impact our net income aadh flows.

The Company may be unsuccessful in its efforts tieetively hedge against interest rate changes am wariable rate debt.

In its normal operations, the Company is exposeadddket risk relating to fluctuations in intereatas. In order to minimize the negative
impact of such fluctuations on the Company’s césivs, the Company may enter into derivative finahgistruments, such as interest rate
swaps. The Company’s current interest rate swamgement is with one financial institution and asv&160.0 million of our current $308.3
million outstanding term loan principal balancetwiihe swap expiring on May 15, 2018. We are exptsededit risk if the counterparty to the
agreement is not able to perform on its obligatigxdditionally, a failure on our part to effectiyahedge against interest rate changes may
adversely affect our financial condition and resolt operations. We are required to record thaasteaate swap at its fair value. Changes in
interest rates can significantly impact the valatf the instrument resulting in non-cash changesir financial position.

Covenant restrictions under our indebtedness mamgitiour ability to operate our business and, in suan event, we may not have sufficient
assets to settle our indebtedness.

Our 2013 Senior Credit Facility and the agreemesitted thereto contain, among other things, cavisntiiat may restrict our ability to
finance future operations or capital needs or gage in other business activities and that may atngar ability and the ability of our restricted
subsidiaries to:

* incur debt

» pay dividends or make distributio

e purchase or redeem sta

* make investments and extend cre

* engage in transactions with affiliat

* engage in sallraseback transactio

e consummate certain asset s¢

» effect a consolidation or merger or sell, transfsise or otherwise dispose of all or substantallpf our assets; a
» create liens on our ass!
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The 2013 Senior Credit Facility provides for a fioal covenant in the situation where the totdlaatiion of the revolving loan
commitments (other than letters of credit up tb$&illion at any time outstanding) exceeds 25%hefaggregate amount of those
commitments. In such event, our subsidiaries ajeired to maintain a total leverage ratio of noagee than 4.50:1.00. While not subject to the
total leverage ratio covenant as of December 314 23 the Company’s only utilization of the 2013 &weing Loan Facility at that date was
$3.0 million of issued and outstanding lettersrefdit thereunder, because the Company’s total deeratio as of that date was in excess of
4.50:1.00, the Company is currently not able tbzatimore than 25% of the 2013 Revolving Loan RgcilThe Company will continue not to
be able to utilize more than 25% of the 2013 Rengl\t.oan Facility until it has a total leverageioatf no greater than 4.50:1.00.

Events beyond our control, including changes iregaineconomic and business conditions, may affectbility to meet certain financial
ratios under the 2013 Senior Credit Facility. Weyrba unable to meet those tests and the lenderglawge not to waive any failure to meet
those tests. A failure to satisfy these tests cboil our ability to obtain funds to pay dividends cause a default under the 2013 Senior Cred
Facility. If an event of default under the 2013 iBelCredit Facility occurs, the lenders could eliecterminate any and all outstanding undrawr
commitments to lend and declare all amounts outstarthereunder, together with accrued interedbetanmediately due and payable. If any
such event should occur, we might not have sufiticassets to pay our indebtedness and meet ouratiihigations, which would have a
material adverse effect on our business, finargabition and results of operations.

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item 2. Properties

On September 12, 2014, we completed the previarsipunced legal sale of our East 86th Street piypperan unaffiliated third-party,
which housed one of our New York Sports Clubs al$ agea retail tenant that generated rental inctomes. The gross proceeds associated
with the property sale was $85.7 million, whichlirtes $150,000 of additional payments to us. Caroamwith the closing of the transaction,
we leased back the portion of the property compgisiur health club. We expect to lease (“Initiahke”) the premises for at least 18 months
and then, upon notice from the purchaser/landkbiel |nitial Lease will terminate and we will vacale property while the purchaser/landlord
demolishes the existing building and the adjaceiitliimng and builds a new luxury, high-rise mulige building. In connection with vacating 1
property, we will enter into a new lease (“New Cluase”) for approximately 24,000 square feet anribw building for the purpose of
operating a health club upon completion of consiobacby the purchaser/landlord (which we expect taike approximately three and one-half
years). The term of the Initial Lease is 10 yeansl at the end of this initial term, we have twéiays at our sole discretion to renew the le.
the first for an additional 10 year period and eosel for an additional five year period (although @xpect that the purchaser/landlord will
exercise its right to early terminate the Initi@dse so that it may commence the constructioneafi¢hiv building). Under the Initial Lease (and
New Club Lease if entered into), the purchaserltzndchas agreed to pay us liquidated damages ifi¢heclub is not available by a certi
date. The latest date that the liquidated damagesgdvbegin to be paid would be April 13, 2020 aralid continue until the new club is
available. For accounting purposes, the naturbexd potential liquidated damages constitutes maintj involvement with the
purchaser/landlord’s development of the propertya&kesult of this continuing involvement, the dakeseback transaction is currently require
to be accounted for as a financing arrangemengrratian as a completed sale. Under this treatm&nhave included the proceeds received a:
a financing arrangement on our balance sheet. Exgepayments under the Initial Lease and the Xidwb Lease, we do not expect to make
any cash payments to the purchaser/landlord wiheet to the building financing arrangement. Werded a taxable (for federal and state
income tax purposes) gain on the sale of the ptppéid made estimated tax payments during 2014isrrégard. As of December 31, 2014,
total financing arrangement was $83.4 million, whig net of $1.8 million to be held in escrow far dormer tenant and $500,000 to remain ir
escrow to be released to us six months after tteeafasale.

We lease the remainder of our fitness clubs putsiedong-term leases (generally 15 to 20 yeaduiing options). In the next five
years, or the period from January 1, 2015 througbenber 31, 2019, we have leases25 club locations that are due to expire withowt an
renewal options, three of which are due to expir2d15, and 48 club locations that are due to expith renewal options. Renewal options
include terms for rental increases based on thewroar price index, fair market rates or statedwahéerms already set in the lease
agreements.

We lease approximately 26,400 square feet of offfzace in New York City and have smaller regiorifites in Fairfax, VA and Boston,
MA, for administrative and general corporate pugsos
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We lease approximately 82,000 square feet in ElrdsfdY for the operation of a centralized laundagifity for New York Sports Clubs
offering towel service, and for construction andipqent storage. This space also serves as coepaffate space. Total square footage relate
to the laundry facility is 42,000 and total squiretage related to the corporate office and warsb@pace is 40,000.
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The following table provides information regardiogr club locations:

Location

Address

Date Opened or Management Assumed

New York Sports Clubs:

Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Manhattan
Bronx, NY
Brooklyn, NY
Brooklyn, NY
Brooklyn, NY
Brooklyn, NY
Brooklyn, NY
Brooklyn, NY
Brooklyn, NY

151 East 86th Street
61 West 62nd Street
614 Second Avenue
151 Reade Street
1601 Broadway

349 East 76th Street
248 West 80th Street
502 Park Avenue

117 Seventh Avenue South
303 Park Avenue South
30 Wall Street

1635 Third Avenue
575 Lexington Avenue
278 Eighth Avenue
200 Madison Avenue
2162 Broadway

633 Third Avenue

217 Broadway

23 West 73rd Street
34 West 14th Street
503-511 Broadway
1372 Broadway

300 West 125th Street
19 West 44th Street
128 Eighth Avenue
2527 Broadway

3 Park Avenue

10 Irving Place

230 West 41st Street

1221 Avenue of the Americas

200 Park Avenue

232 Mercer Street
225 Varick Street

885 Second Avenue
301 West 145th Street
1400 5th Avenue

75 West End Avenue
28-30 Avenue A

1601 Bronxdale Avenue
110 Boerum Place
1736 Shore Parkway
179 Remsen Street
324 Ninth Street

1630 E 15th Street
7118 Third Avenue
439 86th Street
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January 1977
July 1983

July 1986
January 1990
September 1991
April 1994

May 1994
February 1995
March 1995
December 1995
May 1996
October 1996
November 1996
December 1996
February 1997
November 1997
April 1998
March 1999
April 1999

July 1999

July 1999
October 1999
May 2000
August 2000
December 2000
August 2001
August 2001
November 2001
November 2001
January 2002
December 2002
September 2004
August 2006
February 2007
October 2007
December 2007
April 2013
Future opening
November 2007
October 1985
June 1998

May 2001
August 2003
August 2007
May 2004

April 2008
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Scarsdale, NY
Mamaroneck, NY

Croton-on-Hudson, NY

Larchmont, NY
Nanuet, NY
Great Neck, NY
East Meadow, NY
Commack, NY
Oceanside, NY
Long Beach, NY
Garden City, NY
Huntington, NY
Syosset, NY
West Nyack, NY
Woodmere, NY
Hartsdale, NY
Somers, NY
White Plains, NY
Hawthorne, NY
Dobbs Ferry, NY
Smithtown, NY
Carmel, NY
Hicksville, NY
New Rochelle, NY
Deer Park, NY
Garnerville, NY
Stamford, CT
Danbury, CT
Stamford, CT
Greenwich, CT
Westport, CT
West Hartford, CT
Princeton, NJ
Matawan, NJ
Marlboro, NJ
Ramsey, NJ
Mahwah, NJ
Springfield, NJ
Colonia, NJ
Somerset, NJ
Hoboken, NJ

696 White Plains Road
124 Palmer Avenue

420 South Riverside Drive
15 Madison Avenue

58 Demarest Mill Road
15 Barstow Road

625 Merrick Avenue

6136 Jericho Turnpike
2909 Lincoln Avenue

265 East Park Avenue
833 Franklin Avenue

350 New York Avenue

49 Ira Road

3656 Palisades Center Drive
158 Irving Street

208 E. Hartsdale Avenue
Somers Commons, 80 Route 6
4 City Center

24 Saw Mill River Road
50 Livingstone Avenue

5 Browns Road

1880 Route 6

100 Duffy Avenue

Trump Plaza, Huguenot Street
455 Commack Avenue
20 W. Ramapo Road

106 Commerce Road

38 Mill Plain Road

1063 Hope Street

6 Liberty Way

427 Post Road, East

65 Memorial Road

301 North Harrison Street
450 Route 34

34 Route 9 North

1100 Route 17 North

7 Leighton Place

215 Morris Avenue

1250 Route 27

120 Cedar Grove Lane
59 Newark Street

Location Address Date Opened or Management Assumed
Brooklyn, NY 242 Bedford Avenue Future opening
Brooklyn, NY 147 Greenpoint Avenue June 2014
Queens, NY 69-33 Austin Street April 1997
Queens, NY 153-67 A Cross Island Parkway June 1998
Queens, NY 2856-2861 Steinway Street February 2004
Queens, NY 8000 Cooper Avenue March 2007
Queens, NY 99-01 Queens Boulevard June 2007
Queens, NY 39-01 Queens Blvd December 2007
Staten Island, NY 300 West Service Road June 1998

October 1995
January 1997
January 1998
December 1998
May 1998

July 1989
January 1999
January 1999
May 1999

July 1999

May 2000
February 2001
March 2001
February 2002
March 2002
September 2004
February 2005
September 2005
January 2006
June 2008
December 2007
July 2007
November 2008
March 2008
March 2009
October 2011
January 1998
January 1998
November 1998
May 1999
January 2002
November 2007
May 1997

April 1998

April 1998

June 1998
June 1998
August 1998
August 1998
August 1998
October 1998



West Caldwell, NJ 913 Bloomfield Avenue April 1999
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Location

Address

Date Opened or Management Assumed

Jersey City, NJ
Newark, NJ
Ridgewood, NJ
Westwood, NJ
Livingston, NJ
Hoboken, NJ
Englewood, NJ
Clifton, NJ
Montclair, NJ
Butler, NJ

East Brunswick, NJ
Bayonne, NJ
Boston Sports Clubs:
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Allston, MA
Wellesley, MA
Andover, MA
Lynnfield, MA
Lexington, MA
Franklin, MA
Cambridge, MA
West Newton, MA
Waltham, MA
Watertown, MA
Newton, MA
Somerville, MA
Medford, MA
Westborough, MA
Woburn, MA
Wayland, MA
Providence, RI
Washington Sports Clubs:
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.

147 Two Harborside Financial Center

1 Gateway Center
129 S. Broad Street
35 Jefferson Avenue
39 W. North Field Rd.
210 14th Street
34-36 South Dean Street
202 Main Avenue

56 Church Street
1481 Route 23

300 State Route 18
550 Route 440 North

1 Bulfinch Place

201 Brookline Avenue
361 Newbury Street
350 Washington Street
505 Boylston Street
560 Harrison Avenue
695 Atlantic Avenue
One Beacon Street

197 Clarendon Street
800 Boylston Street
100 Summer Street
540 Gallivan Road

95 Washington Street
15 Gorham Street

140 Great Plain Avenue
307 Lowell Street

425 Walnut Street

475 Bedford Avenue
750 Union Street

625 Massachusetts Avenue
1359 Washington Street
840 Winter Street

311 Arsenal Street

135 Wells Avenue

1 Davis Square

70 Station Landing
1500 Union Street

300 Presidential Way
Wayland Town Center
131 Pittman Street

214 D Street, S.E

1835 Connecticut Avenue, N.W .

2251 Wisconsin Avenue, N.W
1211 Connecticut Avenue, N.W
1345 F Street, N.W

783 Seventh Street, N.W

June 2002
October 2002
June 2003
June 2004
February 2005
December 2006
December 2006
March 2007
January 2008
January 2009
March 2009
December 2011

August 1998
June 2000
November 2001
February 2002
January 2006
February 2006
October 2006
May 2013

May 2013

May 2013

May 2013
October 2014
November 2014
July 1997

July 2000

July 2000

July 2000

July 2000

July 2000
January 2001
November 2001
November 2002
January 2006
August 2006
December 2007
December 2007
September 2008
December 2008
November 2014
December 2008

January 1980
January 1990
May 1994
July 2000
August 2002
October 2004



Washington, D.C. 3222 M Street, N.W February 2005
Washington, D.C. 14th Street, N.W June 2008
North Bethesda, MD 10400 Old Georgetown Road June 1998
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Location

Address

Date Opened or Management Assumed

Silver Spring, MD
Bethesda, MD
Fairfax, VA
Clarendon, VA

Philadelphia Sports Clubs:
Philadelphia, PA
Philadelphia, PA
Chalfont, PA
Philadelphia, PA
Radnor, PA

Swiss Sports Clubs:
Basel, Switzerland
Zurich, Switzerland
Basel, Switzerland

BFX Studio:
Manhattan, NY
Manhattan, NY
Manhattan, NY
Boston, MA

8506 Fenton Street

6800 Wisconsin Avenue
11001 Lee Highway

2700 Clarendon Boulevard

220 South 5th Street

2000 Hamilton Street

One Highpoint Drive

1735 Market Street

555 East Lancaster Avenue

St. Johanns-Vorstadt 41
Glarnischstrasse 35
Gellerstrasse 235

555 Sixth Avenue
30 Broad Street
1231 Third Avenue
699 Boylston Street
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November 2005
November 2007
October 1999

November 2001

January 1999
July 1999
January 2000
October 2000
December 2006

August 1987
August 1987
August 2001

July 2014

Future opening
Future opening
Future opening
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Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings

On February 7, 2007, in an action styled White&ldtlaza Realty, LLC v. TSI, LLC et al., the lardlof one of TSI, LLC’s former
health and fitness clubs filed a lawsuit in statartagainst it and two of its health club subsid®alleging, among other things, breach of |
in connection with the decision to close the clotated in a building owned by the plaintiff andded to a subsidiary of TSI, LLC, the tenant,
and take additional space in a nearby facilitydedsy another subsidiary of TSI, LLC. Followingetermination of an initial award, which
TSI, LLC and the tenant have paid in full, the lond appealed the trial coustaward of damages, and on August 29, 2011, aticukliawarc
(amounting to approximately $900,000) (the “Addité Award”), was entered against the tenant, whizh recorded a liability. Separately,
TSI, LLC is party to an agreement with a third-gatéveloper, which by its terms provides indemaitien for the full amount of any liability
of any nature arising out of the lease described@hincluding attorneys’ fees incurred to enfditoe indemnity. As a result, the developer
reimbursed TSI, LLC and the tenant the amount efitfitial award in installments over time and agpeed to be responsible for the payment
of the Additional Award, and the tenant has recdradeeceivable related to the indemnification fa Additional Award. The developer and
landlord are currently litigating the payment of thdditional Award and judgment was entered agdhestieveloper on June 5, 2013 in the
amount of approximately $1.0 million, plus intereé3h June 13, 2013, the developer filed a notiaesahtent to appeal the judgment. The
appeal remains pending. TSI, LLC does not belieigprobable that TSI, LLC will be required to play any amount of the Additional Awar

On or about October 4, 2012, in an action stylede¥al abbe, et al. v. Town Sports International, |plaintiff commenced a purported
class action in New York State court on behalf efspnal trainers employed in New York State. Laistseeking unpaid wages and damages
from TSI, LLC and alleges violations of various yigions of the New York State labor law with regpecpayment of wages and TSI, LLC's
notification and record-keeping obligations. Theu@das bifurcated class and merits discovery. ddaalline for the completion of pre-class
certification document discovery was December ®142and the deadline for a class certification orots March 2, 2015. While it is not
possible to estimate the likelihood of an unfavtealutcome or a range of loss in the case of aawanéble outcome to TSI, LLC at this time,
TSI, LLC intends to contest this case vigorously.

In addition to the litigation discussed above, @@npany is involved in various other lawsuits, laiand proceedings incidental to the
ordinary course of business, including personairinjemployee relations claims and landlord-tembsputes. The results of litigation are
inherently unpredictable. Any claims against thenpany, whether meritorious or not, could be timestoning, result in costly litigation,
require significant amounts of management timerasdit in diversion of significant resources. Thsults of these other lawsuits, claims and
proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty. Chmpany establishes accruals for loss contingeneieen it has determined that a loss is
probable and that the amount of loss, or rangess, Ican be reasonably estimated. Any such acatakdjusted thereafter as appropriate to
reflect changes in circumstances. We currentlyelbelthat the ultimate outcome of such lawsuitspdaand proceedings will not, individually
or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effeour consolidated financial position, result®pérations or liquidity. However, depending
on the amount and timing, an unfavorable resolutiosome or all of these matters could materiaffga our future results of operations in a
particular period.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Relatedo8kholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equitgcirities
Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock currently trades on The NASDAQbRaldMarket, under the symbol CLUB. The followindle sets forth, for each
quarterly period in the last two fiscal years, ltiigh and low sales prices (in dollars per shareusfcommon stock as quoted or reported on
The NASDAQ Global Market:

High Low
Year ended December 31, 2014:
First Quarter $ 14.7C % 8.14
Second Quarter $ 8.7¢ $ 5.6t
Third Quarter $ 7.3t $ 4.01
Fourth Quarter $ 7.0C $ 5.37
Year ended December 31, 2013:
First Quarter $ 11.11 % 8.91
Second Quarter $ 11.37 % 9.31
Third Quarter $ 13.0: % 10.8:
Fourth Quarter $ 14.9¢ $ 11.5C

Holders

As of February 19, 2015, there were approximat@l Rolders of record of our common stock. Thereaaditional holders who are not
“holders of record” but who beneficially own stoitkough nominee holders such as brokers and bgaefittrustees.

Dividends Policy

On each of November 26, 2013, March 5, 2014 and 8u2014 the Company paid a quarterly cash didadr$0.16 per share to
common stock holders. The cash dividends were fibgeavailable cash on hand.

The board of directors does not currently intendag dividends. The declaration and payment ofdéinds to holders of our common
stock by us, if any, are subject to the discretibour board of directors. Our board of directoill teke into account such matters as general
economic and business conditions, our strategitsplaur financial results and condition, contratiegal and regulatory restrictions on the
payment of dividends by us and our subsidiariessarnth other factors as our board of directors noegicder to be relevant. If we decide to pay
a dividend, we may rely on cash on hand at TSI gkl which was $41.2 million at December 31, 2@ distributions received from our
subsidiaries to provide the funds necessary tadpagiends on our common stock. The existing cragieement of TSI, LLC restricts the
ability of our subsidiaries to pay cash distribngdo TSI Holdings in order for TSI Holdings to peash dividends except (a) in an amount,
when combined with certain prepayments of indet#sdnof up to $35.0 million, subject to pro forneanpliance with a total leverage ratio of
no greater than 4.50:1.00 and no default or evede¢fault existing or continuing under the credjteéement, and (b) an additional amount b
on excess cash flow, such additional amounts sutgjgro forma compliance with a total leverageoraf less than 4.00:1.00 and no default or
event of default existing or continuing under thedit agreement.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
We did not purchase any equity securities durimgftiurth quarter ended December 31, 2014 .

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

We did not sell any securities during the year dridecember 31, 2014 that were not registered uhdeBecurities Act of 1933, as
amended.
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Stock Performance Graph

The graph depicted below compares the annual prgeichange in our cumulative total stockholdarrretvith the cumulative total
return of the Russell 2000 and the NASDAQ compdaitiéces.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among Town Sports International Holdings, Inc, the NASDAQ Composite Index,
and the Russell 2000 Index
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* $100 invested on 12/31/09 in stock or index]uding reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year egddecember 31.

December 31,

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Town Sports International Holdings, Ir$ 100.0C $ 1742 $ 31548 % 596.7¢ $ 835.4¢ $ 352.1¢
NASDAQ Composite $ 100.0C $ 1176, $ 118.7C % 139.0C $ 196.8! $ 223.7¢
Russell 2000 $ 100.0C $ 126.8¢ $ 121.5¢ $ 141.4: % 196.3¢ $ 205.9¢

Notes :
(1) The graph covers the period from Decembe2809 to December 31, 2014

(2) The graph assumes that $100 was investee andnket close on December 31, 2009 in our comnuuk sin the Russell 2000 and in the
NASDAQ composite indexes and that all dividendseneinvested

(3) A special cash dividend of $3.00 per shareamfimon stock was declared by our board of direcinrSBlovember 16, 2012 to shareholders
of record on November 30, 2012, paid on DecembgePQ12. On each of November 26, 2013, March 5, 20i1June 6, 2014, we paid a
quarterly cash dividend of $0.16 per share to comstock holders.

(4) Stockholder returns over the indicated period sthowlt be considered indicative of future stockhold¢urns

(5) We include a comparison against the Russé@lD2cause there is no published industry or liAeuginess index for our industry and we
do not have a readily definable peer group thpuldicly traded.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set fartkany of our previous or future filings under tBecurities Act of 1933, as amended, o
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendattight incorporate by reference this Annual Répor Form 10-K or future filings made
by the Company under those statutes, the Stockrir@hce Graph is not deemed filed with the Seesrdind Exchange Commission, is not
deemed soliciting material and shall not be deemedrporated by reference into any of those pritings or into any future filings made by
the Company under those statutes, except to tkataktat the Company specifically incorporates sinébrmation by reference into a previous
or future filing, or specifically requests that $uioformation be treated as soliciting material,aach case under those statutes.

ltem 6. Selected Financial Data

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA
(In thousands, except share, per share, club and mmbership data)

The selected consolidated balance sheet datalsceinber 31, 2014 and 2013 and the selected cdagaldi statement of operations and
cash flow data for the years ended December 34,2013 and 2012 have been derived from our auditedolidated financial statements
included elsewhere herein. The selected consotidzd&ance sheet data as of December 31, 2012,@12010 and the selected consolidated
statement of operations and cash flow data foy#aes ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 have beeadizom our audited consolidated
financial statements not included herein. Othea @atd club and membership data for all periodseprtesl have been derived from our
unaudited books and records. Our historical resuésnot necessarily indicative of results for &rtyre period. You should read these selectec
consolidated financial and other data, togetheh #ie accompanying notes, in conjunction with thiatiagemens Discussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” isecof this Annual Report and our consolidated flicial statements and the related notes
appearing at the end of this Annual Report.

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues $ 453,84: $ 470,22! % 478,98. $ 466,94. $ 462,38
Operating expenses:
Payroll and related 177,00¢ 174,89: 181,63: 177,52 185,58
Club operating 192,71t 179,68: 178,95( 176,46: 174,13!
General and administrative 31,35: 28,43: 24,13¢ 25,79¢ 28,77:
Depreciation and amortization 47,30" 49,09¢ 49,39: 51,53¢ 52,20:
Insurance recovery related to damaged property
) — (3,199 — — —
Impairment of fixed assets 4,56¢ 714 3,43¢ — 3,25¢
Impairment of goodwill 137 — — — —
Operating income 752 40,59¢ 41,43 35,61¢ 18,44(
Loss on extinguishment of debt(2) 49: 75C 1,01C 4,86¢ —
Interest expense, net of interest income 19,03¢ 22,61¢ 24,59% 24,12) 21,01z
Equity in the earnings of investees and rental
income (2,402) (2,459 (2,467 (2,39)) (2,139
Loss (income) before (benefit) provision for
corporate income taxes (16,379 19,69: 18,28 9,01« (434)
(Benefit) provision for corporate income taxes(3) 52,61 7,367 6,321 2,69¢ (149
Net (loss) income $ (68,989 $ 12,32  $ 11,96¢ $ 6,31 $ (290
(Loss) earnings per share:
Basic $ (2.8) % 051 $ 051 $ 0.2¢ $ (0.0
Diluted $ (289 % 050 $ 05C $ 0271 $ (0.0
Dividends declared per common share(4) $ 03z $ 0.1¢ $ 3.0C $ — % =
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As of December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 93,45. $ 73,59¢ $ 37,75¢  $ 47,88( $ 38,801
Working capital surplus (deficit) 52,28( 27,83( (11,82% (18,31) (11,926
Total assets 409,83 413,79. 404,77( 450,40: 474,69:
Long-term debt, including current installments 299,87: 314,90¢ 310,33¢ 288,99: 316,51:
Total stockholders’ (deficit) equity (118,08) (43,51¢) (55,496 354 (6,945
Net debt(5) 214,83. 251,40: 277,98! 243,87! 277,71

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Cash Flow Data:
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ 4,75¢ % 67,38¢ $ 60,05: $ 74,888 $ 51,23¢
Investing activities (42,059 (30,60¢6) (22,490 (30,907 (22,039
Financing activities 57,50: (97%) (47,727) (35,349 (1,76%)
Other Data:
Non-cash rental income, net of non-cash re
expense (5,399 (5,697) (4,037 (3,667) (5,557)
Non-cash share-based compensation expense 1,911 2,20¢ 1,30¢ 1,41z 1,33¢

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Club and Membership Data:
New clubs opened 4 — — 2 —
Clubs acquired — 6 — — —
Clubs closed (8) 4) — 2 (D]
Wholly-owned clubs operated at end of
period 15€ 16C 15¢ 15¢ 15¢
Total clubs operated at end of period(6) 15¢ 162 16C 16C 16C
BFX Studio at end of period 1 — — — —
Total members at end of period(7) 484,00( 497,00( 510,00 523,00( 493,00(
Restricted members at end of period(8) 20,00( 41,00( 38,00( 38,00( 17,00(
Comparable club revenue (decrease) increase
9 4.2% 1.9% 1.6% 1.8% (4.9%
Revenue per weighted average club
(in thousands)(10) $ 2,84: $ 2,971 $ 3,032 $ 293¢ $ 2,881
Average revenue per member(11) $ 941 $ 934 $ 92z % 91t % 947
Average joining fees collected per membe
(12) $ 65 $ 59 $ 57 $ 55 % 37
Annual attrition(13) 44.2% 41.€% 41.(% 39.9% 41.€%

(1) The $3,194 of insurance recovery related toatged property in the year ended December 31, 20ated to property damaged by
Hurricane Sandy.

(2) The $493 loss on extinguishment of debt reedrfdr the year ended December 31, 2014 is contpabthe write-off of unamortized debt
issuance costs and debt discount, in connectidntivé fourth quarter 2014 mandatory prepaymentl8f500 on the 2013 Term Loan
Facility.
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3)

(4)

()
(6)

(7)
(8)

(9)

The $750 loss on extinguishment of debt recordethi® year ended December 31, 2013 is compriséukeofrite-off of net deferred
financing costs and debt discount in connectio Wit November 15, 2013 debt refinancing. The prdsdérom the 2013 Senior Credit
Facility were used to repay the remaining outstaggirincipal amounts of the 2011 Senior Credit Kgof $315,743 plus accrued and
unpaid interest.

The $1,010 loss on extinguishment of debt recofdethe year ended December 31, 2012 is comprisadbd64 write-off of net deferred
financing costs and debt discount related to thgu&ti22, 2012 debt repricing and a write-off of 84 net deferred financing costs and
debt discount in connection with the August 28,20aluntary prepayment of $15,000 on our term Ifzanility.

The $4,865 loss on extinguishment of debt recofdethe year ended December 31, 2011 resulted fhendebt refinancing on May 11,
2011. The proceeds from the 2011 Senior CreditliBasiere used to repay the remaining outstandirigcipal amount of the 2007 Senior
Credit Facility of $164,000 and the remaining cansting principal amount of the Senior Discount Nai€$138,450. We incurred $2,538
of call premium on the Senior Discount Notes togethith the write-off of $2,327 of net deferreddimcing costs related to the debt
extinguishment.

Corporate income taxes for the year ended bee 31, 2014 includes a non-cash charge of $60r8&8ed to a tax valuation
allowance.Corporate income taxes for the year efdsxdmber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 includes incambdnefits totaling $16, $483
and $343, respectively, related to the correctiomcoounting errors. See Note 16 — Corporate Incmees to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements in this Annugbdtefor further details.

In April 2014, February 2014 and November 20h& board of directors of the Company declareattguy cash dividends of $0.16 per
share. The quarterly dividend was discontinuedhénsecond quarter of 2014.

In the year ended December 31, 2012, the boardexdtdrs of the Company declared a special casteatid of $3.00 per share.
Net debt represents the total principal balander-term debt outstanding, net of cash and cash eauits

Includes wholly-owned and partly-owned clulist included in the total club count are locatidimat are managed by us in which we do
not have an equity interest. These managed sitegdi® three managed university locations, and senamaged sites, including four
managed sites acquired in connection with our Rit@equisition in May 2013.

Represents members at wholly-owned and partiged club:

Restricted members primarily include students aagdhers. This membership allows for club usagesiticted times, at a discount to o
memberships offered. The Company is currently éngiocess of introducing the HVLP strategy to nodsts clubs which will eliminate
the Restricted Membership.

Total revenue for a club is included in congide club revenue increase (decrease) beginnirigeofirst day of the thirteenth full calendar
month of the club’s operation.

(10)Revenue per weighted average club is calculat¢otalsrevenue divided by the product of the totatber of clubs and their weighted

average months in operation as a percentage qfetted.

(11)Average revenue per member is total revenue frowllydowned clubs for the period divided by the agz number of memberships from

wholly-owned clubs for the period, including resteid memberships, summer student and summer paoberships, where average
number of memberships for the period is derivedibiding the sum of the total memberships at the @heach month during the period
by the total number of months in the period.

(12)Average joining fees collected per member is caleul as total initiation and processing fees dibibg the number of new members,

excluding pre-sold, summer student and summer peohberships and including Restricted Membershigsttegan in April 2010, during
each respective year.

(13)Annual attrition is calculated as total member ésstor the year divided by the average monthly nmemabunt over the year excluding pre-

sold, summer student and summer pool membershipmaltuding our Restricted Memberships that begafygril 2010, during each
respective year.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion and anglysour financial condition and consolidated réswf operations in conjunction
with the “Selected Consolidated Financial and OtBata” section of this Annual Report and our condaled financial statements and the
related notes appearing at the end of this Annwegdrt. In addition to historical information, thdiscussion and analysis contains forward-
looking statements that involve risks, uncertamted assumptions (sedFORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS' discussion). Our actual
results may differ materially from those anticipia these forward-looking statements as a redutiecotain factors, including, but not limited
to, those set forth in “Item 1A. Risk Factors” bfg¢ Annual Report.

Overview

Based on the number of clubs, we are one of thilirigaowners and operators of fitness clubs in tbeieast and Mid-Atlantic regions of
the United States (“U.S.”) and one of the largésets club owners and operators in the U.S. A3eafember 31, 2014, the Company, through
its subsidiaries, operated 158 fitness clubs ("€ubnder our four key regional brand names; “NeavkySports Clubs” (NYSC), “Boston
Sports Clubs” (BSC), “Philadelphia Sports ClubsS(® and “Washington Sports Clubs” (WSC). As of Dmber 31, 2014, these clubs
collectively served approximately 484,000 memb¥fe.owned and operated a total of 107 clubs undetNlew York Sports Clubs” brand
name within a 120-mile radius of New York City db@ecember 31, 2014, including 37 locations in Maittdn where we are the largest fitness
club owner and operator. We owned and operatedu®3 in the Boston region under our “Boston Sp@itgs” brand name, 13 clubs (two of
which are partly-owned) in the Washington, D.Cioegunder our “Washington Sports Clubs” brand name five clubs in the Philadelphia
region under our “Philadelphia Sports Clubs” braathe as of December 31, 2014. In addition, we ovamedoperated three clubs in
Switzerland as of December 31, 2014. We employliloa brand names for our clubs to create an inaagkeatmosphere consistent with the
local community and to foster recognition as a loeawork of quality fitness clubs rather than éigr@al chain.

We develop clusters of clubs to serve densely @pdimajor metropolitan regions and we service gpoghlations by clustering clubs
near the highest concentrations of our target ousts’ areas of both employment and residence. Dbsare located for maximum
convenience to our members in urban or suburbasactose to transportation hubs or office or femnters. Our members include a wide age
demographic covering the student market to theactiature market. For many years, our target mavkstfocused on the population that has
annual income levels of between $50,000 and $180@&0the "mid-value" segment of the market. In£0&e began to expand our target
market to include members that prefer a lower gomnbership, and have introduced a new pricingeggyato most of our clubs called High
Value Low Price ("HVLP").

Monthly dues at these clubs are offered at a retipdee and advertising cost is increased. The H¥irt®egy offers the same current
level of service and amenities but at a lower ppieit giving us an opportunity to recapture mastedre and compete against low cost gyms
that have opened in our markets. We will offer athly Passport Membership at approximately 25 otctulys. We believe our offerings are
more compelling than other low cost operators bgeeave include exciting group exercise classesptdpe line equipment, pools and courts
with price of membership, when available.

The sales process has been greatly simplifiedeatlttbs operating under the HVLP strategy. All olubployees have the ability to sell a
membership, however the majority of membershipsal@ by a membership consultant. Prior to intraclyi¢he HVLP pricing strategy, the
Company offered Passport Membership, Core Memher&uold Membership and Restricted Membership. Th&Pistrategy introduces the
Premier Membership, which is a month-to-month miffaring the same level of quality service currgmtifered under the Core Membership,
but at a significantly reduced rate and higherifarfees. The Premier Membership allows memberisniteld use of a single "home club" with
access to use other non-home clubs for an additimage fee. The Passport Membership continuefedotbhe same current level of service
and amenities, which allows members to use anyaany time. In the HVLP strategy, the Core Mershgr, Gold Membership and
Restricted Membership will no longer be offered arililbe converted to either Passport Membershiprmmier Membership as described
below.

As of December 31, 2014, 71 clubs were under tg pricing strategy with the majority of clubs atlog this strategy in the fourth
quarter of 2014. We expect most of our clubs tgatee HVLP strategy by May 31, 2015, with approately 25 clubs offering only Passport
Memberships. The HVLP clubs are expected to expegi@arnings pressure in the near-term relatexistirey members opting for lower dues
as well as new members enrolling at lower ratesvél@r, we believe this strategy will improve resuhd increase market share for our br.
in the long-run from the increased membership sad&sme.

We believe that our strategy of clustering clubsvites significant benefits to our members andwalas to achieve strategic operating
advantages. In each of our markets, we have desetlopisters by initially opening or acquiring clubs
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located in the more central urban markets of tiggoreand then branching out from these urban cemtesuburbs and neighboring
communities.

As the fitness industry continues to see a riggojpularity of private studio offerings, we have digeir extensive industry experience to
offer our own private studio brand, BFX Studio 2014, we introduced our first BFX Studio with atsgening in July and a grand opening in
September. We currently plan to open three additiBfrX Studio units in 2015. This three-dimensiordry studio brand takes advantage of
the rise in consumer demand for studio experierBEX. Studio includes three unique offerings: RidgpRblic, which is indoor cycling, Prive
Sessions for personal training and Master Clasa f@riety of specialty group exercise classes. Bxtlio is staffed with high caliber
instructors in each of the three core offerings tedstudios are designed to appeal to all agesihnasperience levels of metropolitan, active
healthy lifestylers. This studio concept requirppraximately 9,000 to 12,000 square feet of spa&cesfudio which compares to the
approximately 26,000 square feet aggregate avaiagef our Clubs.

Revenue and Operating Expenses

We have two principal sources of revenue:

* Membership revenu¢ Our largest sources of revenue are dues invgusimonthly membership fees, annual maintenages énd
joining fees paid by our members. In addition, whect usage fees on a per visit basis subjeceédk mnd otpeak hourly restrictior
depending on membership type. These dues and degzrised 78.3% of our total revenue for the yealeenDecember 31, 2014 .
We recognize revenue from membership dues in thetmeshen the services are rendered. Approximat®&¥ 8f our members pay
their monthly dues by Electronic Funds TransfeizBl, while the balance is paid annually in advai¢e recognize revenue from
joining fees over the estimated average membelibiy

» Ancillary club revenue For the year ended December 31, 2014 , we gwtel5.5% of our revenue from personal trainind) an
4.9% of our revenue from other ancillary programd services consisting of programming for childrgignature classes, Small
Group Training and other member activities, as aslsales of miscellaneous sports products. Wéneento grow ancillary club
revenue by building on ancillary programs suchwaspersonal training membership product and owbfesed Small Group Training
programs.

We also receive revenue (approximately 1.3% oftotal revenue for the year ended December 31, 2@bn the rental of space in our
facilities to operators who offer wellness-relatéfiérings, such as physical therapy and juice Haraddition, we sell in-club advertising and
sponsorships and generate management fees froamnceltb facilities that we do not wholly own. Wis@ collect laundry related revenue for
the laundering of towels for third parties. We rdfethese revenues as Fees and other revenue.

In September 2014, we completed the previously anced legal sale of our East 86th Street properantunaffiliated thirgsarty, whick
housed one of our New York Sports Clubs as wedl etail tenant that generated rental income foBesause the transaction is characterizec
for accounting purposes as a financing rather ¢hsale, the rental payments are treated as intemdbe financing arrangement. Further, we
will continue to account for the rental income frams retail tenant until the tenant’s lease isni@ated. Rental income from this retail tenant
was approximately $2.0 million for each of the yeanded December 31, 2014 and 2013. Refer to NoteBlilding Financing Arrangement
to our consolidated financial statements for furihetails.

Our performance is dependent on our ability to icomatly attract and retain members at our clubs.é&fgerience attrition at our clubs
and must attract new members in order to maintaimeembership and revenue levels. In the yearsceBedeember 31, 2014 and 2013, our
attrition rate was 44.3% and 41.9%, respectivehe hcreased attrition rate primarily reflectedréased competition and the effect of eight
club closures in 2014 as compared to four clubwkssin 2013.

Our operating and selling expenses are comprisédtbffixed and variable costs. Fixed costs inclcidé and supervisory and other
salary and related expenses, occupancy costsdinglmost elements of rent, utilities,
housekeeping and contracted maintenance expesses]las depreciation. Variable costs are primaslated to payroll associated with
ancillary club revenue, membership sales compeansadvertising, certain facility repairs and ciupplies.

General and administrative expenses include cekltng to our centralized support functions, sastaccounting, insurance, information
and communication systems, purchasing, memberae$atiegal and consulting fees and real estateldpment expenses. Payroll and related
expenses are included in a separate line itemendhsolidated statement of operations and arscloided in general and administrative
expenses. Approximately 40% of general and admatige expenses relate directly to club operationkiding phone and data lines, compt
maintenance, business licenses, office and sapgsiss, general liability insurance, recruiting @raining.

36




Table of Contents

As clubs mature and increase their membership fiaed,costs are typically spread over an increasavenue base and operating
margins tend to improve. Conversely, when our mesitip base declines, our operating margins aretivefjaimpacted.

Our primary capital expenditures relate to the tmiesion or acquisition of new club facilities andgrading and expanding our existing
clubs. The construction and equipment costs vasgdban the costs of construction labor, as wethagplanned service offerings and size and
configuration of the facility. We perform routineprovements at our clubs and partial replacemetiteofitness equipment each year for wt
we are currently budgeting approximately 3% to S%rojected annual revenue. Expansions of certilifies are also performed from time
to time, when incremental space becomes availabkcoeptable terms and utilization and demandhffdcility dictate. In this regard, facility
remodeling is also considered where appropriate.

Operating income is impacted by certain chargeshanefits which can fluctuate year to year. In 2044 recorded fixed asset
impairment charges totaling $ 4.6 million relatedattotal of nine clubs, including five underpenfiing clubs, three clubs which were closed in
the second half of 2014 and one club which wiltbaverted into a managed location in February 2013013, operating income included
benefits of $3.2 million resulting from insurana®geeds collected primarily in connection with pedy damaged by Hurricane Sandy and
$424,000 related to the recognition of out of pgman-cash rental income, partially offset by fixasset impairment charges totaling $714,00(
In 2012, we recorded fixed asset impairment chaigf@sing $3.4 million, of which $3.2 million reled to write-offs of fixed assets for four
clubs that sustained damages from Hurricane Sandygithe fourth quarter of 2012.

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
($ amounts in thousands)

Operating income $ 752 $ 40,59¢ $ 41,43

(Decrease) increase over prior period (98.1)% (2.0% 16.2 %
Net income $ (68,989 % 12,32 $ 11,96¢

(Decrease) increase over prior period (659.9% 3.L% 89.E%
Cash flows provided by operating activities $ 4,75¢ $ 67,38¢ $ 60,05

(Decrease) increase over prior period (92.9% 12.2% (19.9%

Historically, we have focused on building or acingrclubs in areas where we believe the markendetserved or where new clubs are
intended to replace existing clubs at their leagaration. Based on our experience, a new clubgeaaxperience a significant increase in
revenues during its first three years of operatisit reaches maturity. Because there is relatittlly incremental cost associated with such
increasing revenue, there is a greater proportoingrease in profitability. We believe that theeeues and operating income of our immature
clubs will increase as they mature. In contrasgérafing income margins may be negatively impaatettié near term by our planned new club
openings. In most cases, we are able to transfey wiathe members of closed clubs to other clubsaty enhancing overall profitability.
During 2014, we opened four clubs and one BFX $tudit. We also plan to open one NYSC and three BEXlio units in 2015.

As of December 31, 2014 , 156 of our fitness clubse wholly-owned by us and our consolidated fi@ngtatements include the
operating results of all such clubs. Two locationg/ashington, D.C. were partly-owned by us, with profit sharing percentages
approximating 20% (after priority distributions)cad5%, respectively, and are treated as uncongetidsfiliates for which we apply the equ
method of accounting. In addition, we provide mamagnt services at locations where we do not hawgaity interest which include three
fitness clubs located in colleges and universiaesl seven managed sites, including four manadesi atquired in connection with our Fitcorp
acquisition in May 2013.
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Comparable Club Revenue

We define comparable club revenue as revenue s¢ ttlabs that were operated by us for over 12 nsoatld comparable club revenue
increase (decrease) as revenue for the 13th madtthareafter as applicable as compared to the pan of the prior year.

Comparable Club Revenue
Increase (Decrease)

Quarter Full-Year

2012

First Quarter 4.5%

Second Quarter 2.1%

Third Quarter (a) 1.C%

Fourth Quarter (1.1)% 1.€%
2013

First Quarter (2.9%

Second Quarter (1.7%

Third Quarter (1.7%

Fourth Quarter (a) (1.9% (1.89%
2014

First Quarter (4.7%

Second Quarter (4.5Y%

Third Quarter (4.5%

Fourth Quarter (3.9% (4.2%

(a) Comparable club revenue for the third quaste&2012 excludes $1.2 million of additional feesl ather revenue realized in connection
with the termination of a long-term marketing agament with a third party in-club advertiser. Conatée club revenue for the fourth
quarter of 2013 excludes $424,000 of out of peresdal income recognized resulting from the coroecof an accounting error.

Key determinants of comparable club revenue ine®édecreases) are new memberships, member retestis, pricing and ancillary
revenue increases (decreases).

The decline in the comparable club revenue in thethh quarter of 2012 was in part due to the impa¢turricane Sandy on our busine
including decreases in personal training and angiltevenues and a net loss of members. The cobipatiaib revenue declines experienced
since 2013 are primarily due to the impact of mersthip declines. We experienced an overall memiss ¢d 13,000 in each of 2013 and 2C

Historical Club Count

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Wholly-owned clubs operated at beginning of period 16C 15¢ 15¢
New clubs opened 4 — —
Clubs acquired — 6 —
Clubs closed (8 4 —
Wholly-owned clubs operated at end of period 15€ 16C 15¢
Partly-owned clubs operated at end of period 2 2 2
Total clubs operated at end of period(1)(2) 15¢ 162 16C

(1) Includes wholly-owned and partbywned clubs. Not included in the total club cout lacations that are managed by us in which weal
have an equity interest. These managed sites im¢hrde managed university locations, and severagahsites, including four managed s
acquired in connection with our Fitcorp acquisitinrMay 2013.

(2) Excludes one BFX Studio opened in the thirdrtpraof 2014.
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Consolidated Results of Operations
The following table sets forth certain operatingedas a percentage of revenue for the periodsatetic

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Revenues 100.C % 100.C % 100.( %
Operating expenses:

Payroll and related 39.C 37.2 37.¢

Club operating 42.F 38.2 37.4

General and administrative 6.9 6.C 5.C

Depreciation and amortization 10.4 10.t 10.:

Insurance recovery related to damaged property — (0.7) —

Impairment of fixed assets 1.C 0.2 0.7
Operating income 0.2 8.€ 8.7
Loss on extinguishment of debt 0.1 0.1 0.2
Interest expense 4.2 4.8 5.2
Equity in the earnings of investees and rentalrimeo (0.5 (0.5 (0.5
Income before provision for corporate income taxes (3.6 4.2 3.8
Provision for corporate income taxes 11.€ 1.€ 1.2
Net (loss) income (15.2)% 2% 2.5%

Year ended December 31, 2014 compared to year endedcember 31, 2013
Revenue
Revenue (in thousands) was comprised of the foligor the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013
Revenue % Revenue Revenue % Revenue % Variance
Membership dues $ 343,18 75.€% $ 358,76 76.5% (4.9%
Joining fees 12,04« 2.7% 14,39: 3.C% (16.9%
Membership revenue 355,22¢ 78.2% 373,15: 79.2% (4.8%
Personal training revenue 70,33¢ 15.5% 66,36 14.1% 6.C %
Other ancillary club revenue 22,30 4.% 24,72( 5.2% (9.8%
Ancillary club revenue 92,64: 20.2% 91,083 19.% 1.7%
Fees and other revenue 5,971 1.3% 5,98¢ 1.3% (0.2%
Total revenue $ 453,84 100.% $ 470,22! 100.(% (3.5)%

Total revenue decreased $16.4 million , or 3.5%6 tHie year ended December 31, 2014 compared tgetireended December 31, 2013
as a result of decreases in membership revenuéh&gear ended December 31, 2014 , revenue dedragproximately $19.2 million at our
clubs opened or acquired prior to December 31, 2@h2bined with the decrease of revenue relatedrgocate sales and $4.6 million at clubs
that closed subsequent to December 31, 2012. Tieeseases were partially offset by a $7.5 millicréase in revenue from our clubs and
BFX Studio that were opened or acquired subsedoddecember 31, 2012.

Membership dues revenue decreased $15.6 millitimeiiyear ended December 31, 2014 compared to Hreepeled December 31, 2013
primarily driven by a decline in membership. Thexall member loss of 13,000 in each of 2014 and@28adyely contributed to the decline in
membership and membership dues.

Joining fees revenue decreased $2.3 million iryéee ended December 31, 2014 compared to the pdadeéDecember 31, 2013,
primarily reflecting a decline in membership salBse decrease was partially offset by the effe¢heflower estimated average membership
life of 22 months during each of the quarters af£0sersus 25 months and 24 months for the threghmeriods ended March 31, 2013 and
June 30, 2013, respectively, and 23 months fos¢itend half of 2013.
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The lower amortizable life in the current year pdriesulted in higher joining fees revenue recagmias joining fees were amortized over a
shorter estimated average membership life.

Personal training revenue increased $4.0 milliothényear ended December 31, 2014 compared tcetireended December 31, 2013 ,
driven by increased pricing on our multi-sessiorspeal training membership products as well as@eed interest in those products.

Other ancillary club revenue decreased $2.4 milliothe year ended December 31, 2014 comparecttgetir ended December 31, 2013
driven primarily by a decline in revenue from oyoo&ts Club for Kids and Small Group Training prags

Comparable club revenue decreased 4.2% in theeyed December 31, 2014 compared to the prior MeEmberships at our
comparable clubs were down 3.1%, the price of o@sdnd fees were down 0.5%, and the combined effamcillary club revenue, joining
fees and other revenue were down 0.6%.

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses (in thousands) were comprist#eedbllowing for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 $ Variance % Variance

Payroll and related $ 177,008 $ 174,89: $ 2,11¢ 1.2%
Club operating 192,71t 179,68: 13,03: 7.3%
General and administrative 31,35 28,43: 2,921 10.2%
Depreciation and amortization 47,30° 49,09¢ (1,792 (3.6%
Insurance recovery related to damaged property — (3,199 3,19¢ 10C %
Impairment of fixed assets 4,56¢ 714 3,85¢ 539.¢%
Impairment of goodwiill 137 — 137 N/A

Operating expenses $ 453,090 $ 429,627 $ 23,46 5.5 04

Operating expenses increased $23.5 million , &5.5 the year ended December 31, 2014 compargztprior year. The operating
expenses comparison was impacted by $3.2 millidnsefrance proceeds received in 2013 in conneetiimproperty damaged by Hurricane
Sandy which reduced 2013 operating expenses, aasveh increased fixed asset and goodwill impaitrabarges of $4.0 million in 2014.
Separate from these items, operating expensesseneb16.3 million , or 3.8% , $10.7 million of whirelated to our newly opened clubs and
BFX Studio. The remaining increase primarily refégtgeneral cost escalations, including increasitias costs, and higher marketing
expenses due to the conversion to the HVLP strétatjyer described below.

Payroll and related Payroll and related expenses for the yeargbadeember 31, 2014 increased $2.1 million , o%l,Zompared to
the prior year. The increase related to 2013 arid 2penings, including the BFX Studio, was appratity $4.1 million. This increase was
offset by the decrease related to 2013 and 20bAathsures of $1.9 million.

As a percentage of total revenue, payroll andedlekpenses increased to 39.0% in the year endsshiber 31, 2014 from 37.2% in the
year ended December 31, 20

Club operating Club operating expenses increased $13.0 mitho7.3% compared to the year ended December03B, 2This
increase was principally attributable to the follog:

» Rent and occupancy expenses increased $6.2millhis increase included $4.7 million relatedet@ses that commenced for newly
opened and future clubs in 2013 and 2014, includingnew BFX Studio units, as well as $2.4 milliarincreased occupancy
expenses at our mature clubs. The current yeagaserwas also driven by a prior-year period netedse of $790,000 related to three
early lease terminations in 2013 and the writeebthe remaining deferred rent at two of those fioces. These increases were
partially offset by a decrease of $1.7 million tethto clubs closed in 2014. Of this amount, $1lilan was a net occupancy gain
related to the 2014 club closures which includesafig payments to landlords and the write-offs efedred rent at clubs with early
terminations.

» Utilities expense increased $2.3 million in fle@r ended December 31, 2014 compared to theywarprincipally due to higher
energy costs. Energy costs were negatively impdntatie severe cold experienced in our marketsdutie first quarter of 2014.
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» Marketing expenses increased $2.0 million inythar ended December 31, 2014 compared to theywarprincipally due to
increased advertising spend at locations convettinge HVLP pricing strategy.

* Repair and maintenance expenses increased $lidhrim the year ended December 31, 2014 comparele prior year, reflecting an
increase in overall club maintenance, in partiguigpairs of heating, ventilation and air conditignsystem.

As a percentage of total revenue, club operatimgeses increased to 42.5% in the year ended Dec&hp2014 from 38.2%n the yea
ended December 31, 2013 .

General and administrative General and administrative expense increaédrillion , or 10.3% , in the year ended Decengfer
2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2ZIMi8 increase was primarily due to increasesciensing fees related to the
implementation of our new club operating systerapgdroximately $1.4 million and general liabilitysiwrance expense of $567,000. We also
experienced increased professional fees of appairin$845,000 and administrative club closure ezpe of $262,000. These increases wer
partially offset by a decrease of $324,000 in dohuisition related fees from those incurred inythar ended December 31, 2013.

As a percentage of total revenue, general and ashngitive expenses increased to 6.9% in the yededdecember 31, 2014 from 6.0%
in the prior year.

Depreciation and amortization In the year ended December 31, 2014 comparttetyear ended December 31, 20#i@8preciation ar
amortization expense decreased $1.8 million ,8%3. due to a decline in our depreciable fixed tHsase and certain fixed asset write-offs in
the last half of 2013.

Insurance recovery related to damaged propertyin the year ended December 31, 2013, we delle®3.2 million of insurance cash
proceeds related primarily due to property damdgeHurricane Sandy. There were no such proceediscted in the year ended December
2014.

Impairment of fixed assets In the year ended December 31, 2014, we recoad impairment loss of $4.6 milliam fixed assets relat
to a total of nine clubs, including five underpenfing clubs, and threglubs which were closed and one club we expecvhwert to a managt
location in February 2015. In the year ended Deearih, 2013, we recorded fixed asset impairmentgesatotaling $714,000 related to three
underperforming clubs.

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt

In the year ended December 31, 2014, loss on exthment of debt was $493,000 , comprised of theewaff of unamortized debt
issuance costs and debt discount in connectionthvtiNovember 2014 mandatory prepayment of $13llfomon the 2013 Term Loan
Facility. This mandatory payment was related toshle of the East 86th Street property pursuattitdderms of the 2013 Senior Credit Facility
as described in the Liquidity and Capital Resousssgion. In the year ended December 31, 2013 dieextinguishment of debt was $750,000
comprised of the write-off of net deferred finargicosts and debt discount related to the debtaeéimg in November 2013.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased by $3.6 million in #s¢ gnded December 31, 2014 compared to the ydadébecember 31, 2013 ,
primarily due to lower interest rates resultingirthe November 15, 2013 refinancing, which weredpty approximately 125 basis points on
the non-hedged debt principal and 80 basis pomthe hedged debt principal.

Provision for Corporate Income Taxes

We recorded income tax expense of $52.6 milliorinduthe year ended December 31, 2014, which ind&&8.4 million (net of the
elimination of federal effect of state deferredes)to recognize a full valuation allowance agdihstUS net deferred tax assets. For year €
December 31, 2013, we had recorded a tax provisi&7.4 million. Our 2014 and 2013 effective tatesawere 321% and 37% in the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectivelar&epfrom the impact of valuation allowance, ot effective tax rate was 48%. Our
effective tax rates for 2014 and 2013 were favgrahpacted by tax benefits derived from the capingirance arrangement by approximately
7% and 5%, respectively. Additionally, our effeetirate was adversely impacted to 369% in conneetiinrecording a valuation allowance
against U.S. deferred tax assets during the yesedebBecember 31, 2014.

As of December 31, 2014, we have a net deferretighitity of $11.6 million as there is a full vation allowance recorded against the
U.S. net deferred tax assets. The state net ddfeaxdiability balance as of December 31, 201833 million. In assessing the realizability of
deferred tax assets, we evaluate whether it is it@ly than not (more than 50%) that
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some portion or all of the deferred tax assetshdlrealized. A valuation allowance, if needed oedithe deferred tax assets to the amount
expected to be realized. The ultimate realizatiodederred tax assets is dependent upon the géreddtfuture taxable income in those peri

in which temporary differences become deductibl&/@nnet operating loss carry forwards can bezagili We assess all positive and negative
evidence when determining the amount of the nedrded tax assets that are more likely than noeteehlized. This evidence includes, but is
not limited to, prior earnings history, scheduledarsal of taxable temporary differences, tax glamstrategies and projected future taxable
income. Significant weight is given to positive amehative evidence that is objectively verifiable.

As of December 31, 2014, we are not in a three geaulative loss position. However, we are projédtebe in a cumulative loss
position during the three year period ending in&eber 31, 2015, which was considered to be a gignif piece of negative evidence. We
determined that it is appropriate to conclude thate are losses that are projected in the neardae to the conversion to the HVLP strategy,
which includes increased marketing spend and lomambership revenue during initial months of conegrsWe believe the conversion to the
HVLP strategy will significantly increase membershi the HVLP clubs in future periods and relatezbme. However, because the accoutr
guidance for income taxes considers a projectidntofe earnings inherently subjective, it doesgaty significant weight to overcome the
objectively verifiable evidence of cumulative losse recent years. Based on the weighting of abigilavidence, both positive and negative
evidence, most notably the projected three yeamtatwe loss, we recorded a $60.4 million non-celslirge to income tax expense to establis
a full valuation allowance against our U.S. netediefd tax assets. Although recognition of the vadaeallowance for our net deferred tax as
is a non-cash charge, it did have a direct negatipact on net loss and shareholder’s deficit fierquarter and fiscal year ended December 3
2014.

In recording the valuation allowance, deferredltalilities associated with indefinite lived intabte assets generally cannot be used as
source of income to realize deferred tax assets avitefinitive loss carry forward period. We do aotortize goodwill for book purposes but
have amortized goodwill with tax basis for tax pses. The deferred tax liability recorded at Decan®i, 2014 relates to the tax effect of
differences between the book and tax basis of gdlithat is not expected to reverse until some fimde future period.

The following state and local jurisdictions areremtly examining our respective returns for thergeéadicated: New York State (2006
through 2012), New York City (2006, 2007, and 20@8)d the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (2009,)2@t0March 26, 2014, we
received from the State of New York a revised asvest related to tax years 2006-2009 for $3.5 aniJlinclusive of $1.2 million of interest.
We have subsequently received a request for additinformation from the State of New York. All tife information was submitted by
January 2015. We continue to evaluate the meritseoproposed assessment as new information becoraéable during continued
discussions with the State of New York. We haveraobrded a tax reserve related to the proposesssent. It is difficult to predict the final
outcome or timing of resolution of any particulaatter regarding these examinations. An estimathefeasonably possible change to
unrecognized tax benefits within the next 12 mowtrsnot be made.

In 2014, we filed Form 3115, Application for CharigéAccounting Method (“Application”), with the IR&questing a change in
accounting for the treatment of landlord contribn8. Accordingly, we reduced our unrecognized &neffits by $12.7 million for the landlord
contributions positions taken in prior years. Taduction in unrecognized tax benefits didn’t affeat effective tax rate since the position
related to a temporary difference; however, we gaczed a tax benefit of $334,000 primarily relatedhe reversal of accrued interest.

The results for the year ended December 31, 2GIBimatlude the correction of errors that resultedn increase in tax benefits for
corporate income taxes and a related increasefémrdd tax assets in our consolidated statemeapeifations and consolidated balance sheet,
respectively. In the fourth quarter of 2013, weniiféed corrections related to temporary differenaefixed assets for state depreciation
resulting in the recognition of an income tax béreff$225,000. Also, in the fourth quarter of 20%& identified corrections related to
temporary differences in landlord allowances rasglin the recognition of out of period expensé&209,000 for a net benefit to the provision
for corporate income taxes of $16,000 in the yeded December 31, 2013.
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Year ended December 31, 2013 compared to year endedcember 31, 2012
Revenue
Revenue (in thousands) was comprised of the foligvor the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012
Revenue % Revenue Revenue % Revenue % Variance
Membership dues $ 358,76: 76.5% $ 366,04« 76.4% (2.00%
Joining fees 14,39: 3.(% 11,59t 2.4% 24.1%
Membership revenue 373,15: 79.2% 377,63¢ 78.€% (1.2%
Personal training revenue 66,36" 14.1% 65,64 13.7% 1.1%
Other ancillary club revenue 24,72( 5.2% 29,89 6.2% (17.9%
Ancillary club revenue 91,08 19.0% 95,53¢ 20.(% 4.07%
Fees and other revenue 5,98t 1.5% 5,80¢ 1.2% 3.1%
Total revenue $ 470,22 100.(% $ 478,98: 100.(% (1.9%

Total revenue decreased $8.8 million, or 1.8%tHeryear ended December 31, 2013 compared to #reepeled December 31, 2012 ¢
result of decreases in both membership revenuaacitlary club revenue.

The revenue for 2012 was impacted by the effectéusficane Sandy on our business during the fogutrter of 2012 as a result of lost
operating days. At the height of the storm, 13bwf160 clubs were closed with 16 clubs that reedhiclosed for over a week, one club that
permanently closed and one club that reopened aelber 2013. While it is very difficult to estimdte impact of the storm given the
prolonged disruption in most of our markets, wéneste that revenue for 2012 was negatively impabtedpproximately $1.0 million as a
result of the hurricane.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, revenueatsxt&8.5 million as a result of a decrease in evafgbe club revenue and $3.9
million related to the closure of four clubs and temporary closure of one club due to damages Hamicane Sandy (club reopened in late
December 2013). Revenue for 2012 also includedcheftigrom an acceleration of in-club advertisimyenue which added approximately $1.2
million to fees and other revenue, while 2013 rexedid not have such a benefit. The effect of thegenue decreases were partially offset by
a $4.5 million increase in revenue resulting frdma acquisition of new clubs during 2013.

Membership dues revenue decreased $7.3 millioneryéar ended December 31, 2013 compared to theydad December 31, 2012
driven primarily by the decline in membership lesvelhich accounts for approximately $12.0 milliorttodé decrease. Increased pricing offset
the decrease in membership levels for approxim#&#ly million. The impact of Hurricane Sandy cdmtitied to an overall member loss of
12,000 during the fourth quarter of 2012. The lomember base as we started 2013 combined withditiéanal loss of 13,000 members
during 2013 largely contributed to the decline iemibership and membership dues.

Joining fees revenue increased $2.8 million inys&r ended December 31, 2013 compared to the pdadéDecember 31, 2012. The
increase in joining fees was, in part, due to fifieceof the lower estimated weighted average mestiie life of 24 months for unrestricted
members during the year ended December 31, 20h#ared to 28 months during the year ended Dece81he2012. The lower amortizable
life in effect during 2013 resulted in higher jaoigifees revenue recognition as joining fees werertied over a shorter estimated average
membership life.

Personal training revenue increased $726,000 iggheended December 31, 2013 compared to theeypel@d December 31, 2012. This
increase was driven, in part, by the effect ofiagincrease effective September 1, 2013 coupléul tive success of our personal training
membership product which was launched in June 2dttlsingle session membership product offerings fanther expanded in 2012 and 2!
with multi-session personal training membershipdpigis. After experiencing a 3.4% year-over-yeatidedn personal training revenue during
the first half of 2013, personal training revenneréased 6.3% in the second half of 2013 with taird fourth quarter personal training reve
yearover-year increases of 5.0% and 7.8%, respectively

Other ancillary club revenue decreased $5.2 milliothe year ended December 31, 2013 comparecttpetir ended December 31, 2012
driven primarily by a decline in revenue from oyno#&ts Club for Kids programs and Small Group Tragni
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Fees and other revenue increased $181,000 in #reepeled December 31, 2013 compared to the yeadddelcember 31, 2013.
Excluding the $424,000 out of period revision iragieg 2013 rental revenue and the $1.2 million fieftem the acceleration of in in-club
advertising revenue in the year ended Decembe2@IL2, fees and other revenue for the year endedrbleer 31, 2013 increased
approximately $957,000 driven by higher laundryier revenue and increases in club management fees.

Comparable club revenue decreased 1.8% in theeyekad December 31, 2013, excluding the $1.2 midiccelerated iub advertising
revenue recognized in the third quarter of 2012miderships at our comparable clubs were down 2.8%tencombined effect of ancillary
club revenue, initiation fees and other revenueatesed 0.1% which was partially offset by a 1.1@6éase in the price of our dues and fees.

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses (in thousands) were comprist#eedbllowing for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 $ Variance % Variance

Payroll and related $ 174,89: % 181,63. $ (6,73¢) (3.7%
Club operating 179,68: 178,95( 733 0.4%
General and administrative 28,43 24,13¢ 4,29: 17.€%
Depreciation and amortization 49,09¢ 49,39: (292 (0.6)%
Insurance recovery related to damaged property (3,199 — (3,199 N/A
Impairment of fixed assets 714 3,43¢ (2,722) (79.9%

Operating expenses $ 429,62 $ 437,54t $ (7,927) (1.8%

Operating expenses decreased $7.9 million, or 1i8%e year ended December 31, 2013 comparecktpritr year. Total months of
club operation increased 0.3%, remaining relativiaycompared to the previous year. The princgralers of the decrease in operating
expenses are described below:

Payroll and related Payroll and related expenses for the yeare&Bidember 31, 2013 decreased $6.7 million, or 3cé¥mpared to
the year ended December 31, 2012. The prior ygaoland related expenses included a $2.5 milpagroll bonus payment made during the
fourth quarter of 2012 in connection with a spedigldend payment in December 2012 compared toyeofldonus payment of $126,000
made during the fourth quarter of 2013 in connectidith a regular dividend payment in December 201® decrease in payroll and related
expenses was also due to decreases in club coromdsand bonuses related to the decline in revemdielecreases in management incentive
bonuses.

As a percentage of total revenue, payroll andedlakpenses decreased to 37.2% in the year enaeanber 31, 2013 from 37.9% in t
year ended December 31, 20

Club operating Club operating expenses increased $733,000486 compared to the year ended December 31, 2@h2nly due to
the $782,000 increase in rent and occupancy expeReamt and occupancy increased $1.8 million frleenatcquisition of new clubs and one
club scheduled to open in 2014 where the lease¢gheammenced in October 2013. Rent and occupammnses also increased $1.2 milliol
our existing clubs, net of a $254,000 decreas¢ee® the reduction of rental space at one lonafibiese increases were offset by a decrease
of $2.3 million from the closure of four clubs ande club that was temporarily closed due to Hungc&andy that recently reopened in
December 2013.

As a percentage of total revenue, club operatiqgeses increased to 38.2%the year ended December 31, 2013 from 37.4%dryéa
ended December 31, 2012.

General and administrative General and administrative expense increade®lrillion, or 17.8%, in the year ended Decemter2®1:
compared to the year ended December 31, 2012. Tega $2.0 million increase in insurance expethse,in part to favorable loss reserve
adjustments in the prior year, as well as an $&8Bifcrease in consulting and computer maintenarpense related to the implementation of
our new club operating system. Phone and datadilated expenses also increased by $492,000 duenisi to transition costs related to the
conversion of our communication lines to a VOIPduhsystem. General and administrative expenséeipdar ended December 31, 2013 als
includes $326,000 of fees related to our club aitjons in Manhattan and Boston and includes apprately $216,000 of consulting expenses
related to our new BFX Studio concept.
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Depreciation and amortization In the year ended December 31, 2013 comparttetyear ended December 31, 2012, depreciation a
amortization expense was relatively flat.

Insurance recovery related to damaged propertyin the year ended December 31, 2013, the Comngallected $3.2 million of
insurance cash proceeds related primarily duedpgsty damaged by Hurricane Sandy. There were clo gtoceeds collected in the year
ended December 31, 2012.

Impairment of fixed assets In the year ended December 31, 2013, we recddiided asset impairment charges totaling $714r8G0ed
to three underperforming clubs. In the year endedeinber 31, 2012, we recorded fixed asset impairoterges totaling $3.4 million,
comprised of a $239,000 impairment charge relaiezhe underperforming club and $3.2 million of adiddial impairments related to the write-
down of fixed assets at four clubs that sustaimeei® damages from Hurricane Sandy.

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt

In the year ended December 31, 2013, loss on axthment of debt was $750,000 comprised of theevaif of net deferred financing
costs and debt discount related to the debt refingrin November 2013. In the year ended DecembgP@12, loss on extinguishment of debt
was $1.0 million. The loss on extinguishment oftdeas comprised of a $464,000 write-off of net defd financing costs and debt discount
related to the August 2012 debt repricing and &ewoff of $546,000 of net deferred financing caatsl debt discount in connection with the
August 28, 2012 voluntary prepayment of $15.0 willon our term loan facility.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased by $2.0 million in d& gnded December 31, 2013 compared to the ydaddhecember 31, 2012 primal
due to the lower additional interest expense reizeghin 2013 compared to 2012. In 2013, we incuadditional interest expense of $1.2
million related to the fees incurred in the delfin@ncing in November 2013 as described below.0h2 we incurred additional interest
expense of $3.0 million related to the repricingeaoment in August 2012 and a further amendmenbivelhber 2012.

Provision for Corporate Income Taxes

We recorded a provision for corporate income ta{e®7.4 million and $6.3 million for the years eddeecember 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Our 2013 and 2012 effective tax rafe€37% and 35% in the years ended December 3B a0d 2012, respectively, were
favorably impacted by the expected benefits fromaayptive insurance arrangement.

The State of New York has had been conducting dit atiour income tax returns for the tax years@€@trough 2012. As disclosed in
the Companys 2013 consolidated financial statements, the $tateed a proposed assessment dated January #3c2&B.8 million, inclusiv:
of $1.2 million of interest. For the year ended &raber 31, 2014, the proposed assessment was seh#iggavised in March 2014 to $3.5
million, inclusive of $1.2 million in interest. Wigere also under audit for the same period by tlye @iNew York and that audit continues to
remain in discovery phase. The years from 2010Qutiind2012 remain open for the City of New York. Waitinue to evaluate the merits of the
proposed assessment as new information becomdaldgaivhen we meet the state authorities. We haveetorded a tax reserve related tc
proposed assessment. Due to the limited availplofitnformation as of December 31, 2013, an edtnad the reasonably possible change to
unrecognized tax benefits within the next 12 mowththe reporting date could not be made.

The results for the year ended December 31, 2GiSBiatluded the correction of errors that resuiltedn increase in tax benefits for
corporate income taxes and a related increasefénrdd tax assets in our consolidated statemeopefations and consolidated balance sheet,
respectively. In the fourth quarter of 2013, wenitifeed corrections related to temporary differenaefixed assets for state depreciation
resulting in the recognition of an income tax b&mef$225,000. Also, in the fourth quarter of 20%8 identified corrections related to
temporary differences in landlord allowances rasglin the recognition of out of period expens&209,000 for a net benefit to the provision
for corporate income taxes of $16,000 in the yeded December 31, 2013.

The results for the year ended December 31, 204@da the correction of temporary differences tieatilted in an increase in benefit for
corporate income taxes and a related increasefémrdd tax assets in the Company’s consolidatddretent of operations and consolidated
balance sheet, respectively. In the fourth quaft@012, the Company identified corrections reldtetemporary differences in fixed assets,
intangible assets and deferred revenue resultitigeimecognition of an income tax benefit of $488,0

In September 2013, the Internal Revenue Servicedsaew regulations relating to the treatment pairs effective for tax years
beginning after December 31, 2013 with early adwpfiermissible. We have opted for early adoptiothéyear
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ended December 31, 2013, which has created a tidiffegence for the accelerated tax deduction épairs in excess of the book deduction.

As of December 31, 2013, we had net deferred tsgta®f $28.4 million. On a quarterly basis, weeasghe weight of all available
positive and negative evidence to determine whdtienet deferred tax asset is realizable. We hsterically been a taxpayer and are in a
three year cumulative income position as of DecerBhe2013 for federal as well certain state judgdns. In addition, based on trends in
2013, we projected future income sufficient to imathe deferred tax assets during the periods whestemporary tax deductible differences
reverse. With the exception of the deductions eel&b our captive insurance company for state tatate taxable income has been and is
projected to be the same as federal taxable incBemause we expected the captive insurance compargydiscontinued in 2014, the
assessment of the realizability of the state defetax assets was consistent with the federalrtalysis above. We have state net operating lo:
carry-forwards, which we believed would be realipéthin the available carry-forward period, excépta small net operating loss carry-
forward in Rhode Island due to the short carry-fandvperiod in that state. Accordingly, we conclutieat it was more likely than not that the
deferred tax assets would be realized.

Segment Results of Operations

Our operating segments are New York Sports Clubstdh Sports Clubs, Philadelphia Sports Clubs, \Wagstn Sports Clubs, Swiss
Sports Clubs and BFX Studio, which is the levekhich the chief operating decision makers reviescuite financial information and make
decisions about segment profitability based oniegambefore income tax depreciation and amortipatitistorically, we have determined that
these clubs had similar economic characteristidsnagt the criteria which permit them to be aggredanto one reportable segment. BFX
Studio, which had its first opening in Septembet£deported as a separate reportable segment@ssitnot meet the aggregation criteria t
aggregated with the other operating segments.

We present earnings (loss) before interest exp@gmtef interest income), provision (benefit) farpgorate income taxes, and deprecic
and amortization ("EBITDA") as the primary measafégrofit and loss for our operating segments icoadance with FASB guidance for
segment reporting.

The following discussion sets forth our financiatiprmance by reportable segment for the yearsceBeéeember 31, 2014 and 2013.
the year ended December 31, 2012, BFX Studio hdthpact on our consolidated financial statements.

Clubs (New York Sports Clubs, Boston Sports Clubs, Paifgda Sports Clubs, Washington Sports Clubs, andsSSports Clubs)

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013
Revenue $ 453,51¢ $ 470,22"
EBITDA $ 53,52¢ $ 91,77(

Clubs revenue decreased $16.7 million , or 3,&%the year ended December 31, 2014 compardtketpdar ended December 31, 201
a result of decline in membership revenue. Compearehb revenue decreased 4.2% in the year endedrbleer 31, 201dompared to the pri
year. Memberships at our comparable clubs were &b, the price of our dues and fees were dow¥b0amd the combined effect
ancillary club revenue, joining fees and other resewere down 0.6%.

Clubs EBITDA decreased $38.2 million for the yeaded December 31, 2014 compared to the year endeeniber 31, 2013, primarily
reflecting lower membership revenues, and increakdiloperating expense mainly due to higher radt@cupancy expense, utilities expe
and marketing costs. Comparability in 2014 was akgatively impacted by $3.2 million of insuranceqeeds received in 2013 in connection
with property damaged by Hurricane Sandy, as veeiraincreased fixed asset and goodwill impairrobatges of $4.0 million in 2014.

We are in the process of introducing the HVLP stggtto most of our clubs. As of December 31, 2014 lubs are under this new prici
strategy. We expect most of our clubs to be cordetid the HVLP strategy by May 31, 2015, with apgrately 25 clubs offering only
Passport Memberships. These converted clubs aee&xpto experience earnings pressure in the paarrelated to existing members opting
for lower dues as well as new members enrollinigvaer rates. However, we believe the HVLP strategyyimprove results and increase
market share for our brands in the long-run fromititreased membership sales volume.
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BFX Studio

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013
Revenue $ 32 $ —
EBITDA $ (3,556 $ (3649)

BFX Studio reported revenue of $326,d00the year ended December 31, 2014, primarillectihg revenue of our first BFX Studio tt
was opened in September 2014. We currently plapém three additional BFX Studio units in 2015.

BFX Studio reported EBITDA loss of $3.6 million 2014 and $364,000 in 2013 primarily reflecting teet and occupancy costs, start-
up costs and overhead payroll for our first BEXd&twnit and additional units with leases executrd development underway.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2014, we had $93.5 million aficand cash equivalents. Financial instrumentspibi@ntially subject us to
concentrations of credit risk consist of cash aaghaequivalents. Although we deposit our cash mibhe than one financial institution, as of
December 31, 2014, $85.4 million was held at twauficial institutions. We have not experienced asgés on cash and cash equivalent
accounts to date and we do not believe that, baise¢le credit ratings of the aforementioned instins, we are exposed to any significant
credit risk related to cash at this time.

Historically, we have satisfied our liquidity nedtisough cash generated from operations and vabotrswing arrangements. Principal
liquidity needs have included the acquisition ardedopment of new clubs, debt service requiremeamis,other capital expenditures necessar
to upgrade, expand and renovate existing clubBelcember 2012, we also paid a special cash divideé8.00 per share and in December
2013, March 2014 and June 2014, we paid a castiatidiof $0.16 per share. Any determination to pi#yré dividends will be made by the
board of directors and will take into account sowdtters as cash on hand, general economic anddsssionditions, our strategic plans, our
financial results and condition, contractual, legradl regulatory restrictions on the payment ofdbwids by us and our subsidiaries and such
other factors as our board of directors may comgweée relevant. We believe that our existing casth cash equivalents, cash generated from
operations and our existing credit facility will befficient to fund capital expenditures, workirgpial needs and other liquidity requirements
associated with our operations through at leashéx¢ 12 months.

Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities fog year ended December 31, 2014 decreased $6Adhmdmpare(
to the prior year. In the year ended December 814 2cash received from membership dues and jofieieg) decreased $10.9 million and for-
pay programs decreased $18.8 million, principalated to lower membership volume in 2014 comparigtd the prior year. The cash decre
also reflected an increase in cash paid for inctaxes of $23.2 million (after utilization of netexating losses and carryforwards) primarily
related to the legal sale of the East 86th Stremigrty, which is treated as a financing arrangerf@raccounting purposes, but recognized as
of the date of sale for Federal and State incoxestan addition, there were increased paymentsefarof $6.2 million and utilities of $2.9
million. The decrease in accrued payroll expentasgenerated an unfavorable cash flow varian@&td million in 2014 principally due to
timing differences in payroll payment. These castrdases were partially offset by the decline shaaaid for interest of $2.6 million in 2014.

Net cash provided by operating activities for tearyended December 31, 2013 increased $7.3 mdbawpared to prior year. The
increase was driven by increased cash receivedflioay programs of $4.7 million, and lower castiddfor interest of $4.0 million. In
addition, the decrease in accounts receivable g@ten favorable cash flow variance of $3.7 millior2013, primarily due to a change in our
billing policy effective January 1, 2013 relatedinbato personal training session sales that weegipusly sold “on account.” The decrease in
cash flows also reflected the timing of certainrpants and collections made associated with ouuadoexpenses and deferred membership
costs. These cash increases were partially offsatdecrease in cash received related to membetskmpand joining fees of $9.4 million from
lower membership volume in 2013 compared with 2012.

Investing Activities. Net cash used in investing activities increggEtl4 million in the year ended December 31, 2fddpared to the
prior year. Investing activities in the year endstember 31, 2014 consisted of capital expendifiarethe building of new clubs, remodeling
of existing clubs, the purchase of new fitness apaint and capital investment in information techggl The 2014 amount includes
approximately $18.6 million related to 2014 and 20@penings, including those under our new BFX Stwdincept. Total capital expenditures
also includes approximately $20.7 million to congrto
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enhance or upgrade existing clubs, and $661,00@ip&lly related to major renovations at clubs wéhent lease renewals. In addition, we
invested $2.1 million to enhance our managementimétion and communication systems. These capitsreditures are funded by available
cash on hand and the after-tax proceeds from & $ale of the East 86th Street property. To #terg the proceeds of the sale of the East
86th Street property are not reinvested, we maggeired to use such amounts, other than amouatsin®2014 to repay debt as described
below, to pay down our outstanding debt, as praVigeder the terms of our 2013 Senior Credit FgciBased on our unit growth projection
and increased capital expenditures related toufdibg of new clubs and new BFX Studio locatiows, do not expect to have a required
prepayment at that time.

Net cash used in investing activities increased #8llion to $30.6 million in the year ended DecanB1, 2013 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2012. Investing activities énytsar ended December 31, 2013 consisted of capipainditures for the remodeling of
existing clubs, the purchase of new fithess equigraad capital investment in information technologlge 2013 amount includes
approximately $16.2 million to continue to upgradesting clubs, $8.0 million principally related twajor renovations at clubs with recent
lease renewals and upgrading certain clubs folJX{F¥ zones and our in-club entertainment system owand $1.1 million related to our
planned 2014 club openings. In addition, we inw&$&.8 million to enhance our management infornmaéind communication systems and
approximately $195,000 related to our warehouseanubry facility. Investing activities in the yeanded December 31, 2013 also consist
$2.9 million of net cash paid for the acquisitidrctubs and approximately $1.4 million related émovations at these clubs. These capital
investments were partially offset by $3.2 millichimsurance proceeds primarily in connection withurance recoveries related to property
damages from Hurricane Sandy.

For the year ending December 31, 2015, we currgely to invest $30.0 million to $34.0 million iapital expenditures. This amount
includes approximately $5.4 million to $6.5 millioelated to planned 2015 openings, including bathsand BFX Studio units. Total capital
expenditures also includes approximately $17.0ionilto $19.0 million to continue enhancing or upling existing clubs and approximately
$5.0 million to $6.0 million principally related toajor renovations at certain clubs. We also exfzettvest approximately $3.0 million to
continue to enhance our management informatiorcantmunication systems. We expect these capitalnekpges to be funded by cash flow
from operations and available cash on hand.

Financing Activities. Net cash provided by financing activities foe tyear ended December 31, 2014 was $57.5 mébompared to ni
cash used in financing activities of $975,000 fa prior year. In the year ended December 31, 2@iahcing activities consisted of $83.4
million in gross cash proceeds from the sale ofhst 86th Street property, accounted for as aipgilfinancing arrangement, partially offset
by $3.2 million of real property transfer taxespher fees and other costs associated with the gyopale. Pursuant to the terms of the 2013
Senior Credit Facility, we are required to apply peceeds in excess of $30.0 million from saleassfets in any fiscal year towards mandator
prepayments of outstanding borrowings. Accordinglg,re-paid $13.5 million of principal of the 20I8rm Loan Facility in November 2014.
The total principal payments made on the 2013 Tlesan Facility in the year ended December 31, 2044 $16.7 millionIn addition, we pai
cash dividends to common stockholders of $7.9 amilin the year ended December 31, 2014 compar®d.fomillion of dividends in the prior
year.

Net cash used in financing activities decreased/dfllion for the year ended December 31, 2013 gared to the year ended
December 31, 2012. In the year ended December3dB, 2ve were not required to make the regularledaled quarterly principal payments
pursuant to our previous 2011 Term Loan Faciligfifted below) as a result of a voluntary prepaynmeadle in August 2012 of $15.0 million.
In addition, the second amendment to our previddd BSenior Credit Facility (defined below) in Noveen 2012 waived the requirement to
pay the excess cash flow payment that was due aoh\VEd, 2013. On November 15, 2013, we refinanegdang-term debt. In connection
with the refinancing, we repaid the remaining pipat amounts of the 2011 Term Loan Facility of $31&iillion and received $323.4 million
under the 2013 Term Loan Facility, net of origiissiue discount (“OID") of $1.6 million. In conneati with the debt refinancing, we paid $5.1
million in debt issuance costs. We also receiva@D¥B00 related to proceeds from stock option esegcin the year ended December 31, 201
while in the year ended December 31, 2012 we redeb2.4 million. In the year ended December 31320% also paid $4.1 million of
dividends composed of a quarterly dividend of $8iion and $296,000 of dividends paid on the wegf restricted stock, compared to the
special dividends paid totaling $70.3 million irethear ended December 31, 2012.

2013 Senior Credit Facility

On November 15, 2013, TSI, LLC, an indirect, whadwned subsidiary, entered into a $370.0 millioni@esecured credit facility
(2013 Senior Credit Facility”), among TSI, LLC, THoldings II, LLC, a newly-formed, wholly-owned ksidiary of the Company kfoldings
II"), as a Guarantor, the lenders party theretajiBehe Bank AG, as administrative agent, and Kelyational Association, as syndication
agent. The 2013 Senior Credit Facility consista $825.0 million
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term loan facility maturing on November 15, 2020013 Term Loan Facility”) and a $45.0 million reviolg loan facility maturing on
November 15, 201€2013 Revolving Loan Facility”). Proceeds from t8@13 Term Loan Facility of $323.4 million were issijinet of an
original issue discount (“OID") of 0.5% , or $1.6llion . Debt issuance costs recorded in conneatigh the 2013 Senior Credit Facility was
$5.1 millionand will be amortized as interest expense andnateded in other assets in the accompanying cafeteld balance sheets. We ¢
recorded additional debt discount of $4.4 millietated to creditor fees. The proceeds from the 2@t Loan Facility were used to pay off
amounts outstanding under our previously outstanhting-term debt facility originally entered inta ¢ay 11, 2011 (as amended from time to
time), and to pay related fees and expenses. Nothe oevolving loan facility was drawn upon agteé closing date on November 15, 2013,
but loans under the 2013 Revolving Loan Facilityyrba drawn from time to time pursuant to the teofnthe 2013 Senior Credit Facility. The
borrowings under the 2013 Senior Credit Facility guaranteed and secured by assets and pledgagitad stock by Holdings II, TSI, LLC,
and, subject to certain customary exceptions, thellyw-owned domestic subsidiaries of TSI, LLC.

Borrowings under the 2013 Term Loan Facility anel 2013 Revolving Loan Facility, at TSI, LLC’s opticbear interest at either the
administrative agent’s base rate plus 2.5% or &0RBate adjusted for certain additional costs {Eheodollar Rate”) plus 3.5% , each as
defined in the 2013 Senior Credit Facility. Witlspect to the outstanding term loans, the EurodBl&e has a floor of 1.00% and the base rat
has a floor of 2.00% . Commencing with the lastifiess day of the quarter ended March 31, 2014, OIS, is required to pay 0.25% of the
principal amount of the term loans each quarteickvimay be reduced by voluntary prepayments. A3axfember 31, 2014, we have made a
total of $16.7 million in principal payments on th@13 Term Loan Facility.

The terms of the 2013 Senior Credit Facility previdr a financial covenant in the situation whére tiotal utilization of the revolving
loan commitments (other than letters of creditw$5.5 million at any time outstanding) exceeds 28%e aggregate amount of those
commitments. In such event, TSI, LLC is requirednaintain a total leverage ratio, as defined in28&3 Senior Credit Facility, of no greater
than 4.50:1.00. While not subject to the total tage ratio covenant as of December 31, 2014 asrdytilization of the 2013 Revolving
Loan Facility as of December 31, 2014 was $3.0ionilbf issued and outstanding letters of creditehader, because our total leverage ratio ¢
of December 31, 2014 was in excess of 4.50:1.0Greeurrently not able to utilize more than 25%haf 2013 Revolving Loan Facility. We
will continue not to be able to utilize more thas2 of the 2013 Revolving Loan Facility until we leaa total leverage ratio of no greater than
4.50:1.00. The 2013 Senior Credit Facility alsotaors certain affirmative and negative covenamisluiding covenants that may limit or rest
TSI, LLC and Holdings II's ability to, among oth#itings, incur indebtedness and other liabilitigsate liens; merge or consolidate; dispose o
assets; make investments; pay dividends and makeeuds to shareholders; make payments on certdébtedness; and enter into sale
leaseback transactions, in each case, subjecttmircqualifications and exceptions. In additionaay time when the total leverage ratio is
greater than 4:50:1.00, there are additional litigites on the ability of TSI, LLC and Holdings Il,tamong other things, make certain
distributions of cash to TSI Holdings. The 2013 i8egredit Facility also includes customary evesftsiefault (including non-compliance with
the covenants or other terms of the 2013 SeniadiCFacility) which may allow the lenders to terrata the commitments under the 2013
Revolving Loan Facility and declare all outstandiegn loans and revolving loans immediately due ayhble and enforce its rights as a
secured creditor.

TSI, LLC may prepay the 2013 Term Loan Facility &0d 3 Revolving Loan Facility without premium omadty in accordance with the
2013 Senior Credit Facility. Mandatory prepaymeanrtsrequired relating to certain asset sales, am&ar recovery and incurrence of certain
other debt and commencing in 2015 in certain cistamces relating to excess cash flow (as defireadhé prior fiscal year, as described
below, in excess of certain expenditures. Purstaatite terms of the 2013 Senior Credit Facility,ave required to apply net proceeds in ex
of $30.0 millionfrom sales of assets in any fiscal year towardsdagmmy prepayments of outstanding borrowings. imneetion with the sale
the East 86th Street property, accounted for asldibg financing arrangement, described in Note Blilding Financing Arrangement, we
received approximately $43.5 million in net salesceeds (after taxes, before giving effect to zaifion of net operating losses and
carryforwards). Accordingly, we made a mandatogppyment of $13.5 million on the 2013 Term Loanilfgén November 2014. In
connection with this mandatory prepayment, durlrgytear ended December 31, 2014, we recorded toggtimguishment of debt of
$493,000 , consisting of the write-off of unamogtizdebt issuance costs and debt discount of $10.9%0@ $374,000 , respectively, and was
included in loss on extinguishment of debt in thecampanying consolidated statements of operationthé year ended December 31, 2014
the extent the proceeds of the sale of the EabtS8eet property are not reinvested, we may beimed|to use such amounts, other than
amounts used in 2014 to repay debt, to pay dowmwoistanding debt, as provided under the termsi02013 Senior Credit Facility. Based on
unit growth projection and increased capital exjitenels related to the building of new clubs and 1B#X Studio locations, we do not expect
to be required to make a payment at any time. titiadh, the 2013 Senior Credit Facility containsyisions that require excess cash flow
payments, as defined, to be applied against oulisigr2013 Term Loan Facility balances. The excesé$ ¢low is calculated annually
commencing with the fiscal year ending Decembe2814 and paid 95 days after the fiscal year ehd.dpplicable excess cash flow
repayment
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percentage is applied to the excess cash flow wktarmining the excess cash flow payment. Earniclggges in working capital and capital
expenditure levels all impact the determinatiomioy excess cash flow. The applicable excess castréipayment percentage is 50% when th
total leverage ratio, as defined in the 2013 Se@iedit Facility, exceeds or is equal to 2.50:12Z8% when the total leverage ratio is greater
than or equal to 2.00:1.00 but less than 2.50:4r@D0% when the total leverage ratio is less th@@:2.00. The first excess cash flow paymen
would have been due in April 2015. The excess flashcalculation performed as of December 31, 26it¥4not result in any required
payments.

As of December 31, 2014 , the 2013 Term Loan Rgdiks a gross principal balance of $308.3 milkow a balance of $299.9 million
net of unamortized debt discount of $8.4 millionievhis comprised of the unamortized portions of @iB recorded in connection with the
May 11, 2011 debt issuance and the unamortizech&alaf the additional debt discounts recorded imeation with the First Amendment and
Second Amendment to the 2011 Senior Credit Facilitye unamortized debt discount balance is recoadesl contra-liability to long-term debt
on the accompanying consolidated balance shedsdm®ing amortized as interest expense using feetefe interest method. As of
December 31, 2014 , the unamortized balance ofidsiiance costs of $3.7 million is being amortiasdnterest expense, and is included in
other assets in the accompanying consolidated balsimeets.

As of December 31, 2014 , there were no outstan2ldi® Revolving Loan Facility borrowings and outstiag letters of credit issued
totaled $3.0 million . The unutilized portion o&tl2013 Revolving Loan Facility as of December 3i,2was $42.0 million and the available
unutilized portion, based on our total leverag®mraxceeding 4.50:1.00, was $11.3 million .

On January 30, 2015, the 2013 Senior Credit Fpeilds amended (the "Amendment") to permit TSI Haddito purchase term loans
under the Credit Agreement. Any term loans purcthdseT S| Holdings will be cancelled. The Companyyrfram time to time purchase term
loans in market transactions, privately negotiatadsactions or otherwise; however the Companydernno obligation to make any such
purchases. Any such transactions, and the amawndtved, will depend on prevailing market condigotiquidity requirements, contractual
restrictions and other factors. The amounts inviblvey be material.

2011 Senior Credit Facility

TSI, LLC’s previously outstanding senior secureelddr facility was originally entered into on May,12011 (as amended from time to
time) and consisted of a $350.0 million senior sedicredit facility (“2011 Senior Credit Facilityomprised of a $300.0 million term loan
facility (2011 Term Loan Facility”) scheduled toature on May 11, 2018 and a $50.0 million revolMiman facility scheduled to mature on
May 11, 2016 (“2011 Revolving Loan Facility”). TRO11 Term Loan Facility was issued at an OID ofd @ $3.0 million and debt issuance
costs recorded in connection with the 2011 SenrediE Facility were $8.1 million. The proceeds fréine 2011 Term Loan Facility were used
to pay off amounts outstanding under a previoustgtanding long-term debt facility entered intd®B07 (“2007 Senior Credit Facility), to pay
the redemption price on outstanding 11% senioradistnotes due in 2014 (“Senior Discount Notesij & pay related fees and expenses.

The 2011 Senior Credit Facility was first amendaddogust 22, 2012 (“First Amendment”) to reduce tifven-current interest rates on
the 2011 Term Loan Facility by 125 basis points alsd convert the existing voluntary prepaymentgftgrprovision from a “101 hard call”
provision (which required the payment of a 1% fadlee amount of any term loans that are voluntamigpaid), originally scheduled to end in
May 2013, to a “101 soft call” provision (which rged the payment of a 1% fee on the amount oftamy loans repaid in connection with a
refinancing or repricing transaction) ending in Agg2013, and subsequently extended by the Noveldh&012 amendment to November
2013. All other principal provisions, including ety and covenants under the then-existing 20IiidBe€redit Facility remained unchanged
in all material respects. The First Amendment wdgexct to the consent of term loan lenders. Norseating term loan lenders with term loan
principal outstanding totaling $13.8 million weeptaced with replacement term loan lenders in amexecute the First Amendment. In
connection with the pay off of non-consenting téoan lenders, during the year ended December 32,20e recorded a loss on
extinguishment of debt of $464,000 consisting efwrite-offs of the related portions of unamortizkbt issuance costs and OID of $260,000
and $204,000, respectively. In addition, we recdragditional debt discount of $2.7 million relateda 1.00% amendment fee paid to
consenting lenders and recognized additional intergpense totaling $1.4 million related primatdybank and legal related fees paid to third
parties to execute the First Amendment.

Subsequent to the effective date of the First Amett, we made a voluntary prepayment of $15.0 oniliin the 2011 Term Loan
Facility. In connection with this voluntary prepagm, during the year ended December 31, 2012, ewded loss on extinguishment of dek
$546,000, consisting of the write-offs of the rethportions of unamortized debt issuance costsiabtidiscount of $269,000 and $277,000,
respectively.

On November 16, 2012, TSI, LLC entered into a Sdcamendment (“Second Amendment”) to the 2011 Se@Gredit Facility. Under
the Second Amendment, TSI, LLC borrowed an additi®®0.0 million incremental term loan issued adB of 0.50% or $300,000. The n
borrowings were used, together with cash on hangay a special cash dividend to our
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stockholders, including an equivalent cash bonysngat to certain option holders, on December 1122 addition, the Second Amendment
provided for a waiver of any prepayment requirebe@aid using our excess cash flow for the pegizded December 31, 2012, amended the
restricted payments covenant to permit the paymgtite dividend and cash bonus payments and pedaitjustments to our calculation of
consolidated EBITDA with respect to the cash bgpayment and with respect to fees and expensesiatezbwith certain permitted
transactions. In connection with the executiorhef 8econd Amendment, we recorded additional dsbbdit of $639,000 related to a 0.25%
amendment fee, debt issuance costs of $125,00adthtlonal interest expense totaling $1.6 milliefated primarily to bank, arrangement and
legal fees paid to third parties.

Repayment of 2011 Senior Credit Facility

Contemporaneously with entry into the 2013 Seni@d@ Facility, TSI, LLC repaid the outstandingmaripal amount of the 2011 Term
Loan Facility of $315.7 million. The 2011 Term LoRacility was set to expire on May 11, 2018. Theeze no outstanding amounts under the
2011 Revolving Loan Facility as of November 15, 20the date of the initial borrowing under the 2@khior Credit Facility. The 2011 Term
Loan Facility was repaid at face value of $315.Wiom plus accrued and unpaid interest of $807,800 letter of credit fees and commitment
fees of $67,000. The total cash paid in connedtiitih this repayment was $316.6 million as of Novemb5, 2013 with no early repayment
penalty. We determined that the 2013 Senior Ciealiflity was not substantially different than ti@&2 Senior Credit Facility for certain
lenders based on the less than 10% differencesim fbaws of the respective debt instruments. Aiparof the transaction was therefore
accounted for as a modification of the 2011 Se@imdit Facility and a portion was accounted foaagxtinguishment. As of November 15,
2013, we recorded loss on extinguishment of delppfoximately $750,000, representing the woitieof the remaining unamortized debt cc
and debt discount related to the portion of thel2Bénior Credit Facility that was accounted foaa®xtinguishment, and was included in loss
on extinguishment of debt in the accompanying chidated statements of operations for the year eflmbmber 31, 2013.

Financial Instruments

In our normal operations, we are exposed to maikies relating to fluctuations in interest ratesokder to minimize the possible
negative impact of such fluctuations on our castvél we may enter into derivative financial instruntse(“derivatives”), such as interest-rate
swaps. Any instruments are not entered into falitigapurposes and we only use commonly tradedunsnts. Currently, we have used
derivatives solely relating to the variability aigh flows from interest rate fluctuations.

We originally entered into our interest rate swap@gement on July 13, 2011 in connection with2@&1 Senior Credit Facility. We
entered into an interest rate swap arrangementwéifectively converted $150.0 million of our vaiie-rate debt based on a one-month
Eurodollar rate to a fixed rate of 1.983%, or altdiked rate of 7.483%, on this $150.0 million whecluding the applicable 5.50% margin t
was in effect under the 2011 Senior Credit Facdityhat time. In August 2012, we amended the teritise 2011 Senior Credit Facility to,
among other things, reduce the applicable margiBwedollar rate loans from 5.50% to 4.50% and cedbe interest rate floor on Eurodollar
rate loans from 1.50% to 1.25%. In conjunction with First Amendment to the 2011 Senior Creditlfgdén August 2012, the interest rate
swap arrangement was amended to reduce the onérBorddollar fixed rate from 1.983% to 1.783%, dotal fixed rate of 6.283% when
including the applicable 4.50% margin on Eurodoike loans in effect under the 2011 Senior Criealifility at that time. On November 14,
2012, we further amended the terms of the 201108€&hedit Facility to, among other things, allow the borrowing of a $60.0 million
incremental term loan. In connection with the SecAmendment to the 2011 Senior Credit Facility,further amended the interest rate swap
to increase the notional amount to $160.0 millind extended the maturity of the swap from July2lB 4 to May 13, 2015. In addition, the
one-month Eurodollar fixed rate was lowered froif8B% to 1.693%, or a total of 6.193% when includimg applicable 4.50% margin on
Eurodollar rate loans in effect under the 2011 &e@redit Facility at that time. In connection wihtering into the 2013 Senior Credit Facil
we amended and restated the interest rate swamerreent it initially entered into on July 13, 2Qahd amended in August 2012 and
November 2012). Effective as of November 15, 2@i8,closing date of the 2013 Senior Credit Fagititye interest rate swap will continue
have a notional amount of $160.0 million and wilitore on May 15, 2018. The swap effectively cors/6t60.0 million of the $325.0 million
total variable-rate debt under the 2013 Senior i€Fetility to a fixed rate of 5.384%, when incladithe applicable 3.50% margin. As
permitted by FASB Accounting Standards Codificatf¢hSC”) 815, Derivatives and Hedging, we have dasited this swap as a cash flow
hedge, the effects of which have been reflectamimconsolidated financial statements as of andheryears ended December 31, 2014, 2013
and 2012. The objective of this hedge is to manhgeariability of cash flows in the interest payrterelated to the portion of the varialéae
debt designated as being hedged.

When our derivative instrument was executed, hedgeunting was deemed appropriate and it was desidras a cash flow hedge at
inception with re-designation being permitted undi8C 815, Derivatives and Hedging. Interest ratapssiare designated as cash flow hedge:
for accounting purposes since they are being us&dnsform variable interest rate exposure to
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fixed interest rate exposure on a recognized lighidiebt). On an ongoing basis, we perform a qrbriassessment of the hedge effectiveness
of the hedge relationship and measure and recognizdéedge ineffectiveness in the consolidate@istants of operations. For the years ende
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, hedge inefferdgewas evaluated using the hypothetical deriwatigthod. There was no hedge
ineffectiveness in the years ended December 314 280d 2013, and the amount related to hedge inefféeess for the year ended

December 31, 2012 was de minimis.

The counterparty to our derivatives is a major rglknstitution with a credit rating of investmegrade or better and no collateral is
required, and there are no significant risk cornegions. We believe the risk of incurring lossesdenivative contracts related to credit risk is
unlikely.

Consolidated Debt

As of December 31, 2014, our total principal amafrdebt outstanding was $308.3 million . This sabsal amount of debt could have
significant consequences, including:

* making it more difficult to satisfy our obligatiomgth respect to our outstanding indebtedr
» increasing our vulnerability to general adverseneooic and industry conditior

» limiting our ability to obtain additional finaimg to fund future working capital, capital expetndés, acquisitions of new clubs and
other general corporate requirements;

e requiring a substantial portion of our cash flfisam operations for the payment of interest ondaelst, which is variable on our 2013
Revolving Loan Facility and partially variable onrd®2013 Term Loan Facility, and/or principal punsu excess cash flow
requirements and reducing our ability to use oghddow to fund working capital, capital expendésrand acquisitions of new clubs
and general corporate requirements;

* increasing our vulnerability to interest rateciuations in connection with borrowings under 20t3 Senior Credit Facility, some of
which are at variable interest rates;

« limiting our ability to refinance our existing ind&dness on favorable terms, or at all;
« limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our business and the industmghioh we operat
These limitations and consequences may placeais@npetitive disadvantage to other less-leveragetpetitors.

We believe that we have, or will be able to, obt@igenerate sufficient funds to finance our curggrerating and growth plans through
the next 12 months. Any material acceleration qgragsion of our plans through newly constructed £libacquisitions (to the extent such
acquisitions include cash payments) may requir® psirsue additional sources of financing. Therelmano assurance that such financing wil
be available, or that it will be available on adedye terms.

Building Financing Arrangement

On September 12, 2014, we completed the legal$aler property (building and land) on East 86tfe8t, New York City, to an
unaffiliated third-party for gross proceeds of &hillion, which includes $150,000 of additionalypzents to us. Concurrent with the closing
of the transaction, we leased back the portiomefaroperty comprising our health club. We expedease (“Initial Lease”) the premises to at
least March 2016 and then, upon notice from thelpmser/landlord, the Initial Lease will terminatelave will vacate the property while the
purchaser/landlord demolishes the existing buil@gind the adjacent building and builds a new luxbigh-rise multi-use building. In
connection with vacating the property, we will eriteéo a new lease (“New Club Lease”) for approxieiya24,000 square feet in the new
building for the purpose of operating a health alplon completion of construction by the purchaaedlord. The term of the Initial Lease is 10
years, and at the end of this initial term, we hawe options at our sole discretion to renew tlasée the first for an additional 10 year pet
and a second for an additional five year perioth¢aigh we expect that the purchaser/landlord w#lreise its right to early terminate the Ini
Lease so that it may commence the constructioheohéw building). Under the Initial Lease (and Nelub Lease if entered into), the
purchaser/landlord has agreed to pay us liquiddaedages if the new club is not available by a cedate. The latest date that the liquidated
damages would begin to be paid would be April T®®and would continue until the new club is ava#aFor accounting purposes, the ng
of these potential liquidated damages constitubesircuing involvement with the purchaser/landlord&sselopment of the property. As a result
of this continuing involvement, the sale-leasebmaksaction is currently required to be accountea$ a financing arrangement rather than a
a completed sale. Under this treatment, we haveded the proceeds received as a financing arraegeom our balance sheet. Except for
payments under the Initial Lease and the New Clediske, we do not expect to make any cash paymetiits purchaser/landlord with respec
the building financing arrangement. We recordealxaltle (for federal and state income tax
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purposes) gain on the sale of the property and restimated tax payments during the year ended DeeeB1i, 2014 in this regard. The
proceeds of $83.4 million, which is net of $1.8lmi to be held in escrow for our former tenant 00,000 to remain in escrow to be
released to us six months after the date of seddnaluded in our cash flow statement for 2014 &imancing inflow.

As of December 31, 2014, the total financing areangnt was $83.4 million, and accrued interest oanfting arrangement was
immaterial at December 31, 2014. Because the tcingas characterized as a financing for accogngpinrposes rather than a sale, the rental
payments and related transaction costs are traataderest on the financing arrangement. As thgeeest amounts are less than the interest
that would be charged under a typical financing,fthancing will be characterized as an intere$g financing with no reduction in the
principal throughout the Initial Lease term untilyacontinuing involvement has ceased. Until sustetieven though we no longer have legal
title to the building and the land, the buildingilding improvements and land remain on our cowlstéd balance sheet and the building and
building improvements will continue to be depreethbver their remaining useful lives. Similarly, de not have a loan or borrowing
arrangement with the purchaser/landlord but th&lmg financing arrangement will remain on our lmala sheet until any continuing
involvement has ceased.

As of December 31, 2014, the net book value obthiling and building improvements was $3.2 millimd the book value of the land
was $986,000. As part of the transaction, we irei83.2 million of real property transfer taxegkar fees and other costs which will be
deferred and amortized over the term of the Initedse of 25 years, which includes the optionsoperiThese fees are recorded in Other asse
on our consolidated balance sheet as of Decemh&034.

Payments made under the Initial Lease, includimgaténcome related to our tenant in the buildingttwas assigned to the
purchaser/landlord, are recognized as interestresgoen the underlying financing arrangement. Inetlich the contractual obligation table
below are our future lease commitment of $750,080ypar under the remaining term of the Initial 4&avhich includes the option periods
will be recorded as interest expense. Rental inc@lated to our former tenant in the building opegximately $2.0 million per year and the
amortization of the deferred costs of $126,000ygar as of December 31, 2014 will be recorded @sdat expense (unless the
purchaser/landlord exercises its right to termirnéslease before the end of the 10-year Initiaded.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
As of December 31, 2014 , our contractual obligetilisted in the table below and payments by penietk as follows:

Payments Due by Period (in thousands)

Less than More than

Contractual Obligations(4) Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Long-term debt(1) $ 308,28: % 311« % 6,22¢ % 6,22¢ 3 292,71:
Interest payments on long-term debt(2) 84,84 15,43¢ 30,45 27,31¢ 11,63:
Operating lease obligations(3) 621,42( 91,05: 165,78« 134,53: 230,05:
Total contractual obligations $ 1,01454 $ 109,60 $ 202,46¢ $ 168,07¢ $ 534,39t

Notes:

(1) Principal amounts paid each year may incréas®nual excess cash flow amounts are requiredéasribed above). Excess cash flow was
calculated as of December 31, 2014 and no payraeatsurrently required in 2015 or any future period

(2) Based on interest rates pursuant to the 2@t Toan Facility and the interest swap agreemenf ®ecember 31, 2014

(3) Operating lease obligations include base seht. Certain leases provide for additional rergdzhon real estate taxes, common area
maintenance and defined amounts based on our opgrasults. Amounts include net obligations untherinitial Lease related to the
building financing arrangement. Does not includg amounts relating to the New Club Lease. See gl Financing Arrangement" and
Note 11 - Building Financing Arrangement to our consal&tl financial statements.

(4) The table above does not reflect payments relat@thnned club closure

The following long-term liabilities included on tleensolidated balance sheet are excluded fromatile bove: income taxes (including
uncertain tax positions or benefits), insurancewas and other accruals. We are unable to estithatéming of payments for these items.
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We had working capital of $52.3 million and $27.8lion at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2G&8pectively. Major
components of our working capital on the curresetsside are cash and cash equivalents, accegeisable, prepaid expenses and other
current assets, and the current portion of defdaedssets. As of December 31, 2014 , these d¢wassets more than offset the current
liabilities, which consist of deferred revenues;@amts payable, accrued expenses (including, arathregs, accrued construction in progress
and equipment, payroll and occupancy costs) andutrent portion of long-term debt. The deferreceraue that is classified as a current
liability relates to dues and services paid-in-faladvance and joining fees paid at the time obkment and totaled $37.0 million and $33.9
million at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 20&8pectively. Joining fees received are defearatlamortized over the estimated
average membership life of a club member. Prepaés éind fees for prepaid services are generaligedaover a period of up to twelve
months. In periods when we increase the numberesfibers or clubs open and consequently increadevbkof payments received in
advance, we would expect to see increased defervetiue balances. By contrast, any decrease inrtefaaour services or reductions in
joining fees collected would have the effect ofueidg deferred revenue balances, which would liketyuire us to rely more heavily on otl
sources of funding. In either case, a significantipn of the deferred revenue is not expectedtwstitute a liability that must be funded with
cash. At the time a member joins our club, we ireunoliment costs, a portion of which are defewedr the estimated average membership
life. These costs are recorded as a long-term asseds such do not affect working capital. Wedweliour cash and cash equivalents and our
2013 Revolving Loan Facility, which had $11.3 naifiiof remaining availability at December 31, 2054dx on our leverage ratio and
utilization at that date, are sufficient to fund aperating, investing and financing requirementsttie next twelve months.

Recent Changes in or Recently Issued Accounting Stdards

For details of applicable new accounting standgrésse, see Note 4 Recent Accounting Pronouncements to our consolid@atancia
statements in this Annual Report.

Use of Estimates and Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assasfiiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabiities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the dates of the findrst@ements and the reported amounts of revemgesxpenses during the reporting periods.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The most significant assumptions and estimateserédathe useful lives of long-term assets, recaliity and impairment of fixed and
intangible assets, deferred income tax valuatiaiyation of and expense incurred in connection wiititk options, valuation of interest-rate
swap arrangements, insurance reserves, legal gentires and the estimated average membership life.

Estimated average membership life Our one-time member joining fees and a portibrelated direct expenses, up to the amount of
total deferred joining fees, are deferred and raegl on a straight-line basis in operations owgraurrent estimated average membership life
of 22 months for our unrestricted members and 26thsofor our restricted members. We monitor factbas might affect the estimated
average membership life including retention tremdisition trends, membership sales volumes, mestiigicomposition, competition, and
general economic conditions, and adjust the estimata quarterly basis. The estimated average nrshipdife could increase or decrease in
future periods. Consequently, deferred initiatieas and direct expenses would increase or decaeasalingly.

Fixed and intangible assets. Fixed assets are recorded at cost and depdaata straight-line basis over the estimatedulifieés of
the assets, which are 30 years for building angtévements, five years for club equipment, furr@tdixtures and computer equipment and
three to fiveyears for computer software. Leasehold improvemargsmortized over the shorter of their estimatgsful lives or the remainit
period of the related lease. Payroll costs direelgited to the construction or expansion of thenGany’s club and BFX Studio base are
capitalized with leasehold improvements. Expendiupr maintenance and repairs are charged totigesas incurred. The cost and related
accumulated depreciation of assets retired orisaleimoved from the respective accounts and anyadboss is recognized in operations. The
costs related to developing web applications, dgieg web pages and installing developed applinatam the web servers are capitalized anc
classified as computer software. Web site hosteg fand maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Long-lived assets, such as fixed assets and ifingssets are reviewed for impairment when evantgcumstances indicate that their
carrying value may not be recoverable. Estimatetissounted expected future cash flows are useétermiine if an asset group is impairec
which case the asset’s carrying value would beaedto its fair value, calculated considering a bimation of a market participant approach
and a cost approach. In determining the recovétabii fixed assets, Level 3 inputs are used iredatning undiscounted cash flows, which
based on internal budgets and forecasts througbrtti®f each respective lease. Level 3 inputs areatl from valuation techniques in which
one or more significant inputs or significant vatirevers are unobservable. See Note 3 - Summafcodunting Policies to our consolidated
financial
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statements. The most significant assumptions isgtwudgets and forecasts relate to estimated mshipend ancillary revenue, attrition ra
estimated results related to new program launchésraintenance capital expenditures, which arergp@stimated at approximately 3% to
5% of total revenues depending upon the conditémmisneeds of a given club. The fair value of fissdets evaluated for impairment is
determined considering a combination of a markeigpant approach and a cost approach. See Noféxed Asset to our consolidated
financial statements.

In the year ended December 31, 2014 , we testemh@érperforming clubs and recorded an impairmes# & $4.6 million on fixed
assets related to a total of nine clubs, includivey underperforming clubs, three clubs which welased in 2014 and one club we expect to
convert into a managed location in February 201 27 other clubs tested that did not have impaitrakarges had an aggregate of $38.3
million of net leasehold improvements and furnitaral fixtures remaining as of December 31, 201de fEmaining impaired clubs have been
converted or the Company plans to convert to th&Pi\gricing strategy in the first half of 2015. Treetextent the HVLP pricing strategy does
not meet its expectations, the Company may recddiianal impairment charges.

Goodwill has been allocated to reporting units thasely reflect the regions served by our foudéraames: New York Sports Clubs
(“NYSC"), Boston Sports Clubs (“BSC"), Washingtop@ts Clubs (“WSC") and Philadelphia Sports CIulsSC"), with certain more remote
clubs that do not benefit from a regional clusteing considered single reporting units (“Outlienl®”), our three clubs located in Switzerland
(*SSC”) and our BFX Studio ("BFX Studio"). As of Decembdr, 2014, the WSC region, PSC region, the Outlie€land BFX Studio do n
have goodwill balances. The carrying value of goildvas allocated to our reporting units pursuanEASB guidance.

As of February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, evéopmed our annual impairment test of goodwill. $-ebruary 28, 2014, we
concluded that there would be no remaining implialdie attributable to the Outlier Clubs. As a resfithis test, we impaired $137,000 of
goodwill associated with this reporting unit. We diot have a goodwill impairment charge in the NY8SC and SSC regions.

Due to the triggering event caused by the signitickecrease in market capitalization and changegpected performance, we perforn
an interim evaluation of goodwill by reporting uag of May 31, 2014 and December 31, 2014. There n@ goodwill impairments as a result
of these interim tests. The determination as tothérea triggering event exists that would warrantrderim review of goodwill and whether a
write-down of goodwill is necessary involves sigeait judgment based on short-term and long-tewpeptions of the Company.

For the December 31, 2014, May 31, 2014 and Fep2&r2014 impairment tests, fair value was deteealiby using a weighted
combination of two market-based approaches (weigb@8%6 collectively) and an income approach (weid@%), as this combination was
deemed to be the most indicative of the ComparajisvBlue in an orderly transaction between maplgticipants. Under the market-based
approaches, we utilized information regarding tleen@any, the Company'’s industry as well as pubkaigilable industry information to
determine earnings multiples and sales multiplesahe used to value our reporting units. Undeirtheme approach, we determined fair ve
based on estimated future cash flows of each riggaunit, discounted by an estimated weighted-ayei@st of capital, which reflects the
overall level of inherent risk of a reporting uaitd the rate of return an outside investor wouftbekto earn. Determining the fair value of a
reporting unit is judgmental in nature and requttesuse of significant estimates and assumptionkiding revenue growth rates and
operating margins, discount rates and future martetlitions, among others. These assumptions wetegndined separately for each reporting
unit. We believe our assumptions are reasonabigewer, there can be no assurance that our estimatkassumptions made for purposes of
our goodwill impairment testing as of December3&114, May 31, 2014 and February 28, 2014 will prtavbe accurate predictions of the
future. If our assumptions regarding forecaste@mee or margin growth rates of certain reportinigsusre not achieved, we may be require
record goodwill impairment charges in future pesioghether in connection with our next annual impait testing or prior to that, if any st
change constitutes a triggering event outside tlaetgr when the annual goodwill impairment testagformed. It is not possible at this time to
determine if any such future impairment charge @agbkult. The estimated fair values of NYSC and 88 greater than book values49«
and 8% , respectively, as of December 31, 2014; 86&665% , respectively, as of May 31, 2014 and 48%73% , respectively, as of
February 28, 2014. BSC was not tested separatéheimterim tests as the goodwill balance was @eeimmaterial. As of February 28, 2014,
the estimated fair value of BSC was 24% greatar bwok value.

Solely for purposes of establishing inputs forfdie value calculation described above relatedaodyvill impairment testing, the
Company made the following assumptions. We develdpeg-range financial forecasts (five years) fbreporting units and assumed organic
growth from the existing club base. Terminal growdates were calculated for years beyond the fia f@ecast. As of December 31, 2014, we
used discount rates ranging from 12.5% to 17.8%tamdinal growth rates ranging from 0.5% to 2.086 .of May 31, 2014, we used discount
rates ranging from 9.3% to 13.6% and terminal ghorates ranging from 0.5% to 2.0% . As of Febriz8y2014, we used discount rates
ranging from 9.5% to 16.5% and terminal growth sataging from 0.0% to 2.8% . These assumptionsi@veloped separately for each
reporting unit. These
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assumptions are developed separately for eachti@panit. In connection with the impairment testai December 31, 2014, we determined
that to conclude an impairment for SSC, the distoate would have to increase from 12.5% to 20.6%he terminal growth rate would have
to decrease from 2.0% to (4.3)%.

The valuation of intangible assets requires assiompand estimates of many critical factors, inslgdevenue and market growth,
operating cash flows and discount rates. We willticme to complete interim evaluations of the gottidvy reporting unit if a triggering event
exists.

Legal contingencies. In accordance with FASB guidance, we determihether to disclose and accrue for loss contingsnoased on
an assessment of whether the risk of loss is remedisonably possible or probable. Our assessséet/eloped in consultation with our
outside counsel and other advisors and is basath @malysis of possible outcomes under varioutesfies. Loss contingency assumptions
involve judgments that are inherently subjectivd aan involve matters that are in litigation, whibly its nature are unpredictable. We believe
that our assessment of the probability of lossiogencies is reasonable, but because of the silifgatvolved and the unpredictable nature
the subject matter at issue, our assessment mag ptomately to be incorrect, which could matdsiampact the consolidated financial
statements.

Self-insurance reserves. We limit our exposure to casualty losses onriaisce claims by maintaining liability coverage jegbto
specific and aggregate liability deductibles. Sedurance losses for claims filed and claims ineditsut not reported are accrued based upon
number of factors including sales estimates fohéasurance year, claim amounts, claim settlemamtisnumber of claims, our historical loss
experience and valuations provided by independhértt-party consultants. To the extent that estighaglf-insurance losses differ from actual
losses realized, our insurance reserves could diffmificantly and may result in either higherdawer insurance expense in future periods.

Deferred income taxes.Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recaghlzased on the differences between the finaneitdment
carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets ahilities. Deferred tax assets represent item&toded as a tax deduction or credit in futur
returns for which a tax benefit has been recorddtie income statement. We record net deferreddagts to the extent we believe these asse
will more likely than not be realized. In makingchudetermination, we consider all positive and tiggaevidence, including future reversals of
existing taxable temporary differences, projectgdre taxable income, tax planning strategies andnt financial operations. Significant
weight is given to positive and negative eviderz ts objectively verifiable.

Our deferred tax asset realization assessmentdarsdiuture income which considers the executioouofbusiness plans and other
expectations about future outcomes and is basegmbain assumptions. These assumptions requirdisan judgment about the forecast of
future income and are consistent with the plansesmtithates we are using to manage our businesa Afteal results do not meet our
forecasted results or there are changes to futisiméss results, such changes can lead to a chrajuglgment related to the realization of the
deferred tax asset.

We are projected to be in a cumulative loss pasitioring the three year period ending in DecemtiePB15, which was considered ta
a significant piece of negative evidence. We deiteechthat it is appropriate to conclude that theeelosses that are projected in the near tern
due to the conversion to the HVLP strategy, whitdiudes increased marketing spend and lower metmpa®s/enue during initial months of
conversion. We believe the conversion to the HVitBtegy will significantly increase membershipta HVLP clubs in future periods and
related income. However, because the accountirgague for income taxes considers a projection toféuearnings inherently subjective, it
does not carry significant weight to overcome thgctively verifiable evidence of cumulative lossesecent years. Based on these factors,
most notably the projected three year cumulatigs,lan the fourth quarter of 2014, we recorded@4illion non-cash charge to income tax
expense to establish a full valuation allowanceresg@ur U.S. net deferred tax assets.

Tax benefits are recognized for a tax position wliemanagement’s judgment, it is more likely timem that the position will be
sustained upon examination by a taxing authority.dtax position that meets the more-likely-thabnecognition threshold, the tax benefit is
measured as the largest amount that is judgedvim dgreater than 50% likelihood of being realimpdn ultimate settlement with a taxing
authority. The liability associated with unrecogridzax benefits is adjusted periodically due tongfireg circumstances, such as the progress c
tax audits, case law developments and new or enmglggislation. Such adjustments are recognizeldrperiod in which they are identified.
The effective tax rate includes the net impacthafnges in the liability for unrecognized tax betsedind subsequent adjustments as considere
appropriate by management. The number of yearsopéim tax audits varies by jurisdiction. Whilesitaften difficult to predict the final
outcome or the timing of resolution of any partarulax matter, we believe our liability for unreaized tax benefits is adequate. Favorable
resolution of an unrecognized tax benefit coulddmgnized as a reduction in our tax provision effiective tax rate in the period of resoluti
Unfavorable settlement of an unrecognized tax bieoeé recognized tax position under examinationld increase the tax provision and
effective tax rate and may require the use of aashe period of resolution. Interest and penalteegnized on the liability for unrecognized
tax benefits is recorded as income tax expense.
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Inflation

Although we cannot accurately anticipate the efééénflation on our operations, we believe thdtdtion has not had a material impact
on our results of operations or financial conditiShould there be periods of high inflation in fbeire, our results of operations or financial
condition would be exposed to the effects of imfiat such as higher rents for our leases undetagmaterms based on the consumer price
index and higher interest expense on the variatéeportion of our debt.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

Our debt effectively bears interest at fixed andalde rates so that we are exposed to market reskdting from interest rate
fluctuations. We regularly evaluate our exposurthése risks and take measures to mitigate thelsg on our consolidated financial results.
do not participate in speculative derivative tradin

Interest rates on borrowings for the 2013 Term LBadility are for one-month periods in the cas&uwifodollar borrowings. Our
exposure to market risk for changes in interesisraglates to interest expense on variable rate Aslof December 31, 2014 , we had $308.3
million of outstanding borrowings under our 2013mMd.oan Facility of which $160.0 million of this table rate debt is hedged to a fixed rate
under an interest rate swap agreement. Changhs fait value of the interest rate swap derivaiingtrument is recorded each period in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).Bas¢he amount of our variable rate debt and mierést rate swap agreement as of
December 31, 2014 , a hypothetical 100 basis patatest increase would have increased our anntexkist cost by approximately $222,000.

For additional information concerning the term®of 2013 Term Loan Facility, see Note 10 — Longri@&ebt to our consolidated
financial statements in this Annual Report.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our Financial Statements appear following the digreapage hereto, are incorporated herein by neéerand are listed in the index
appearing under Item 15.

Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcégnting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures: We maintain disclosure controls and proced(assuch term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchangjetiat are designed to ensure that the informatguired to be disclosed by us in the
reports filed or submitted by us under the Exchalgtas recorded, processed, summarized and repuithin the time periods specified in 1
SEC's rules and forms and such information is aadated and communicated to management, includiagthief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allamely decisions regarding required disclosure. Dsgare controls and procedures, no matter
how well designed and operated, can provide ordgarable assurances of achieving the desired tantro

As of December 31, 2014, we carried out an evalnatinder the supervision and with the participatibour management, including the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial iOéf, of the effectiveness of the design and opmraif our disclosure controls and
procedures defined above. Based upon that evatyatio Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finandtficer have concluded that, as of
December 31, 2014, our disclosure controls andgohaes were effective at the reasonable assuranek |

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Ovéiinancial Reporting: Our management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over finahegorting (as such term is defined in Rules 18é)land 15d-15(f) under the Exchange
Act). Under the supervision and with the participatof our management, including our Chief Exeaaii®fficer and Chief Financial Officer,
we assessed the effectiveness of our internal@amter financial reporting as of December 31, 2Qfh4making this assessment, our
management used the criteria set forth by the Cateenof Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadwam@assion (COSO) innternal
Control — Integrated Framewoi(2013). Based on our management’s assessmentthsisg criteria, our management concluded thatf as o
December 31, 2014, we maintained effective intecoatrol over financial reporting.

Our internal control over financial reporting issted to provide reasonable assurance regardingliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of consolidated financial statemémt external purposes in accordance with geneaaltepted accounting principles. Because
of its inherent limitations, internal control oviamancial reporting may not prevent or detect naitshents. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that controls

57




Table of Contents

may become inadequate because of changes in amyjitr that the degree of compliance with thegpedi or procedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent regdsigublic accounting firm, has audited the effeartess of our internal control o
financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, aedtim their attestation report included followithge signature page hereto, included in ltem
15.

Material Weakness Previously Identified We previously reported a material weakness irriiatiecontrol over journal entries in
Item 9A. Controls and Procedur in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscaly ended December 31, 2013.

Remediation Efforts on Previously Identified Matextli Weakness:Prior to the end of the first quarter of 2014, ne@ssessed and revit
our control activities to address the material wess in our internal control over financial repugtrelated to journal entries; specifically that
certain accounting personnel had system accessticckeate and post journal entries to substaptilliof the key accounts as of December 31
2013 which were not subject to an independent vepi®cess.

During the first quarter of 2014, we implementecbatrol to review all journal entries created andtpd in our accounting and financial
reporting system, to determine which, if any, exgtrivere created and posted by a single individuahe event that a single individual created
and posted a journal entry, the details of theyesute independently reviewed and approved timelylaypagement to ensure completeness,
accuracy and validity of the entry.

Management tested this control and found it to émghed and operating effectively and concludeaf &eptember 30, 2014, this
material weakness had been remediated.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportgn There have been no changes in our internal coowe financial reporting
during the quarter ended December 31, 2014 tha hreaterially affected, or are reasonably likelyraterially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govere

The information with respect to directors, execaitbfficers and corporate governance of the Compmmgcorporated herein by reference
to the following sections of the Company’s defwitiProxy Statement relating to the Company’s 20hBual Meeting of Stockholders to be
filed with the SEC within 120 days of the Companfyésal year ended December 31, 2014 (the “Progyeftent”): “Matters to be Considered
at Annual Meeting — Proposal One — Election of bBiogs,” “Corporate Governance and Board Matters efpGrate Governance
Documents,” “Corporate Governance and Board MatterS8ommittee Membership — Audit Committee,” “Seatib6(A) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance,” “Executive Offisgrand “Deadline for Receipt of Stockholder Pragdes

The following are the members of our Board of Dioes and our Executive Officers:

Board of Directors:
Robert Giardina
Paul N. Arnold

Bruce C. Bruckmann
J. Rice Edmonds
John H. Flood IlI
Thomas J. Galligan 11l
Kevin McCall
Executive Officers:
Robert Giardina
Daniel Gallagher
Carolyn Spatafora
Nitin Ajmera

Paul Barron

David M. Kastin
Scott Milford

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Executive Chairman, Town Sports International Huodi, Inc.

Former Chairman of the Board and Chief Executivic®f, Cort Business
Services, Inc.

Managing Director, Bruckmann, Rosser, Sherrill & Qd?
Managing Director, Edmonds Capital, LLC

Chief Executive Officer, Synergy Global OutsourgibgC
Former Executive Chairman, Papa Gino’s HoldingspCor
Chief Executive Officer and President, ParadignpErtes, LLC

Executive Chairman

Chief Executive Officer and President

Chief Financial Officer

Senior Vice President — Shared Services and Caatrol

Senior Vice President — Chief Information Officer

Senior Vice President — General Counsel and Cotp@acretary
Senior Vice President — Human Resources

The information with respect to executive compensait incorporated herein by reference to theofeihg sections of the Proxy Statement:
“Executive Compensation” and “Corporate Governaareg Board Matters — Compensation Committee Intkd@nd Insider Participation.”

The information with respect to compensation oédliors is incorporated herein by reference to dHewing section of the Proxy Statement:
“Corporate Governance and Board Matters — Direttomnpensation for the 2014 Fiscal Year.”

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aianagement and Related Stockholder Matters
The information about securities authorized fou#sce under equity compensation plans is incorpdragrein by reference to the
following section of the Proxy Statement: "Execati@ompensation - Equity Compensation Plan Inforonati

The information with respect to security ownersbiifgertain beneficial owners and management isrparated herein by reference to
following section of the Proxy Statement: “Ownepshf Securities.”

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, addector Independence

The information with respect to certain relatiopshand related transactions and director indepemedesrincorporated herein by refere
to the following sections of the Proxy Statemefettain Relationships and Related Transactions™@&adporate Governance and Board
Matters — Director Independence.”
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Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information with respect to principal account@es and services is incorporated herein by eafsr to the following section of the

Proxy Statement: “Matters to be Considered at Ahhleeting — Proposal Two — Ratification of Independ Registered Public Accounting
Firm.”
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PART IV
ltem 15. Exhibits And Financial Statements

(&) Financial Statements
(1) Financial statements filed as part of tljsart:

Page Number
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements of Towar8gnternational Holdings, Inc:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfing F-2
Consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2@iL204r3 F-3
Consolidated statements of operations for the yemded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 F-4
Consolidated statements of comprehensive incomthéoyears ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 F-5
Consolidated statements of stockholders’ (defamj)ity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 20832012 F-6
Consolidated statements of cash flows for the yeaded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 F-7
Notes to consolidated financial statements F-8

(2) Financial Statements Schedules:

The schedules have been omitted because they eapplcable or the required information has bewfuded in the financial statements
or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits. See Item 15(b) below.

(b) Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K

The information required by this item is incorpadherein by reference from the Index to Exhibitmiediately following page F-37 of
this Annual Report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized, on February 26, 2015.

T OWN SPORTS | NTERNATIONAL H OLDINGS, | NC.

By:
/s/  DANIEL GALLAGHER

Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Title Date
By: /s/  DANIEL GALLAGHER Chief Executive Officer (principal executive offig¢ February 26, 2015

Daniel Gallagher

By: Chief Financial Officer (principal financial and February 26, 2015
/s CAROLYN SPATAFORA accounting officer)

Carolyn Spatafora

By: /sl PAUL ARNOLD Director February 26, 2015
Paul Arnold
By: /sl BRUCE BRUCKMANN Director February 26, 2015

Bruce Bruckmann

By: Is/J. RICE EDMONDS Director February 26, 2015
J. Rice Edmonds

By: /sl JOHN H. FLOOD IlI Director February 26, 2015
John H. Flood Ill
By: sl THOMAS J. GALLIGAN llI Director February 26, 2015

Thomas J. Galligan 11l

By: /s ROBERT GIARDINA Executive Chairman February 26, 2015
Robert Giardina

By: /sl KEVIN MCCALL Director February 26, 2015
Kevin McCall
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INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements of TowarSpinternational Holdings, Inc.:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm

Consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2@1204r8

Consolidated statements of operations for the yeraded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
Consolidated statements of comprehensive incominéoyears ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
Consolidated statements of stockholders’ (defemfity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 20832012
Consolidated statements of cash flows for the yeadged December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Notes to consolidated financial statements
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Town Sports International Holdings, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated bz#asheets and the related consolidated statemfeopi@tions, comprehensive (loss)
income, stockholders’ (deficit) equity and casiwiéopresent fairly, in all material respects, thmaficial position of Town Sports International
Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries at Decembe2B814 and 2013, and the results of their operatmuastheir cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, Zin conformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of America. Alsc
in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of December 31, 2014,
based on criteria establishedlmernal Control - Integrated Framework (201i8sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatigribe
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's managamegsponsible for these financial statementspfaintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assesst of the effectiveness of internal control dfileancial reporting, included in Management's
Annual Report on Internal Control over FinanciapBeing appearing under ltem 9A. Our responsibibtyo express opinions on these
financial statements and on the Company's interorarol over financial reporting based on our inéégd audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with the standards of the Public Compacypunting Oversight Board (United States). Thetsendards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurdomet avhether the financial statements are freeatenal misstatement and whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. Our audits of tharicial statements included examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts actbdiges in the financial statements, assessingdbeunting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating #ralbfinancial statement presentation. Our aufiibt@rnal control over financial reportil
included obtaining an understanding of internaltcmrover financial reporting, assessing the risktta material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectisgé internal control based on the assessedQiskaudits also included performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary girthenstances. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclisdbose policies and procedures that (i) pertathéganaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettfansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readwaassurance regarding prevention or timely detectf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeanaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

/s] PRICEWATERHOUSEC OOPERY.LP

New York, New York
February 27, 2015
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Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net

Inventory

Deferred tax assets
Prepaid corporate income taxes

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(All figures in thousands except share and per shardata)

ASSETS

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets
Fixed assets, net

Goodwill

Intangible assets, net
Deferred tax assets
Deferred membership costs
Other assets

Total assets

Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)

Stockholders’ deficit:

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; no shares issneédutstanding at both December 31, 2C
and December 31, 2013

Common stock, $0.001 par value; issued and outstgrad, 322,249 and 24,072,705 shares at

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'’ DEFICIT
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued interest
Dividends payable
Deferred revenue
Deferred tax liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Building financing arrangement
Dividends payable
Deferred lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, resplgctive

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ deficit

Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit

TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

2014 2013
9345. $ 73,50¢
3,65¢ 3,70¢
572 47z
724 17,01(
11,58¢ 6
12,89: 10,85(
122,88( 105,64
233,64 243,99
32,59: 32,87(
394 90¢
— 11,34(
7,39 8,72t
12,92( 10,31¢
409,83. $ 413,79:
311 $ 3,25(
2,87: 8,11¢
26,70: 31,53¢
37€ 737
291 25¢
36,95( 33,91
30C —
70,60¢ 77,81
296,75 311,65
83,40( —
211 407
53,84’ 56,88:
11,99¢ —
2,45¢ 2,46(
8,64: 8,08¢
527,91 457,30
24 24
(10,05¢) (13,84¢)
39t 2,05:
(108,445 (31,74%)
(118,08, (43,516
409,83 $ 413,79:




See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012

(All figures in thousands except share and per shardata)

Revenues:
Club operations
Fees and other

Operating Expenses:
Payroll and related
Club operating
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Insurance recovery related to damaged property
Impairment of fixed assets
Impairment of goodwill

Operating income
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Interest expense
Interest income
Equity in the earnings of investees and rentalnimeo
(Loss) income before provision for corporate incamees
Provision for corporate income taxes
Net (loss) income
(Loss) earnings per share:
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average number of shares used in calegldtiss) earnings per share:

Basic
Diluted
Dividends declared per common share

2014 2013 2012
44787, $ 464,241 473,17
5,971 5,98t 5,80
453,84, 470,22¢ 478,98:
177,00¢ 174,89: 181,63:
192,71¢ 179,68: 178,95(
31,35: 28,43 24,13¢
47,30° 49,09¢ 49,39:
— (3,194) —
4,56¢ 714 3,43¢
137 — —
453,09( 429,62 437,54t
752 40,59¢ 41,43
49 75C 1,01cC
19,03¢ 22,611 24,64(
— @ (43)
(2,409 (2,459 (2,46))
(16,379 19,69 18,28’
52,61: 7,361 6,321
(68,989 $ 12,32 11,96¢
(2.8 $ 0.51 0.51
2.8 $ 0.5 0.5
24,266,40 24,031,53 23,436,39
24,266,40 24,736,96 24,114,54
03z % 0.1¢ 3.0C

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INC OME

Years Ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012
(All figures in thousands)

2014 2013 2012

Net (loss) income $ (68,989 12,32 $ 11,96¢
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments, netbfe0, ($49) and $0 for the

years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 ctasghe (54%) 68 95

Interest rate swap, net of tax of $0, ($583) antl {86 the years ended

December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively (1,119 75€ (220
Total other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax (1,657) 82¢ (25)
Total comprehensive (loss) income $ (70,649 13,15  § 11,94:

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT) EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012
(All figures in thousands except share and per shardata)

Common Stock

Accumulated

Balance at December 31, 2011
Stock option exercises
Common stock grants
Restricted stock grants
Cancellation of options
Forfeiture of restricted stock

Compensation related to stock options ant
restricted stock grants

Dividends declared on common stock
Net income

Derivative financial instruments

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Balance at December 31, 2012
Stock option exercises
Common stock grants
Restricted stock grants
Cancellation of options
Forfeiture of restricted stock

Compensation related to stock options and
restricted stock grants

Tax shortfall from stock option exercises a
restricted stock vesting

Dividends declared on common stock
Dividend forfeitures

Net income

Derivative financial instruments

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Balance at December 31, 2013
Stock option exercises
Common stock grants
Restricted stock grants
Cancellation of options
Forfeiture of restricted stock

Compensation related to stock options ant
restricted stock grants

Tax benefit from stock option exercises and
restricted stock vesting, net

Tax benefit on dividend payments
Dividends declared on common stock
Dividend forfeitures

Net loss

Derivative financial instruments

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Balance at December 31, 2014

($.001 par) Additional Other Retained Total
Paid-in Comprehensive Earnings Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Income (Deficit) (Deficit) Equity

23,040,888 $ 23 % (19,93) $ 1,251 $ 19,01 $ 354
534,51 1 2,351 — — 2,352
12,50: — 11€ — — 11€
251,50( — — — — —
— — (49 — — (49
(26,29 — — — — —
— — 1,19( — — 1,19(¢
— — — — (71,400 (71,400
— — — — 11,96¢ 11,96¢
— — — (220 — (220
— — — 95 — 95
23,813,10 24 (16,32¢) 1,22¢ (40,42() (55,49¢)
135,78t — 60C — — 60C
29,56: — 30¢ — — 30E
178,50( — — — — —
— — (80) — — (80)
(84,249 — — — — —
— — 1,89¢ — — 1,89¢
— — (244 — — (2449)
— — — — (3,850 (3,850
— — — — 20C 20C
— — — — 12,32« 12,32«
— — — 75€ — 75€
— — — 68 — 68
24,072,70 24 (13,84¢) 2,052 (31,74¢) (43,516
73,04 — 13: — — 13¢
21,24¢ — 24~ — — 24%
196,50( — — — — —
— — (72) — - (79)
(31,95¢) — — — — —
— — 1,66¢ — — 1,66¢€
— — 1,61: — — 1,61:
— — 20¢ — — 20t
— — — — (7,736 (7,736
— — — — 23 23
— — — — (68,989 (68,989
— — — (1,119 — (1,119
— — — (54%) — (54%)
2433154 $ 24 % (10,05 % 39t $ (108/44Y) $ (118,08,




See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012
(All figures in thousands)
2014 2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net (loss) income (68,989 $ 12,32¢  $ 11,96¢
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to @eshcprovided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 47,307 49,09¢ 49,39:

Insurance recovery related to damaged property — 3,19/ —

Impairment of fixed assets 4,56¢ 714 3,43¢

Impairment of goodwill 137 — —

Loss on extinguishment of debt 492 75C 1,01(

Amortization of debt discount 1,30 99¢ 517

Amortization of debt issuance costs 627 1,15¢ 1,13t

Amortization of building financing costs 31 — —

Noncash rental income, net of non-cash rental esgoen (5,399 (5,692 (4,037

Share-based compensation expense 1,911 2,20 1,30¢

Net change in deferred taxes 40,12¢ 6,12( 5,86¢

Net change in certain operating assets and liggdsijinet of acquisitions (20,99 89¢ (8,967

Decrease in deferred membership costs 1,32¢ 2,08¢ (694)

Landlord contributions to tenant improvements 1,684 1,472 1,34¢

Increase (decrease) in insurance reserves 482 (929) (2,07

Other 137 (619) (149)

Total adjustments 73,74 55,06« 48,08’
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,75¢ 67,38¢ 60,05:

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (42,05¢) (30,867) (22,49()
Acquisition of businesses — (2,939 —
Insurance recovery related to damaged property — 3,19/ —
Net cash used in investing activities (42,059 (30,60¢€) (22,49()
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from building financing arrangement 83,40( — —
Building financing arrangement costs (3,160 — —
Principal payments on 2013 Term Loan Facility (16,716 — —
Proceeds from 2013 Senior Credit Facility, netriioal issue discount — 323,37! —
Proceeds from incremental term loan, net of origesue discount — — 59,70(
Proceeds from replacement 2011 Term Loan Facditgérs — — 13,79¢
Principal payments to non-consenting 2011 Term Lieecility lenders — — (13,79¢)
Principal payments on 2011 Term Loan Facility — — (36,007
Repayment of 2011 Senior Credit Facility — (315,74 —
Term loan issuance and amendment related finamccisi — (4,35€) (3,34¢)
Debt issuance costs — (769) (225
Cash dividends paid (7,877%) (4,08¢) (70,29¢)
Proceeds from stock option exercises 138 60C 2,352
Tax benefit from restricted stock vesting 1,72 — —

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 57,50: (975) (47,727)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (359) 33 37

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent 19,85« 35,84( (10,12)
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period 73,59¢ 37,75¢ 47,88(
Cash and cash equivalents end of period 93,45: $ 7359¢ $ 37,75¢
Summary of the change in certain operating assets liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 25 % 2,85¢ $ (64%)
Increase in inventory (203) (36) (14¢)
Increase in prepaid expenses and other currertsasse (1,549 (1,27¢ (432)
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrymshegs and accrued interest (9,85€) 3,08¢ (3,099
Change in prepaid corporate income taxes and catg@orcome taxes payable 22,779 1,60¢ (427
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 3,26( (5,340 (4,22))




Net change in certain working capital components $ (20,999 % 89t $ (8,967)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012
(In thousands except share and per share data)

1. Basis of Presentation

As of December 31, 2014, Town Sports Internatidf@tings, Inc. (the “Company” or “TSI Holdings hitough its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Town Sports International, LLC (“TSL.C"), operated 158 fitness clubs (“Clubs”) compds# 107 clubs in the New York
metropolitan market under the “New York Sports Glubrand name, 30 clubs in the Boston market uttfdetBoston Sports Clubs” brand
name, 13 clubs ( two of which are partly-ownedhi@ Washington, D.C. market under the “Washingtpar& Clubs” brand name, five clubs
in the Philadelphia market under the “Philadel@perts Clubs” brand name and three clubs in Switmdr As of December 31, 2014, the
Company also owned and operated one BFX Studiohntacl its grand opening in September 2014.

2. Correction of Accounting Errors

The results for the year ended December 31, 2043da the correction of deferred lease receivaduebrental income resulting in an
increase in rental income from subtenants andadelincrease in deferred lease receivable in tmepany’s consolidated statement of
operations and consolidated balance sheet, regplyctihis correction resulted in the recognitidri-ees and other revenue in the year ended
December 31, 2013 of $424 that relates to 2012.Gdrapany does not believe that this error corraasanaterial to 2013 or prior reporting
periods.

The results for the year ended December 31, 2GIBiatlude the correction of errors that resultedri increase in tax benefits for
corporate income taxes and a related increasefénrdd tax assets in our consolidated statemeopefations and consolidated balance sheet,
respectively. In the fourth quarter of 2013, ther@any identified corrections related to temporaffetences in fixed assets for state
depreciation resulting in the recognition of anoime tax benefit of $225 . Also, in the fourth qeaxf 2013, the Company identified
corrections related to temporary differences imllard allowances resulting in the recognition of ofiperiod expense of $209 for a net benefi
to the Provision for corporate income taxes of Bilthe year ended December 31, 2013. The Compaey wiat believe that either error
correction is material to 2013 or prior reportirgyipds.

3.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiaentade the accounts of TSI Holdings and all whailyned subsidiaries. All
intercompany accounts and transactions have baamated in consolidation.

Revenue Recognition

The Company is currently in the process of intrag@ new pricing strategy to a majority of itsleducalled High Value Low Price
("HVLP") strategy. As of December 31, 2014, 71 dave under this new pricing strategy. The Comgastprically offered Passport
Membership, Core Membership, Gold Membership arstitéed Membership. The conversion process wiithiglate the Core, Gold, and
Restricted Memberships. The HVLP pricing stratetfgrs two basic types of membership plans: Preiiembership and Passport
Membership. The Passport Membership continuesfés tife same current level of service and ameniteter a month-to-month plan, which
allows members to use any club at any time.The Rrellembership allows members unlimited use ohglsi "home club" with access to use
other non-home clubs for an additional usage fée.r€venue recognition related to monthly duesmegevill not be impacted by the change
in membership pricing strategy.

The Company generally receives one-time non-refoledaining fees and monthly dues from its membeHistorically, the Company’s
members had the option to join on either a monttmtmth basis or to commit to a one-year membergkfipr a club adopts the HVLP
strategy, it will only offer month-to-month membleiiss. Month-to-month members can cancel their mestiye at any time with 30 days
notice. Membership dues for members who pay arshwes upfront are recognized on a straight-linesbasér a 12month period commencir
with the first month of the new member contract.iMbership dues for members who pay monthly are m@zed in the period in which access
to the club is provided.

Usage fees are recorded to membership revenue imdinth the usage occurs. Usage fees recordedb2e48 , $2,126 and $2,166 for
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 284k atively.
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Joining fees include initiation and processing faed are currently deferred and recognized, oreéght-line basis, over the estimated
average membership life. Certain membershipsaiaoge an annual fee beginning on the first dap@hbership and on each annual
anniversary date thereafter or annually each Jgriuand are deferred and recognized, on a stréighbasis over 12 months.

The related direct and incremental expenses of meshlp acquisition, which include sales commissitiasiuses and related taxes and
benefits, are recognized, on a straight-line basisperations over the estimated average memlpelifhi Deferred membership costs were
$7,396 and $8,725 at December 31, 2014 and 2043ectvely.

The Company tracks the estimated average membédifehgd restricted members separately from unietstd members. The restricted
membership base currently includes student memipsrsitroduced in April 2010, teacher membershipioduced in April 2011 and first
responder memberships, a one-time promotional off€eptember 2011. As of December 31, 2014, thmated average membership life of
an unrestricted member and a restricted membe mdhths and 26 months , respectively. The Compamyitors factors that might affect the
estimated average membership life including redentiends, attrition trends, membership sales velumembership composition, competition,
and general economic conditions, and adjusts tfimat® on a quarterly basis. The table below surireaithe estimated average membership
life of restricted members and unrestricted membeaswere in effect for each quarter during thstplaree year period from 2012 through
2014 .

Estimated Average Membership Life of Estimated Average Membership Life of
an Unrestricted Member a Restricted Member
Period 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Three months ended March 31 22 month 25 month 28 month 28 month 27 month 25 month
Three months ended June 30 22 month 24 month 28 month: 27 month 28 month 27 month
Three months ended September 30 22 month: 23 month: 28 month: 26 month: 28 months 28 month:
Three months ended December 31 22 month 23 month 27 month 26 month 28 month 27 month

Revenues from ancillary services, such as pergmaialng sessions, are recognized as serviceseafermed. Unused personal training
sessions expire after a set, disclosed periodref &fter purchase and are not refundable or redderbg the member for cash. The State of
New York has informed the Company that it is coasity whether the Company is required to remitaim®unt collected for unused, expil
personal training sessions to the State of New Yasrlnclaimed property. As of December 31, 2014281@, the Company had approxima
$15,207 and $14,309 , respectively, of unused apitezl personal training sessions. We have notgrized any revenue from these sessions
and have recorded the amounts as deferred rev€hae&Company does not believe that these amountihject to the escheatment or
abandoned property laws of any jurisdiction, inahgathe State of New York. However, it is possithlat one or more of these jurisdictions
may not agree with the Company'’s position and naiyrcthat the Company must remit all or a portidth@se amounts to such jurisdiction.

In addition to the prepaid personal training sessitie Company also offers a personal training neeshiip product which consists of
single or multi-session packages ranging from onkstsessions per month. These sessions providdtebyembership product are at a
discount to our stand-alone session pricing and msised in each respective month. Members whthpse this product commit to a six
month period and revenue is recognized ratably theesix month commitment period.

The Company generates management fees from celtéirfacilities that are not wholly-owned. Manageriees earned for services
rendered are recognized at the time the relatedcesrare performed. These managed sites include thanaged university locations, and
seven managed sites, including four managed sitpsirad in connection with our Fitcorp acquisitiorMay 2013. Revenue generated from
managed sites were $1,502 , $796 and $496 forehrsyended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, teshec

When a revenue agreement involves multiple elemsnth as sales of both memberships and servia@iarrangement or potentially
multiple arrangements, the entire fee from therayement is allocated to each respective elemeethas its relative fair value and recognized
when the revenue recognition criteria for each eleinis met.

The Company recognizes revenue from merchandies sabn delivery to the member.

In connection with advance receipts of fees or dilesCompany was required to maintain bonds tae#2,540 and $3,375 as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, purdoardarious state consumer protection laws.
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Advertising and Club Pre-opening Costs

Advertising costs and club pre-opening costs aeggad to operations during the period in which theyincurred, except for production
costs related to television and radio advertisemevhich are expensed when the related commemuialfirst aired. Total advertising costs
incurred by the Company for the years ended DeceBihe2014 , 2013 and 2012 totaled $7,903 , $5:0u3$6,158 , respectively and are
included in Club operating expenses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid instrumentsch have original maturities of three monthdems when acquired to be cash
equivalents. The carrying amounts reported in tdarite sheets for cash and cash equivalents appatefair value. The Company owns and
operates a captive insurance company in the St&ew York. Under the insurance laws of the StdtNlew York, this captive insurance
company is required to maintain a cash balancé lefaiat $250 . At December 31, 2014 and 2013, $2¢4sh related to this wholly-owned
subsidiary was included in cash and cash equivalent

Deferred Lease Liabilities, Non-cash Rental Experesed Additional Rent

The Company recognizes rental expense for leagbssahieduled rent increases and inclusive of remtiatessions, on the straight-line
basis over the life of the lease beginning uporctiTamencement date of the lease. Rent concesgiomsgrily received in the form of free
rental periods, are also deferred and amortizea stnaight-line basis over the life of the lease.

The Company leases office, warehouse and multeaticmal facilities and certain equipment under-nancelable operating leases. In
addition to base rent, the facility leases gengraibvide for additional rent to cover common amegintenance charges incurred and to pass
along increases in real estate taxes. The Compamyes for any unpaid common area maintenance ebamy real estate taxes on a club-by-
club basis.

Upon entering into certain leases, the Companyivese&onstruction allowances from the landlord. Seheonstruction allowances are
recorded as deferred lease liability credits onblance sheet when the requirements for theseaatioes are met as stated in the respective
lease and are amortized as a reduction of rentnsepaver the term of the lease. Amortization odefd construction allowances were $2,771
$3,310 and $2,955 as of December 31, 2014 , 20d2@h2 , respectively.

Certain leases provide for contingent rent basexh wiefined formulas of revenue, cash flows or djiegaesults for the respective
facilities. These contingent rent payments typicadll for additional rent payments calculated @eecentage of the respective club’s revenue
or a percentage of revenue in excess of defineakleints during a specified year. The Companyn@soontingent rent expense over the
related contingent rental period at the time ttspeetive contingent targets are probable of beiag m

Lease termination penalties are recognized avédire based on the expected settlement amounthégttandlord when the Company
terminates the contract before the lease terminmatide. In the year ended December 31, 2014, thep@oy recorded $1,482 of lease
termination penalties, which was included in clyei@ting expenses in the accompanying statemeisenations. The Company did not incur
any lease termination penalties in the years ebdmgmber 31, 2013 or 2012.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Acsus

Accounts receivable consists of amounts due frabmpany’s membership base and was $6,206 anti3s&t@ecember 31, 205hd
2013, respectively, before the allowance for diullatccounts. The Company maintains allowancesliémbtful accounts for estimated losses
resulting from the inability of the Company’s custers to make required payments. The Company cassidetors such as: historical
collection experience, the age of the receivablartz® and general economic conditions that mayaffeustomer’s ability to pay.

Following are the changes in the allowance for dimlilaccounts for the years December 31, 2014 3201 2012 :

Balance Beginning Write-offs Net of Balance at

of the Year Additions Recoveries End of Year
December 31, 2014 $ 2,30¢ $ 9,82¢ $ (9,629 $ 2,511
December 31, 2013 $ 3,24¢  $ 8,33t $ (9,275 % 2,30¢
December 31, 2012 $ 2,44C $ 9,711 $ (8,907) $ 3,24¢
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Inventory

Inventory consists of supplies, headsets for thb ehtertainment system, clothing and other iteansdle to members. Inventories are
valued at the lower of cost or market by the finstfirst-out method.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost and depreciatadwaight-line basis over the estimated usefetlof the assets, which are 30 years
for building and improvements, five years for ckduipment, furniture, fixtures and computer equipta@nd three to five years for computer
software. Leasehold improvements are amortized thveshorter of their estimated useful lives orrémaining period of the related lease.
Payroll costs directly related to the constructiorexpansion of the Company’s club base are cégmthlvith leasehold improvements.
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are chdmeperations as incurred. The cost and relatedraulated depreciation of assets retired
or sold is removed from the respective accountsaaydgain or loss is recognized in operations. ddsts related to developing web
applications, developing web pages and installingnhancing developed applications on the web sease capitalized and classified as
computer software. Web site hosting fees and m@amtee costs are expensed as incurred.

Intangible Assets and Debt Issuance Costs

Intangible assets are stated at cost and amottizéloe straight-line method over their respectistngated lives. Intangible assets
currently consist of membership lists, managementracts and trade names. Historically, intangéssets also included covenants-not-to-
compete and a beneficial lease. Covenants-notitgpete are amortized over the contractual life, galyeone to five years, and beneficial
leases are amortized over the remaining life olutheerlying club lease. Membership lists are arnediover the estimated average membe
life, currently at 22 months , management contraptsamortized over their current contractual ligEbetween nine and 11 years and trade
names are amortized over their estimated usefes lof between 10 and 20 years.

Debt issuance costs are classified within othestasmd are being amortized as additional intesgetnse over the life of the underlying
debt, five to seven years, using the interest nietAmortization of debt issue costs was $627 ,%3 dnd $1,135 , for the years ended
December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectivelydiBg financing costs are classified within otlaasets and are being amortized as
additional interest expense over the life of thdartying financing arrangement, 25 years , usimgitilerest method. Amortization of building
financing costs was $31 for the year ended DeceBbe2014 . There were no building financing casthe years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively.

Fair Value Measurements

Accounting guidance on fair value measurementsifigea hierarchy of valuation techniques basedvbather the inputs to those
valuation techniques are observable or unobserv@iiiservable inputs reflect market data obtainechfindependent sources, while
unobservable inputs reflect the Company’s markstiaptions. These two types of inputs create tHeviimg fair value hierarchy:

* Level 1 — Quoted prices fadenticalinstruments in active marke

* Level 2 — Quoted prices faimilar instruments in active markets; quoted prices fentital or similar instruments in markets that
are not active; and model-derived valuations inoltdll significant inputs and significant valuewdnis are observable in active
markets.

» Level 3 — Valuations derived from valuation ta@ues in which one or more significant inputs igngicant value drivers are
unobservable

This hierarchy requires the Company to use obsérvabrket data, when available, and to minimizeube of unobservable inputs when
determining fair value.

Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assetsd Goodwiill

Long-lived assets, such as fixed assets and iribngssets are reviewed for impairment when evantgcumstances indicate that their
carrying value may not be recoverable. Estimatetiszounted expected future cash flows are usedtermiine if an asset group is impairec
which case the asset’s carrying value would beaedlto its fair value, calculated considering a boration of market approach and a cost
approach. In determining the recoverability of @xassets Level 3
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inputs were used in determining undiscounted clastsf which are based on internal budgets and &stsc¢hrough the end of the life of the
primary asset in the asset group which is norntallylife of leasehold improvements. The most sigaift assumptions in those budgets and
forecasts relate to estimated membership and ancilévenue, attrition rates, estimated resuletedlto new program launches and
maintenance capital expenditures, which are gdyaralimated at approximately 3% to S¥ototal revenues depending upon the condition:
needs of a given club.

Gooduwill represents the excess of consideratiod paér the fair value of the net identifiable biesia assets acquired in the acquisition ¢
a club or group of clubs. Financial Accounting Stamls Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codificat(*ASC”) 350-20, Intangibles —
Goodwill and Other, requires goodwill to be testedimpairment on an annual basis and between anests in certain circumstances, and
written down when impaired. The Company’s impairtnewiew process compares the fair value of thentép unit in which the goodwill
resides to its carrying value.

Goodwill impairment testing is a two-step procdasor to performing this two-step process, compaaleo have the option to apply a
gualitative approach to assess goodwill for impaimmUnder the qualitative approach, an entitythasoption to first assess qualitative factors
to determine whether the existence of events ougistances leads to a determination that it is rikegly than not that the fair value of a
reporting unit is less than its carrying amountaffer assessing the totality of events or cirdamses, an entity determines it is not more likely
than not that the fair value of a reporting unieiss than its carrying amount, then performingtét® step impairment test is unnecessary.
Companies that do not elect to perform the qualgapproach may proceed directly to the tstep process. Step 1 involves comparing the
value of the Company’s reporting units to theirgeag amounts. If the fair value of the reportingjtus greater than its carrying amount, there
is no impairment. If the reporting unit’s carryiaghount is greater than the fair value, the sectemrmust be completed to measure the amou
of impairment, if any. Step 2 calculates the ingbliair value of goodwill by deducting the fair velof all tangible and intangible assets,
excluding goodwill, of the reporting unit from tfer value of the reporting unit as determined iei1. The implied fair value of goodwill
determined in this step is compared to the carryadge of goodwill. If the implied fair value of gdwill is less than the carrying value of
goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized equahwdifference. The Company performs this analgsisually as of the last day of February
and in the interim if a triggering event occurseT®ompany’s goodwill impairment tests as of Febyd, 2014, May 31, 2014 and December
31, 2014 were performed using the two-step goodmilairment analysis.

Insurance

The Company obtains insurance coverage for sigmfiexposures as well as those risks required todbeed by law or contract. The
Company retains a portion of risk internally rethte general liability losses. Where the Comparigins risk, provisions are recorded based
upon the Company'’s estimates of its ultimate expoar claims, which are included in general anchiuistrative expenses in the
accompanying statements of operations. The prowdsioe estimated using actuarial analysis basethons experience, an estimate of claims
incurred but not yet reported and other relevactoia. In this connection, under the provisionhef eductible agreement related to the
payment and administration of the Company'’s insceasiaims, we are required to maintain irrevocéddiers of credit, totaling $615 as of
December 31, 2014.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethi@ United States of America
("U.S.”) requires management to make estimatesaasdmptions that affect the reported amounts etsssid liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the dates®fihancial statements and the reported amounsvehues and expenses during the reporting
periods. Actual results could differ from thosdrestes.

The most significant assumptions and estimateterédathe useful lives of long-term assets, recabidity and impairment of fixed and
intangible assets, deferred income tax valuatialyation of and expense incurred in connection wiititk options, valuation of interest-rate
swap arrangements, insurance reserves, legal gentires and the estimated average membership life.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recogniaethe expected future tax consequences of etkatdhave been included in the finan
statements or tax returns. The Company also rezegmieferred tax in relation to the U.S. taxeshertatal cumulative earnings of the
Company's Swiss clubs. Deferred tax liabilities argets are determined on the basis of the differeatween the financial statement and tax
basis of assets and liabilities (“temporary differes”)at enacted tax rates in effect for the years irctvitthe temporary differences are expe
to reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded thuoe

F-12




Table of Contents
TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

deferred tax assets to the amount that is morfyltkan not to be realized. In assessing the need Yaluation allowance, we consider all
positive and negative evidence, including futuneersals of existing taxable temporary differengesjected future taxable income, tax
planning strategies and recent financial operatiBased on the weight of the evidence, in particalprojection to be in a cumulative loss
during the three year period ending December 3152@hich is considered a significant piece of iegaevidence, the Company recorded a
$60,368 non-cash charge to income tax expensedblist a full valuation allowance against its Ungt deferred tax assets in the fourth
quarter of 2014.

The guidance related to accounting for uncertairptasitions prescribes a recognition threshold medsurement attribute for a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a taxmedind also provides guidance on de-recognitilassdication, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and titeors The Company recognizes interest and persadtéerued related to unrecognized tax
benefits in income tax expense.

Statements of Cash Flows
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information;

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Cash paid
Interest (net of amounts capitalized) $ 17,10¢ % 19,74  $ 23,73t
Income taxes $ 23,55: $ 39C $ 924
Noncash investing and financing activities
Acquisition of fixed assets included in accountggide and accrued expenses $ 4,82 % 578¢ $ 2,791

Note: Interest includes cash payments under Irigaise resulting from the sale of the East 86tbebproperty. See Notes 10 and 11 for
additional noncash financing activities.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) incomefinee as the change in equity of a business enserpuring a period from
transactions and other events and circumstancesrfom-owner sources, including changes in thevigine of the Company’s derivative
financial instrument and foreign currency translatadjustments. The Company presents accumulated @dmprehensive (loss) income in its
consolidated statements of comprehensive (loss)iec

The Company uses a derivative financial instrunti@fitmit exposure to changes in interest rateshen@ompany’s existing term loan
facility. The derivative financial instrument iscarded at fair value on the balance sheet and @sainghe fair value are either recognized in
accumulated other comprehensive income (a compaiattareholders’ equity) or net income dependinghe nature of the underlying
exposure, whether the hedge is formally designaseal hedge, and if designated, the extent to vihiehedge is effective. The Company’s
derivative financial instrument has been designated cash flow hedge. See Note 12 — Derivativariial Instruments for more information
on the Company’s risk management program and dermg

At December 31, 2014 , the Company owned threesSelibs, which use the Swiss Franc, their localenay, as their functional
currency. Assets and liabilities are translated WiS. dollars at year-end exchange rates, whilente and expense items are translated into
U.S. dollars at the average exchange rate forehieg For all periods presented, foreign excharaesaction gains and losses were not
material. Adjustments resulting from the transhatid foreign functional currency financial staterteeimto U.S. dollars are included in the
currency translation adjustment in the consolidatatements of stockholderglficit) equity and the consolidated statementsoofiprehensiv
(loss) income. The effect of foreign exchange tietien adjustments was $(545) , net of tax of $68 , net of tax of $49 and $9Bet of tax o
$0 , for the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2042812 , respectively.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consistash and cash equivalents and the
interest rate swap. Although the Company depdsitsaish with more than one financial institutiompf December 31, 2014 , $85,396 of the
cash balance of $93,452 was held at two finanosgiltutions. The Company has not
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experienced any losses on cash and cash equiealemints to date, and the Company believes ths¢dban the credit ratings of these
financial institutions, it is not exposed to angrsficant credit risk related to cash at this time.

The counterparty to the Company’s interest rateps&a major banking institution with a credit ratiof investment grade or better and
no collateral is required, and there are no sigaift risk concentrations. The Company believesisieof incurring losses on derivative
contracts related to credit risk is unlikely.

(Loss) Earnings Per Share

Basic (loss) earnings per share ("EPS") is compbyedividing net (loss) income applicable to comnstockholders by the weighted
average numbers of shares of common stock outstguadiring the period. Diluted EPS is computed simyjlto basic EPS, except that the
denominator is increased for the assumed exer€idibutive stock options and unvested restrictetktcalculated using the treasury stock
method.

The following table summarizes the weighted avexagamon shares for basic and diluted EPS compuatio

For The Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Weighted average number of common share outstardibgsic 24,266,40 24,031,53 23,436,39
Effect of dilutive share-based awards — 705,42¢ 678,14
Weighted average number of common shares outsigrdidiluted 24,266,40 24,736,96 24,114,54
(Loss) earnings per share:
Basic $ (2.8 $ 051 $ 0.51
Diluted $ (289 $ 05C $ 0.5C

For the year ended December 31, 2014, there wa$ext of diluted stock options and unvested retgd common stock on the
calculation of diluted EPS as the Company had dosstfor this period. There would have been 378 &&i-dilutive shares had the Company
not been in a net loss position for this period. the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,dwsodlinclude options to purchase 269,992
and 306,904 shares of the Compangdmmon stock, respectively, in the calculatiohdiloted EPS because the exercise prices of thpdens
were greater than the average market price andittedision would be anti-dilutive.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiaccordance with ASC 718, Compensation — Stock ggmsation (“ASC 718”).
ASC 718 requires that the cost resulting from fadire-based payment transactions be treated as neatjmn and recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. We record shased payment awards at fair value on the gramstafahe awards, based on the estimated
number of awards that are expected to vest. Theditie of stock options is determined using thackBiScholes option-pricing model. The fair
value of the restricted stock awards is based erlibsing price of the Company’s common stock endéte of the grant.

On December 11, 2012, adjustments were made ticatbck options which were modified in order taintain the intrinsic value of the
options in connection with the Company’s specigld#ind payment of $3.00 per share paid on Decettibe2012. The modifications in most
cases reduced the exercise price of the optiongnacettain other cases also increased the nunflmptions. The option modification impact
67 plan participants. The other existing terms emmtlitions of the options were not modified. Thedifioation of these options resulted in
incremental compensation expense of $148 whichreamnized on the modification date on Decembe@12 for options that were
modified which had been fully expensed as of théiffeation date with additional incremental compatisn expense of approximately $61@9
be recognized ratably over the remaining vestingge related to unvested options that were madliffes of December 31, 2014, there is less
than $1 remaining which will be recognized in theee months ended March 31, 2015. The incremeatapensation expense was determinec
by measuring the fair market value, using the Bl&ckoles methodology, of the modified options imraggly before and immediately after
dividend payment transaction.
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The fair value of the option awards for the peripdssented below was determined using a Black-8shukthodology using the
following weighted average assumptions:

Risk-Free Expected Fair Value
Interest Expected Expected Dividend at Date
Common Rate Life Volatility Yield of Grant
2012 option modification incremental expense 2.€% 6 year 7% — 3 2.74
2012 option modification incremental expense 0.4% 3 years 50% — —

The weighted average expected option term for 28flécts the application of the simplified methed sut in the FASB ASC 718-10-
S99, topic 14 issued by the Securities and Exch@ugemission (“SEC”), which defines the term asdkierage of the contractual term of the
options and the weighted average vesting periodlfaption tranches. The weighted average expempéidn term for 2012 was based on
actual past historical data of employee exercisabier and vesting data. Expected volatility petages for grant years 2011 and 2012 were
based on the daily historical volatility of the Cpamy’s stock price. The risk-free rate for periadthin the contractual life of the option is
based on the U.S. Treasury implied yield at thetahgrant.

4. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2014, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Upd&&U”) No. 2014-16,
"Derivatives and Hedging" (Topic 815): "Determinit¢hether the Host Contract in a Hybrid Financiattament Issued in the Form of a
Share Is More Akin to Debt or to Equity, which piaes guidance on identifying whether the naturthefhost contract in a hybrid instrument
is in the form of debt or equity”. This standarduizes management to consider the stated and ichglibstantive terms and features of the
hybrid financial instrument, including the embeddiedivative features, in order to determine whethernature of the host contract is more
akin to debt or to equity. The ASU is effective &amual periods and interim periods with those ahpariods beginning after December 15,
2015, with early adoption permitted. The Compangvaluating the impact of this standard on itsricial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15stisure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s AbililyContinue as a Going
Concern.” The standard requires management to &eglat each annual and interim reporting pertoel Gompany’s ability to continue as a
going concern within one year of the date the foirstatements are issued and provide relatedbdisies. This accounting guidance is
effective for the Company on a prospective bagisife annual period ending December 31, 2016 andtiexpected to have a material effect
on its financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Rexefrom Contracts with Customers”. The standaadiges a single,
comprehensive revenue recognition model for altreamts with customers and supersedes current reveaognition guidance. The revenue
standard contains principles that an entity wilplgdo determine the measurement of revenue anddiwf when it is recognized. The
underlying principle is that an entity will recogrirevenue to depict the transfer of goods or sesuio customers at an amount that the entity
expects to be entitled to in exchange for thoselgao services. The new standard also includesnegldadisclosures which are significantly
more comprehensive than those in existing revetaralards. The guidance is effective for annualiatedim periods beginning after
December 15, 2016. Early adoption is not permiftér: standard allows for either “full retrospectiagoption, meaning the standard is apy
to all of the periods presented, or “modified repective”adoption, meaning the standard is applied onlj¢omost current period presentet
the financial statements. The Company is evaluaiugjuate the impact of this standard on its fimgrstatements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-08, fieeting Discontinued Operations and DisclosureBisposals of Components of
an Entity.” The new guidance changes the critetadporting discontinued operations and requidgtnal disclosures of both discontinued
operations and certain other disposals that dgualify for discontinued operations reporting. Untle new criteria, only a disposal of a
component of an entity or a group of componentoéntity that represent a strategic shift that(basvill have) a major effect on the
Companys operations and financial results should be ptesgess discontinued operations. The new guidanefdstive for annual and interi
periods beginning after December 15, 2014, witlyesdoption permitted. The Company elected to eadlgpt the amended accounting
standard. The adoption of this guidance did notlavimpact on its financial statements.

In July 2013, the FASB issued updated guidance pmgthe Federal Funds Effective Swap Rate (oefight Index Swap Rate) to be
used as a U.S. benchmark interest rate for hedgriating purposes, in addition to the U.S. govermmate and LIBOR. Prior to the
amendment, only U.S. Treasury and the LIBOR swegsraere considered benchmark interest rates.
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Including the Federal Funds Effective Swap Rataraacceptable U.S. benchmark interest rate iniaddit U.S. Treasury and LIBOR rates
provides a more comprehensive spectrum of inteadss to be utilized as the designated benchméekeist rate risk component under the

hedge accounting guidance. The updated guidareféeigtive prospectively for qualifying new or redggated hedging relationships entered
into on or after July 17, 2013. The adoption o$thuidance did not impact the Company since theentimterest rate swap is LIBOR based.

5. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013avwensat cost, less accumulated depreciation andtemation and are summarized
below:

December 31,

2014 2013

Leasehold improvements $ 491,40. $ 503,17-
Club equipment 105,48t 99,46
Furniture, fixtures and computer equipment 65,37 61,48:
Computer software 22,07: 20,22¢
Building and improvements 4,99t 4,99t
Land 98¢ 98¢
Construction in progress 12,74( 9,901
703,05: 700,23:

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (469,409 (456,24)
$ 233,64: $ 243,99.

Depreciation and leasehold amortization expensthfoyears ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and,2042 $46,794 , $48,785 and
$49,391 , respectively.

Fixed assets are evaluated for impairment peridgiednenever events or changes in circumstanceasatelthat related carrying amounts
may not be recoverable from undiscounted cash fiovegcordance with FASB guidance. The Companyigilived assets and liabilities are
grouped at the individual club level which is thevest level for which there are identifiable calslwk. To the extent that estimated future
undiscounted net cash flows attributable to thetasare less than the carrying amount, an impaireiearge equal to the difference betweer
carrying value of such asset and their fair valgescognized.

In the year ended December 31, 2014 , the Competgd 36 underperforming clubs and recorded anifmpat loss of $4,569 fixed
assets related to a total of nine clubs, includivey underperforming clubs, and three clubs whiaremclosed in 2014 and ookib we expect t
convert to a managed location in February 2015.2Ihether clubs tested that did not have impairnsbatges had an aggregate of $38,297 o
net leasehold improvements and furniture and feguemaining as of December 31, 2014 . The renminipaired clubs have been converted
or the Company plans to convert to the HVLP pricitrgitegy in the first half of 2015. Under thisgomg strategy, membership at these clubs i
offered at a reduced price. To the extent the H@LiBing strategy does not meet its expectatiorss@bmpany may record additional
impairment charges.

In the year ended December 31, 2013 , the Compaooyded impairment charges totaling $714 relateédreeunderperforming clubs. |
the year ended December 31, 2012 , the Companydedtanpairment charges totaling $3,197 relatetti¢owrite-off of fixed assets at four
clubs that sustained severe damages in the aftewh&turricane Sandy and $239 related to one urtfapning club.

The following table presents the long-lived asse¢msured at fair value on a nonrecurring basith®period ended December 31, 2014

Basis of Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other
of Assets Markets for Identical Observable Significant Unobservable
(Liabilities) Iltems (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
December 31, 2014 $ 456¢ $ — — 3 4,56¢
December 31, 2013 $ 714 % — — 714
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6. Club Closures

The Company reviewed its club portfolio and madedhcision to close certain of its lower performahgps in the second half of 2014,
with possible additional clubs to be closed du20d5, in an effort to consolidate a portion of thesembers into other existing clubs. In the
year ended December 31, 20eightclubs were closed, and an additional club is exqubtti close in the first quarter of 2015 and coniveo a
managed location. For the year ended December(34, 2the Company recognized a net occupancy daith,442 for the closed clubs,
reflecting a $2,924 write-off of deferred leasédiidy, partially offset by $1,482 of lease termiiwe costs. The net gain of $1,442 is reflected ii
club operating expenses in the Company’s conselitistatements of operations. The Company alsoreadt$262 of other club closure
expenses including legal fees, which are refleatagbneral and administrative expenses in the Cogipaonsolidated statements of
operations.

Since the Company has decided to close these bkfbge their lease expiration dates, these clulve tested for impairment. As a result,
in the year ended December 31, 2014, the Compaoyded $734 of impairment losses at three of tokges on leasehold improvements and
furniture and fixtures present in the clubs to lmsed.

7. Acquisitions

The following acquisitions were completed in tharyended December 31, 2013 and were accountedifay the acquisition method of
accounting in accordance with FASB guidance. Utlderacquisition method, the purchase price wasatéal to the assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed based on their respective edtithfair values as of the acquisition date. Angess of the purchase price over the fair value
of the assets acquired and liabilities assumedalasated to goodwill. None of the acquisitionsiuidually or in the aggregate were material
to the financial position, results of operationsash flows of the Company; therefore pro formairiicial information has not been presented.
The results of operations of the clubs acquireceHaen included in the Company’s consolidated firstatements from the respective date:s
of acquisition.

Acquisition on March 15, 2013

On March 15, 2013, the Company acquired an existingss club in Manhattan, New York for a purchpsee of $560 . The purchase
price allocation resulted in fixed assets relatetbasehold improvements of $458 , definite liveémngible assets related to member lists of
$102 and a deferred revenue liability of $56 ,d&aret cash purchase price of $504 . Acquisitiotsciosurred in connection with this
acquisition in the year ended December 31, 20128 wpproximately $95 and are included in generalagimdinistrative expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Acquisition on May 17, 2013

On May 17, 2013, the Company acquired all of thedfp clubs in Boston, which includes five clubsldour managed sites for a
purchase price of $3,175 and a net cash purchaseqir$2,435 . Acquisition costs incurred in coctizn with the Fitcorp acquisition in the
year ended December 31, 2013 were approxim$231 and are included in general and administraieenses in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations. The follgwable summarizes the allocation of the purchaise fo the fair value of the assets and
liabilities acquired.

Acquisition on

May 17, 2013

Allocation of purchase price:
Other assets $ 90
Fixed assets related to leasehold improvements 2,28¢
Goodwill 9
Definite lived intangible assets:

Membership lists 83C

Management contracts 25C

Trade names 40
Deferred revenue (630
Other liabilities (443

Total allocation of purchase price $ 2,43t

The goodwill recognized represents the excesseoptiichase price over the fair values of the assefsired and liabilities assumed. The
definite lived intangible assets acquired will meaatized in accordance with the Company’s
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accounting policy with the membership lists amexdinver the estimated average membership life, ggameant contracts amortized over their
estimated contractual lives of between nine toddry and trade names amortized over their estinusifdl lives.

8. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill has been allocated to reporting units thasely reflect the regions served by the Compafyurtrade names: New York Spc
Clubs (“NYSC"), Boston Sports Clubs (“BSC”), Waspton Sports Clubs (“WSC") and Philadelphia Sporitgh&€ (“PSC”), with certain more
remote clubs that do not benefit from a regionastdr being considered single reporting units (f@uClubs”), the Company’s three clubs
located in Switzerland being considered a singb@ming unit (“SSC”), and our BFX Studio ("BFX Stiadl). As of December 31, 2014, the
WSC region, PSC region, the Outlier Clubs and BFXd® do not have goodwill balances.

The Company’s annual goodwill impairment testspdormed on the last day of February, or moredesdly, should circumstances
change which would indicate the fair value of goddi below its carrying amount. The determinat@asmto whether a triggering event exists
that would warrant an interim review of goodwilldawhether a write-down of goodwill is necessaryoimes significant judgment based on
short-term and long-term projections of the Compdhye to the significant decrease in market capitibn and a decline in the Company’s
business outlook, the Company performed interimaiimmpent tests as of December 31, 2014 and May (B14.2

The Company’s current year annual goodwill impaimitest as of February 28, 2014 and the interitngedormed as of May 31, 2014
and December 31, 2014 were performed using thestejp-goodwill impairment analysis. Step 1 involeemparing the fair value of the
Company’s reporting units to their carrying amouiitthe fair value of the reporting unit is greatiean its carrying amount, there is no
requirement to perform step two of the impairmest,tand there is no impairment. If the reporting’s carrying amount is greater than the
value, the second step must be completed to metdssemount of impairment, if any. Step 2 calcidate implied fair value of goodwill by
deducting the fair value of all tangible and intifdg assets, excluding goodwill, of the reportimgtdrom the fair value of the reporting unit as
determined in Step 1. The implied fair value of dwdl determined in this step is compared to theyiag value of goodwill. If the implied fa
value of goodwill is less than the carrying valdgoodwill, an impairment loss is recognized eqoahe difference. The Company concluded
that there would be no remaining implied valueilattiable to the Outlier Clubs. As a result of tineaal test, the Company impaired $137 of
goodwill associated with this reporting unit. Then@any did not have a goodwill impairment charghasnNYSC, BSC and SSC regions as a
result of either test.

For the December 31, 2014, May 31, 2014 and Fep2&r2014 impairment tests, fair value was deteealiby using a weighted
combination of two market-based approaches (weigb@b collectively) and an income approach (weidl%@%), as this combination was
deemed to be the most indicative of the ComparajisvBlue in an orderly transaction between mapleeticipants. Under the market-based
approaches, the Company utilized information reigarthe Company, the Company’s industry as wepladicly available industry
information to determine earnings multiples anésahultiples that are used to value the Compamyserting units. Under the income
approach, the Company determined fair value basezstimated future cash flows of each reporting, @iscounted by an estimated weighted-
average cost of capital, which reflects the ovdeaiél of inherent risk of a reporting unit and tlage of return an outside investor would expec
to earn. Determining the fair value of a reportimit is judgmental in nature and requires the dsggmificant estimates and assumptions,
including revenue growth rates and operating margiiscount rates and future market conditions,rapathers. These assumptions were
determined separately for each reporting unit. Chepany believes its assumptions are reasonableVas, there can be no assurance the
Company’s estimates and assumptions made for pespdghe Company’s goodwill impairment testingph®ecember 31, 2014, May 31,
2014 and February 28, 2014 will prove to be aceupatdictions of the future. If the Company’s asgtioms regarding forecasted revenue or
margin growth rates of certain reporting units @oeachieved, the Company may be required to regoodiwill impairment charges in future
periods, whether in connection with the Compangstrannual impairment testing or prior to thagrify such change constitutes a triggering
event outside the quarter when the annual goodwibhirment test is performed. It is not possibléhéd time to determine if any such future
impairment charge would result. The estimatedvaiues of NYSC and SSC were greater than book sdlyel0% and 8% , respectively, as of
December 31, 2014; 36% and 65% , respectivelyf May 31, 2014 and 48% and 73% , respectively fasebruary 28, 2014. BSC was not
tested separately in the interim tests as the giidollance was deemed immaterial. As of Februd@y2D14, the estimated fair value of BSC
was 24% greater than book value.
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Solely for purposes of establishing inputs forfdie value calculation described above relatedaodyvill impairment testing, the
Company made the following assumptions. The Complawgloped long-range financial forecasts (fivergetor all reporting units and
assumed organic growth from the existing club b@seminal growth rates were calculated for yeaswhd the five year forecast. As of
December 31, 2014, the Company used discountnatging from 12.5% to 17.8% and terminal growtkesatainging from 0.5% to 2.0% . As
of May 31, 2014, the Company used discount rategimg from 9.3% to 13.6% and terminal growth ratagying from 0.5% to 2.0% . As of
February 28, 2014, the Company used discount rategng from 9.5% to 16.5% and terminal growth satmging from 0.0% to 2.8% . These
assumptions are developed separately for eachtigpainit.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill fildecember 31, 2013 through December 31, 2014 aadetkin the charts below.

NYSC BSC SSC Outlier Clubs Total

Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization $ 31,40¢ $ 15,77° % 1,321 % 398: $ 52,48:

Less: accumulated impairment of goodwill — (15,76¢) — (3,845 (19,617
Balance as of December 31, 2013 31,40: 9 1,321 137 32,87(

Changes due to foreign currency exchange rate

fluctuations — — (140 — (140

Less: impairment of goodwiill — — — (137) (137)
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 31,40 $ 9 % 1,181 $ — 3 32,59:

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2014 and 2@18s follows:

As of December 31, 2014

Gross Carrying Accumulated Net
Amount Amortization Intangibles
Membership lists 11,34 $ (11,169 $ 181
Management contracts 25C (73 177
Trade names 40 4 36
11,63¢ % (11,240 $ 394

As of December 31, 2013

Gross Carrying Accumulated Net
Amount Amortization Intangibles
Membership lists 11,34 $ (10,69¢ $ 64¢
Non compete agreements 1,50¢ (1,509 —
Management contracts 25C (28) 222
Trade names 40 2 38
Other 23 (23 —
13,16 % (12,257 $ 90¢

Intangible assets were acquired in connection ththCompany's acquisitions during 2013. Amortizatexpense of intangible assets for
the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 wasa$il8314 , respectively. There was no amortizagigense of intangible assets for the
year ended December 31, 20
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The aggregate amortization expense for the negtyfidars and thereafter of the acquired intangidets is as follows:

Year Ending December 31,

2015 $ 228
2016 36
2017 30
2018 24
2019 19
2020 and thereafter 62

$ 394

9. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses as of December 31, 2014 and 20iE3sted of the following:

December 31,

2014 2013
Accrued payroll $ 3,96¢ $ 8,90¢
Accrued construction in progress and equipment 4,82 5,78¢
Accrued occupancy costs 7,49: 6,741
Accrued insurance claims 2,06t 1,86:
Accrued other 8,35¢ 8,23¢
$ 26,70: $ 31,53¢

10. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt as of December 31, 2014 and 2018istead of the following:

December 31,

2014 2013
2013 Term Loan Facility $ 308,28: $ 325,00(
Less: Unamortized discount (8,417 (20,09)
Less: Current portion due within one year (3,119 (3,250
Long-term portion $ 296,75 $ 311,65¢

The aggregate long-term debt obligations maturiming the next five years and thereafter are devis:

Amount Due

Year Ending December 31,
2015 $ 3,11«
2016 3,11¢
2017 3,11«
2018 3,11¢
2019 3,11«
2020 and thereafter 292,71

$ 308,28:-

2013 Senior Credit Facility

On November 15, 2013, TSI, LLC, an indirect, whadlyned subsidiary, entered into a $370,000 semicurgd credit facility (“2013
Senior Credit Facility”), among TSI, LLC, TSI Hofdis I, LLC, a newly-formed, wholly-owned subsidiaf the Company (“Holdings II")as



a Guarantor, the lenders party thereto, Deutscin& B&, as administrative agent, and
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Keybank National Association, as syndication agéhe 2013 Senior Credit Facility consists of a $828 term loan facility maturing on
November 15, 202(“2013 Term Loan Facility”) and a $45,000 revolvilegn facility maturing on November 15, 2018 (“2(R8volving Loan
Facility”). Proceeds from the 2013 Term Loan Fagitif $323,375 was issued, net of an original isgiseount (“OID”) of 0.5% , or $1,625 .
Debt issuance costs recorded in connection witl2€i8 Senior Credit Facility was $5,119 and willdmortized as interest expense and are
included in other assets in the accompanying caleteld balance sheets. The Company also recordfitibad| debt discount of $4,356lated
to creditor fees. The proceeds from the 2013 TeoanLFacility were used to pay off amounts outstagndinder the Company’s previously
outstanding long-term debt facility originally erdgd into on May 11, 2011 (as amended from timénte}, and to pay related fees and
expenses. None of the revolving loan facility wesah upon as of the closing date on November 153 20ut loans under the 2013 Revolving
Loan Facility may be drawn from time to time punsutp the terms of the 2013 Senior Credit Facilitge borrowings under the 2013 Senior
Credit Facility are guaranteed and secured by sisset pledges of capital stock by Holdings II, TIC, and, subject to certain customary
exceptions, the wholly-owned domestic subsidiaofeESI, LLC.

Borrowings under the 2013 Term Loan Facility anel 2013 Revolving Loan Facility, at TSI, LLC’s opticbear interest at either the
administrative agent’s base rate plus 2.5% or &0RBate adjusted for certain additional costs (Eheodollar Rate”) plus 3.5% , each as
defined in the 2013 Senior Credit Facility. Witlspect to the outstanding initial term loans, theoBollar Rate has a floor of 1.00% and the
base rate has a floor of 2.00% . Commencing wighdkt business day of the quarter ended MarcB®4, TSI, LLC is required to pay 0.25%
of the principal amount of the term loans each gawhich may be reduced by voluntary prepaymekgsf December 31, 2014, TSI LLC
has made a total of $16,716 in principal paymentthe 2013 Term Loan Facility.

The terms of the 2013 Senior Credit Facility pravfdr a financial covenant in the situation whéwe tiotal utilization of the revolving
loan commitments (other than letters of creditaf%,500 at any time outstanding) exceeds 25%eatiyregate amount of those
commitments. In such event, TSI, LLC is requirednaintain a total leverage ratio, as defined in28&3 Senior Credit Facility, of no greater
than 4.50:1.00. While not subject to the total tege ratio covenant as of December 31, 2014 aSahgpany’s only utilization of the 2013
Revolving Loan Facility as of December 31, 2014 %2980 of issued and outstanding letters of ctbeéiteunder, because the Compartpta
leverage ratio as of December 31, 2014 was in exz4.50 :1.00, the Company is currently not ablatilize more than 25% of the 2013
Revolving Loan Facility. The Company will continaet to be able to utilize more than 25% of the 2B&¥olving Loan Facility until it has a
total leverage ratio of no greater than 4.50 :1T0@& 2013 Senior Credit Facility also containsaeraffirmative and negative covenants,
including covenants that may limit or restrict TBLC and Holdings II's ability to, among other tigis, incur indebtedness and other liabilities;
create liens; merge or consolidate; dispose oftsigske investments; pay dividends and make patgtershareholders; make payments on
certain indebtedness; and enter into sale leasdtmtsactions, in each case, subject to certailifigations and exceptions. In addition, at any
time when the total leverage ratio is greater #h&0:1.00, there are additional limitations on alhdity of TSI, LLC and Holdings Il to, among
other things, make certain distributions of casi$b Holdings. The 2013 Senior Credit Facility aisoludes customary events of default
(including non-compliance with the covenants oreotterms of the 2013 Senior Credit Facility) whiohy allow the lenders to terminate the
commitments under the 2013 Revolving Loan Facditg declare all outstanding term loans and revglisans immediately due and payable
and enforce its rights as a secured creditor.

TSI, LLC may prepay the 2013 Term Loan Facility &0d3 Revolving Loan Facility without premium omadty in accordance with the
2013 Senior Credit Facility. Mandatory prepaymenrtsrequired relating to certain asset sales, amagr recovery and incurrence of certain
other debt and commencing in 2015 in certain cistamces relating to excess cash flow (as defirdhé prior fiscal year, as described
below, in excess of certain expenditures. Purstgatite terms of the 2013 Senior Credit Facility @ompany is required to apply net proceed
in excess of $30,000 from sales of assets in @oplfiyear towards mandatory prepayments of outstgrmbrrowings. In connection with the
sale of the East 86th Street property, accounteds@ building financing arrangement, describeldaote 11 Building Financing Arrangemer
the Company received approximately $43,500 in aletssproceeds (after taxes, before giving effectitization of net operating losses and
carryforwards). Accordingly, the Company made a daaory prepayment of $13,500 on the 2013 Term Lesility in November 2014. In
connection with this mandatory prepayment, durhgytear ended December 31, 2014, the Company esttwds on extinguishment of deb
$493 , consisting of the write-off of unamortizezbtlissuance costs and debt discount of $119 ardl 32spectively, and was included in loss
on extinguishment of debt in the accompanying clidated statements of operations for the year eflsmbmber 31, 2014. To the extent the
proceeds of the sale of the East 86th Street piopes not reinvested, we may be required to usk amounts, other than amounts used in
2014 to repay debt, to pay down our outstandind, debprovided under the terms of our 2013 Seniedi€Facility. Based on unit growth
projection and increased capital expenditureseadltd the building of new clubs and new BFX Studiations, the Company does not expect
to be required to make a payment at any time. thitiad, the 2013 Senior Credit Facility containsyisions that
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require excess cash flow payments, as defineck tpplied against outstanding 2013 Term Loan Fadiilances. The excess cash flow is
calculated annually commencing with the fiscal yereding December 31, 2014 and paidi@§s after the fiscal year end. The applicable &
cash flow repayment percentage is applied to tkesxcash flow when determining the excess caghpgiftyment. Earnings, changes in
working capital and capital expenditure levelsralbact the determination of any excess cash fldwe dpplicable excess cash flow repayment
percentage is 50% when the total leverage ratideéined in the 2013 Senior Credit Facility, exceedis equal to 2.50 :1.00; 25% when the
total leverage ratio is greater than or equal @ 21.00 but less than 2.50:1.00 and 0% when tia¢ [Bverage ratio is less than 2.00:1.00. The
first excess cash flow payment would have beeniméeril 2015. The excess cash flow calculationfpened as of December 31, 2014 did
result in any required payments.

As of December 31, 2014 , the 2013 Term Loan Rgadiks a gross principal balance of $308,284 doalance of $299,871 net of
unamortized debt discount of $8,413 which is cosgatiof the unamortized portions of the OID recorigecbnnection with the May 11, 2011
debt issuance and the unamortized balance of digadhl debt discounts recorded in connection it First Amendment and Second
Amendment to the 2011 Senior Credit Facility. Thamortized debt discount balance is recorded asecliability to long-term debt on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet and ig beortized as interest expense using the effettteeest method. As of December 31,
2014 , the unamortized balance of debt issuands 06$3,669 is being amortized as interest expearstis included in other assets in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

As of December 31, 2014 , there were no outstan?2lig Revolving Loan Facility borrowings and outstiag letters of credit issued
totaled $2,980 . The unutilized portion of the 2®R3/0lving Loan Facility as of December 31, 2014%42,020 and the available unutilized
portion, based on the Company'’s total leverage mtceeding 4.50 :1.00, was $11,250 .

On January 30, 2015, the 2013 Senior Credit Faeilds amended (the "Amendment") to permit TSI Hoddito purchase term loans
under the Credit Agreement. Any term loans purcthdseT S| Holdings will be cancelled. The Companyyrfram time to time purchase term
loans in market transactions, privately negotiatadsactions or otherwise; however the Companydeuno obligation to make any such
purchases. Any such transactions, and the amawrdtved, will depend on prevailing market condigphiquidity requirements, contractual
restrictions and other factors. The amounts invibiveay be material.

2011 Senior Credit Facility

TSI, LLC’s previously outstanding senior secureelditr facility was originally entered into on May,12011 (as amended from time to
time) and consisted of a $350,000 senior securditdiacility (“2011 Senior Credit Facility”) comjsed of a $300,000 term loan facility
(2011 Term Loan Facility”) scheduled to matureMay 11, 2018 and a $50,000 revolving loan factitheduled to mature on May 11, 2016
(“2011 Revolving Loan Facility”). The 2011 Term Lo&acility was issued at an OID of 1.0% or $3,000 debt issuance costs recorded in
connection with the 2011 Senior Credit Facility 88,065 . The proceeds from the 2011 Term Loailifyagere used to pay off amounts
outstanding under a previously outstanding longitdebt facility entered into in 2007 (“2007 Sen@redit Facility), to pay the redemption
price on outstanding 11% senior discount notesid@814 (“Senior Discount Notes”), and to pay rethfees and expenses.

The 2011 Senior Credit Facility was first amendaddogust 22, 2012 (“First Amendment”) to reduce tifen-current interest rates on
the 2011 Term Loan Facility by 125 basis points alsd convert the existing voluntary prepaymentaftgrprovision from a “101 hard call”
provision (which required the payment of a 1% fadtee amount of any term loans that are voluntgmigpaid), originally scheduled to end in
May 2013, to a “101 soft call” provision (which rged the payment of a 1% fee on the amount oftamy loans repaid in connection with a
refinancing or repricing transaction) ending in Agg2013, and subsequently extended by the Noveldh&012 amendment to November
2013. All other principal provisions, including maty and covenants under the then-existing 201iidde€Credit Facility remained unchanged
in all material respects. The First Amendment wagect to the consent of term loan lenders. Norseating term loan lenders with term loan
principal outstanding totaling $13,796 were repthadth replacement term loan lenders in order tecete the First Amendment. In connectior
with the pay off of norconsenting term loan lenders, during the year efmmber 31, 2012, we recorded a loss on extihmeést of debt ¢
$464 consisting of the write-offs of the relatedtiwms of unamortized debt issuance costs and @260 and $204 respectively. In additiol
the Company recorded additional debt discount gf@2related to a 1.00% amendment fee paid to abingelenders and recognized
additional interest expense totaling $1,390 relat@arily to bank and legal related fees paichiedt parties to execute the First Amendment.

Subsequent to the effective date of the First Amesmit, the Company made a voluntary prepayment ®080 on the 2011 Term Loan
Facility. In connection with this voluntary prepagm, during the year ended December 31, 2012, the
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Company recorded loss on extinguishment of deB6d6 , consisting of the write-offs of the relafettions of unamortized debt issuance
costs and debt discount of $269 and $277 , resfedgti

On November 16, 2012, TSI, LLC entered into a Sdddmendment (“Second Amendment”) to the 2011 Se@iedit Facility. Under
the Second Amendment, TSI, LLC borrowed an additi®60,000 incremental term loan issued at an Gl@50% or $300 . The new
borrowings were used, together with cash on hanpgay a special cash dividend to the Company’sktaders, including an equivalent cash
bonus payment to certain option holders, on Decerhbe?2012. In addition, the Second Amendment pledifor a waiver of any prepayment
required to be paid using the Company’s excess fbastfor the period ended December 31, 2012, aradrte restricted payments covenant
to permit the payment of the dividend and cash bgrayments and permitted adjustments to the Corgpaalculation of consolidated
EBITDA with respect to the cash bonus payment aitld kgspect to fees and expenses associated witircpermitted transactions. In
connection with the execution of the Second Ameminthe Company recorded additional debt discofi8689 related to a 0.25%
amendment fee, debt issuance costs of $125 antiaddiinterest expense totaling $1,569 relatedharily to bank, arrangement and legal fee:
paid to third parties.

Repayment of 2011 Senior Credit Facility

Contemporaneously with entry into the 2013 Seni@d@ Facility, TSI, LLC repaid the outstandingmaripal amount of the 2011 Term
Loan Facility of $315,743The 2011 Term Loan Facility was set to expirevay 11, 2018. There were no outstanding amountsutie 201
Revolving Loan Facility as of November 15, 2013% ttate of the initial borrowing under the 2013 8$efiredit Facility. The 2011 Term Loan
Facility was repaid at face value of $315,743 @losrued and unpaid interest of $807 and letterefitfees and commitment fees of $67 . Th
total cash paid in connection with this repaymeas $316,617 as of November 15, 2013 with no eapgyment penalty. The Company
determined that the 2013 Senior Credit Facility wassubstantially different than the 2011 Senicedt Facility for certain lenders based on
the less than 10% difference in cash flows of #spective debt instruments. A portion of the tratisa was therefore accounted for as a
modification of the 2011 Senior Credit Facility amgortion was accounted for as an extinguishmfenof November 15, 2013, the Company
recorded loss on extinguishment of debt of appraxéhy $750 , representing the write-off of the r@xivey unamortized debt costs and debt
discount related to the portion of the 2011 Se@i@dit Facility that was accounted for as an extisigment, and was included in loss on
extinguishment of debt in the accompanying constdid statements of operations for the year endeérbiger 31, 2013.

Fair Market Value

Based on quoted market prices, the 2013 Term Leailify had a fair value of approximately $221,%6% $327,438 , respectively, at
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respigtand is classified within level 2 of the faalue hierarchy. Level 2 is based on quotec
prices for similar instruments in active marketsotgd prices for identical or similar instrumentsnarkets that are not active; and model-
derived valuations in which all significant inpasd significant value drivers are observable ifvaanarkets. The fair value for the Company’
2013 Term Loan Facility is determined using obselwaurrent market information such as the prengikturodollar interest rate and
Eurodollar yield curve rates and includes consitifenaof counterparty credit risk.

For the fair market value of the Company’s interag swap instrument refer to Note 12 — Derivakugancial Instruments.

Interest Expense

The Company’s interest expense and capitalizedesteelated to funds borrowed to finance clublitées under construction for the
years endeDecember 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Interest costs expensed $ 18,22¢ % 22617 $ 24,64(
Interest costs capitalized 30C 32 —
Total interest expense and amounts capitalized $ 18,52¢ $ 22,64¢ $ 24,64(

Note: The table above does not incli$810 of interest expense related to the buildingrfting arrangement in fiscal 2014.
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11 . Building Financing Arrangement

On September 12, 2014, the Company completed ¢fad $ale of its property (building and land) ontE#6th Street, New York City, to
an unaffiliated third-party for gross proceeds 85%50 , which includes $150 of additional payméeatthe Company. Concurrent with the
closing of the transaction, the Company leased Haelportion of the property comprising its healtib. The Company expects to lease
(“Initial Lease”) the premises to at least Marci@@nd then, upon notice from the purchaser/laddtbie Initial Lease will terminate and the
Company will vacate the property while the purchéaedlord demolishes the existing building and déldgacent building and builds a new
luxury, high-rise multi-use building. In connectiwith vacating the property, the Company intendertter into a new lease (“New Club
Lease”) for approximately 24,000 square feet inrtbe building for the purpose of operating a healtib upon completion of construction by
the purchaser/landlord. The term of the Initial #&& 10 years, and at the end of this initial f¢h@ Company has two options at its sole
discretion to renew the lease; the first for anitaital 10 year period and a second for an additifime year period (although the Company
expects that the purchaser/landlord will exerdiseight to early terminate the Initial Lease sattih may commence the construction of the
building). Under the Initial Lease (and New Clubake if entered into), the purchaser/landlord haseahjto pay the Company liquidated
damages if the new club is not available by a gedate. The latest date that the liquidated damagmild begin to be paid would be April 13,
2020 and would continue until the new club is agi. For accounting purposes, the nature of thetmtial liquidated damages constitutes
continuing involvement with the purchaser/landlgrdevelopment of the property. As a result of toistinuing involvement, the sale-
leaseback transaction is currently required todo®anted for as a financing arrangement rather disaan completed sale. Under this treatment,
the Company has included the proceeds receivediaarecing arrangement on its balance sheet. EXoegptayments under the Initial Lease
and the New Club Lease, the Company does not expatake any cash payments to the purchaser/lahdiibth respect to the building
financing arrangement. The Company recorded a texXfdr federal and state income tax purposes) gaithe sale of the property and made
estimated tax payments during the three monthsce8dptember 30, 2014 in this regard. The proceEf83400 , which is net of $1,7%6 be
held in escrow for the Company’s former tenant §d0 to remain in escrow to be released to the @Gompix months after the date of sale,
are included in the Company’s cash flow statemen014 as a financing inflow.

As of December 31, 2014, the total financing areamgnt was $83,400and accrued interest on financing arrangementnematerial ¢
December 31, 2014. Because the transaction isateaired as a financing for accounting purposdterahan a sale, the rental payments and
related transaction costs are treated as interesteofinancing arrangement. As these interest amsare less than the interest that would be
charged under a typical financing, the financingtiaracterized as an interest only financing waheduction in the principal throughout the
Initial Lease term until any continuing involvemdras ceased. Until such time, even though the Coynpa longer has legal title to the
building and the land, the building, building impesnents and land remain on our consolidated balsimeet and the building and building
improvements will continue to be depreciated oteirtremaining useful lives. Similarly, the Compaitges not have a loan or borrowing
arrangement with the purchaser/landlord but th&llmg financing arrangement will remain on the Camy's balance sheet until any
continuing involvement has ceased.

As of December 31, 2014, the net book value obthikling and building improvements was $3,229 drmaltiook value of the land was
$986 . As part of the transaction, the Companynmzli$3,160 of real property transfer taxes, brd&es and other costs which will be deferrec
and amortized over the term of the Initial Leas@®¥ears, which includes the options periods. &liess are recorded in Other assets on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of Dece®ib&014.
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Payments made under the Initial Lease, includimgatencome related to the Company’s tenant inkthiéding that was assigned to the
purchaser/landlord, are recognized as interestresepim the underlying financing arrangement. Inetlich the table below is the Company’s
future lease commitment of $750 per year undergh®ining term of the Initial Lease, which includles options periods and will be recorded
as interest expense.

12 months ending December 31,

2015 $ 75C
2016 75C
2017 75C
2018 75C
2019 75C
2020 and thereafter 14,77:
Minimum lease commitments $ 18,52!

Not included in the table above are the rent portibrental income related to the Company’s forteeant in the building ranging
between $1,849 and $2,604 per year through Mar2B 26d the amortization of the deferred costs @b§der year through September 2039 a
of December 31, 2014 will be recorded as interggérse (unless the purchaser/landlord exerciseglitsto terminate the lease before the enc
of the 10 -year Initial Lease).

12 . Derivative Financial Instruments

In its normal operations, the Company is exposeadaddket risks relating to fluctuations in intereaies. In order to minimize the possible
negative impact of such fluctuations on the Comfsaogsh flows the Company may enter into derivdtivancial instruments (“derivatives”),
such as interest-rate swaps. Derivatives are rietaghinto for trading purposes and the Company nsés commonly traded instruments.
Currently, the Company has used derivatives sohting to the variability of cash flows from ingst rate fluctuations.

The Company originally entered into an interest savap arrangement on July 13, 2011 in connectitintive 2011 Senior Credit
Facility. This interest rate swap arrangement &ffety converted $150,000 of the Company'’s varialslie debt based on a one-month
Eurodollar rate to a fixed rate of 1.983% , ortaltéixed rate of 7.483% , on this $150,000 whesluding the applicable 5.50% margin that
was in effect under the 2011 Senior Credit Facdityhat time. In August 2012, the Company ameridederms of the 2011 Senior Credit
Facility to, among other things, reduce the applieanargin on Eurodollar rate loans from 5.50% .&046 and reduce the interest rate floor on
Eurodollar rate loans from 1.50% to 1.25% . In cowtion with the First Amendment to the 2011 Sediredit Facility in August 2012, the
interest rate swap arrangement was amended toad¢deone-month Eurodollar fixed rate from 1.988%.%783% , or a total fixed rate of
6.283% when including the applicable 4.50% margirEarodollar rate loans in effect under the 2014i&eCredit Facility at that time. On
November 14, 2012, the Company further amendetktines of the 2011 Senior Credit Facility to, amatiger things, allow for the borrowir
of a $60,000 incremental term loan. In connectidth the Second Amendment to the 2011 Senior CFeatitlity, the Company further
amended the interest rate swap to increase themab®&mount to $160,000 and extended the matufittyeoswap to from July 13, 2014 to
May 13, 2015. In addition, the one-month Euroddiieed rate was lowered from 1.783% to 1.693% a twtal of 6.193% when including the
applicable 4.50%nargin on Eurodollar rate loans in effect under2B&1 Senior Credit Facility at that time. In coathen with entering into tt
2013 Senior Credit Facility, the Company amendeatirastated the interest rate swap arrangemeriti#tliy entered into on July 13, 2011 (and
amended in August 2012 and November 2012). Effects’of November 15, 2013, the closing date o2€13 Senior Credit Facility, the
interest rate swap arrangement will continue tcet@wotional amount of $160,000 and will maturéMay 15, 2018. The swap effectively
converts $160,000 of the $325,000 total variabte-debt under the 2013 Senior Credit Facility fixed rate of 5.384% , when including the
applicable 3.50% margin. As permitted by FASB Aaaiing Standards Codification ("ASC") 815, Derivativand Hedging, the Company has
designated this swap as a cash flow hedge, thetef& which have been reflected in the Comparysalidated financial statements as of an
for the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 ah? 2Z0he objective of this hedge is to manage #reility of cash flows in the interest
payments related to the portion of the variable-tEbt designated as being hedged.

When the Company’s derivative instrument was exatutedge accounting was deemed appropriate arasitiesignated as a cash flow
hedge at inception with rdesignation being permitted under ASC 815, Denveatiand Hedging. Interest rate swaps are desigaatedsh flov
hedges for accounting purposes since they are lisieg to transform variable interest rate exposufixed interest rate exposure on a
recognized liability (debt). On an ongoing badie €ompany
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performs a quarterly assessment of the hedge iwHeetss of the hedge relationship and measureseandnizes any hedge ineffectiveness in
the consolidated statements of operations. Foye¢hes ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012eheeffectiveness was evaluated using
the hypothetical derivative method. There was ragkdneffectiveness in the years ended Decemb&®¥ and 2013and the amount relat
to hedge ineffectiveness for the year ended DeceBhe2012 was de minimis.

The fair value for the Company’s interest rate swgagietermined using observable current marketinéion such as the prevailing
Eurodollar interest rate and Eurodollar yield curates and include consideration of counterpamgditirisk. The following table presents the
aggregate fair value of the Company’s derivativaricial instrument:

Fair Value Measurements Using:

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Total Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Interest rate swap liability as of December 31,201 $ 1,29« $ —  $ 1,29« $ —
Interest rate swap liability as of December 31,201 $ 18z % — 18z % —

The swap contract liability of $1,294 and $182 wexorded as a component of other liabilities aBefember 31, 2014 and 2013 ,
respectively, with the offset to accumulated ottmnprehensive income ( $1,215 and $103 , net efteas of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively) on the accompanying consolidatedrizalaheets.

There were no significant reclassifications ouacfumulated other comprehensive income in 2014t@ompany does not expect that
significant derivative losses included in accumedabther comprehensive income at December 31, @filide reclassified into earnings witt
the next 12 months .

13. Leases

The Company leases office, warehouse and multeatiomal facilities and certain equipment under-nancelable operating leases. In
addition to base rent, the facility leases gengmibvide for additional rent based on operatirguhes, increases in real estate taxes and other
costs. Certain leases provide for additional rexseld upon defined formulas of revenue, cash floaperating results of the respective
facilities. Under the provisions of certain of thdsases, the Company is required to maintainadgable letters of credit, which amounted to
$1,265 as of December 31, 2014 .

The leases expire at various times through AuglisPG29 and certain leases may be extended atdimp&hy’s option. Escalation terms
on these leases generally include fixed rent eoaa escalations based on an inflation index sisc8PI, and fair market value adjustment
the next five years, or the period from JanuarQiL5 through December 31, 2019, the Company hasddar 25 club locations that are due tc
expire without any renewal options, three of whach due to expire in 2015, and 48 club locatioas éine due to expire with renewal options.

Future minimum rental payments under non-cancelajpdgating leases are shown in the chart belowsd henounts exclude obligations
of $750 per year under the Initial Lease relatethébuilding financing arrangement. These amodatsot include any amounts relating to the
New Club Lease. Refer to Nc11 - Building Financing Arrangement for further aiés.

Minimum
Annual Rental

Year Ending December 31,

2015 $ 90,30:
2016 87,23¢
2017 77,04¢
2018 70,56¢
2019 62,46
Aggregate thereafter 226,48

Rent expense, including the effect of deferredddiabilities, for the years ended December 314202013 and 2012 was $124,816 ,
$118,811 and $117,229 , respectively. Such amonciisde non-base rent items of $24,340 , $23,530%23,291 , respectively.

F-26




Table of Contents
TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The Company, as landlord, leases space to thitg ferants under non-cancelable operating leasicamses. In addition to base rent,
certain leases provide for additional rent basethoreases in real estate taxes, indexation,iasldand defined amounts based on the operatin
results of the lessee. The sub-leases expire imgatimeghrough December 31, 2022. Future minimum rentdeivable under noncancela
leases are shown in the chart below. These amexobsde approximately $2,000 per year through M&@®8 related to the rental tenant
currently leasing space in the Company’s previoosiyed East 86 Street building in Manhattan. Because the lega sEast 86 Street
transaction is characterized as a financing rédtrear a sale, these rental payments are treatedeasst on the financing arrangement. The
Company will continue to account for the rentaldme from this retail tenant after such sale and tire tenant’s lease is terminated. Refer to
Note11 - Building Financing Arrangement for further aiéd.

Minimum
Annual Rental

Year Ending December 31,

2015 $ 2,26¢
2016 2,04t
2017 1,64¢
2018 1,124
2019 92¢
Aggregate thereafter 1,251

Rental income, including non-cash rental incomettie years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and®84%4,195 , $5,161 and
$4,363 , respectively. Such amounts include adtificental charges above the base rent of $24%5@dor the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively. There was no additiemial charges above the base rent for the yededDecember 31, 2014. As stated above
the Company previously owned the building at thé 86eet club location which houses a rental tertattdenerated rental income of
approximately $2,000 for each of the years endezkBéer 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 . Refer to NoteBudilding Financing Arrangement for
further details.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, rental indnohedes non-cash revenue of $424 related to anfqueriod adjustment for
subtenants at certain locations.

14. Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity
a. Capitalization

The Company'’s certificate of incorporation adogtedonnection with the IPO provides for 105,000,06lares of capital stock,
consisting of 5,000,000 shares of Preferred Stpakyalue $0.001 per share (the “Preferred Stomht) 100,000,000 shares of Common
Stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Commonk3oc

Effective December 31, 2014, the Company’s BoarDicéctors adopted a stockholder rights plan (Rigitits Plan"). Pursuant to the
Rights Plan, the Board of Directors declared ad#imd distribution of one preferred share rightRe&ght") for each share of Common Stock
held as of January 12, 2015. Each Right entitleshtiider to purchase one one-thousandth of a sti&@eries A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock (the "Preferred Shares") at an initial ex@rgrice of $15 , subject to certain adjustments.

The Rights become exercisable after ten days fatigwhe acquisition by an acquiring person or grofig0% or more of the Company’s
outstanding Common Stock. If such acquiring per@ogroup acquires 20% or more of the Common Steakh Right (other than such
acquiring person's or group's Rights, whose Rightome void upon exceeding the 20% threshold)entiitle the holder to purchase, at the
exercise price, Common Stock having a market vatpal to twice the exercise price of the Right.

The Rights will expire on June 30, 2016; providealt tif at the Compang’'2015 annual meeting of stockholders, a proposapprove th
Rights Agreement has not been passed by a mayatigyof the votes cast on such matter by the Cogipatockholders, the Rights will expire
as of the close of business on the date followlregcertification of voting results of the Compan2®15 annual meeting of the stockholders.

Subject to the provisions of the Rights Plan, at@wmpany's option, the Rights may be redeemetidoCbmpany at an initial cash
redemption price of $0.01 per Right or may be erged in whole or in part for one share of the Comyfsacommon stock, or one one-
thousandth of a share of Preferred Share.
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b. Common Stock Options

The outstanding Common Stock options as of Dece@bg2014vest in full at various dates between January 152ihd April 30, 201!
The vesting of certain grants will be acceleratethe event that certain defined events occur diclyithe sale of the Company. The term of
each grant is generally ten years.

As of December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012, a téth)G23,606 , 1,029,416 and 982,464 Common Stotkmpwere exercisable,
respectively.

At December 31, 2014 , the Company had 7,000 a&0#31521 stock options outstanding under its 200¢50Option Plan and 2006
Stock Incentive Plan, respectively.

The Company recognizes stock option expense egulaétgrant date fair value of a stock option @traight-line basis over the requisite
service period, which is generally the vesting @erinet of estimated forfeitures. The total compéna expense related to options, classified
within payroll and related on the consolidatedestegnts of operations, related to these plans wa@ $8843 , and $657 for the years ended
December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectivetytfze related tax benefit was $142 , $362 and $@8the years ended December 31,
2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively. The 2014 liteofe$142 was prior to the recognition of the \ation allowance. The total compensation
expense of $299 for the year ended December 34, ib@ldes $160 related to incremental compensati@ense recognized in connection
with the modification of stock options describedobe

In connection with the Company’s special divideagment of $3.00 per share paid on December 11,, 2802k option holders with
vested in-the-money options (those with exerciseeprless than $12.39 ) were paid an equivalett lsasus of $3.00 per each vested in-the-
money option. The total aggregate cash bonus paldlezember 11, 2012 was approximately $2,496 arsdra@rded as payroll and related
expense in the consolidated statements of opesafiwrthe year ended December 31, 2012. Additignath December 11, 2012, adjustments
were made to certain stock options which were niedliin order to maintain the intrinsic value of thyions in connection with the Compasy’
special dividend payment. The modifications in nuzses reduced the exercise price of the optioth$nacertain other cases also increased th
number of options. The option modifications impdds& plan participants. Other existing terms amitd@mns of the options were not
modified. The modification of these options resdilie incremental compensation expense totaling $#8318 of which was recognized on the
modification date on December 11, 2012 for optithrad were modified which have been fully expensedfahe modification date. Additional
incremental compensation expense of approxima&dp#as recognized ratably over the remaining vestemipgs related to unvested optic
that were modified. The incremental compensatiqgease was determined by measuring the fair magdaeyusing the Black-Scholes
methodology, of the modified options immediatelydve and immediately after the dividend paymentdeection.

The Company’s 2006 Stock Incentive Plan, as ameadddestated (the “2006 Plan”), authorizes the @y to issue up to 3,000,000
shares of Common Stock to employees, non-employeetdrs and consultants pursuant to awards oksiptions, stock appreciation rights,
restricted stock, in payment of performance sharegher stock-based awards. An amendment to tié PGan to increase the aggregate
number of shares issuable under the plan by 50&08&s from 2,500,000 shares to 3,000,000 shaesimanimously adopted by the Board
of Directors on March 1, 2011, and approved byldiotters at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders cayM?2, 2011. Under the 2006 Plan,
stock options must be granted at a price not lems the fair market value of the stock on the tlaeoption is granted, generally are not suk
to re-pricing, and will not be exercisable morertien years after the date of grant. As of DeceritheP014 , there were 281,305 shares
available to be issued under the 2006 Plan.
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The following table summarizes the stock optionvétgtfor the years ended December 31, 2012 , 28182014 :

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Common Price
Balance at January 1, 2012 2,008,700 $ 5.4C
Option Modifications 25,76¢ 1.3t
Exercised (534,519 4.4C
Cancelled (18,090 15.2¢
Forfeited (171,049 2.6(C
Balance at December 31, 2012 1,310,81: 5.21
Exercised (135,78%) 4.4z
Cancelled (30,549 6.3
Forfeited (4,259 1.0C
Balance at December 31, 2013 1,140,23 5.21
Exercised (73,049 1.82
Cancelled (34,567 12.5¢
Forfeited (2,100 3.5¢4
Balance at December 31, 2014 1,030,52 ¢ 5.2¢
The following table summarizes stock option infotima as of December 31, 2014 :
Options Outstanding
Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average Average
Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
Common
2005 grants 7,00( 4 months $ 4.3¢ 196 $ 6.54
2006 grants 116,50( 19 month: 12.0¢ 116,50( 12.0¢
2007 grants 111,00( 31 month: 15.0¢ 111,00( 15.0¢
2008 grants 202,89 42 month: 6.24 202,89: 6.24
2009 grants 215,74( 59 month: 1.74 215,74( 1.74
2010 grants 369,88° 68 month: 1.8¢ 369,88° 1.8¢
2011 grants 7,50( 73 month: 1.9¢ 5,62t 2.1¢
Total Grants 1,030,52: 51 month: $ 5.2¢ 1,023,601 ¢ 5.31

The Company did not grant any stock options dutiregyears ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 .

Options granted under the 2004 Stock Option Plareigdly qualify as “incentive stock options” undbe U.S. Internal Revenue Code.
Options granted under the 2006 Stock Option Planeiglly qualify as “non-qualified stock optiongider the U.S. Internal Revenue Code.
The exercise price of a stock option is generailyat to the fair market value of the Company’s CamrStock on the option grant date.

The fair value of share-based payment awards wasated using the Black-Scholes option pricing madefollows as of December 31,
2014 :

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term Value
(years) (thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 1,030,52. $ 5.2¢ 42 $ 2,88(

Vested and exercisable at December 31, 2014 1,023,600 $ 5.31 43 $ 2,85¢
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The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeagents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (théedénce between the fair value of the
Company’s common stock at December 31, 2014 of5bar@l the exercise price, multiplied by the nunmdfen-the-money options) that would
have been received by the option holders had &hioolders exercised their options on Decembef814.The intrinsic value is based on
fair market value of the Company’s stock and trenethanges as the fair market value of the stack ghanges. The total intrinsic value of
options exercised was $318 for the year ended DieeeB1, 2014 .

As of December 31, 2014 , $1 of unrecognized corsgiéon cost related to stock options is expectdzbtoecognized in February 2015.

c. Common Stock Grants
Restricted Stock Grants

The following restricted stock grants were issuedrnployees of the Company during the year endegiber 31, 2014 .

Number Share Grant Date
Date of Shares Price Fair Value
February 24, 2014 181,50 $ 8.6 $ 1,56¢
May 12, 2014 15,000 $ 6.47 97
Total 196,50( $ 1,66:

The following table summarizes the restricted stactvity for the year ended December 31, 2014 .

Weighted

Average

Number Grant Date

of Shares Fair Value
Balance as of January 1, 2012 186,24¢ $ 7.3¢
Granted 251,50( 12.3(
Vested (43,846 7.2¢
Forfeited (26,297 7.9¢
Balance as of December 31, 2012 367,61. 10.72
Granted 178,50( 9.3¢
Vested (98,697) 10.3¢
Forfeited (84,249 10.9:
Balance as of December 31, 2013 363,17: 10.0¢
Granted 196,50( 8.47
Vested (116,890 9.82
Forfeited (41,24°) 9.92
Balance as of December 31, 2014 401,53« ¢ 9.3¢

The fair value of restricted stock is based ondbsing stock price of an unrestricted share ofGbenpany’s common stock on the grant
date and is amortized to compensation expensestmightline basis over the requisite service period, wigopenerally the vesting period,
of estimated forfeitures. The total compensatiopesse, classified within payroll and related ondbesolidated statements of operations,
related to restricted stock grants was $1,3670%6Land $533 for the years ended December 31, 220#3 and 2012 , respectively, and the
related tax benefit was $648 , $459 , $232 forytters ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 201Reatesely. The restricted shares contain
vesting restrictions and vest 25% per year over years on the anniversary date of the grants.Gdmapany granted restricted stock awards
totaling 196,500 shares with an aggregate graetfdatvalue of $1,663 in the year ended DecemhePB14 . In the years endBécember 3:
2013 and 2012 , the Company granted 178,500 an®@Btestricted shares, respectively, with an agageegrant date fair value of $1,665 and
$3,093, respectively.

The total unrecognized compensation cost relatedsivicted stock of $2,200 is expected to be rezagl through May 12, 2018.
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Non-Restricted Stock Grants

The below table indicates the non-restricted comstook grants issued to the Company’s Board ofdbams during the year ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013. The total fair valub®fhares issued was expensed upon the grast date

Number of Share Grant Date
Date Shares Price Fair Value
January 16, 2013 24,28( % 10.0¢ $ 24~
March 25, 2013 1,622 9.2t 15
June 24, 2013 1,41¢ 10.5¢ 15
September 24, 2013 1,20¢ 12.4: 15
December 26, 2013 1,03¢ 14.5] 15
January 16, 2014 21,24¢ 11.5:% 24%

d. Common Stock Repurchases
The Company did not repurchase Common Stock duinegears ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 .

e. Common Stock Dividends

On April 15, 2014, the board of directors of then@any declared a quarterly cash dividend of $@drGshare, payable on June 5, 20!
common stockholders of record at the close of lassiron May 22, 2014. On February 12, 2014, thedbofadirectors of the Company decla
a quarterly cash dividend of $0.16 per share, gayai March 5, 2014 to common stockholders of réetithe close of business on February
24, 2014.

On November 15, 2013, the board of directors of@Gbepany declared a quarterly cash dividend of@pelr share, payable on
December 5, 2013 to common stockholders of recbtiteaclose of business on November 26, 2013. flyesgate amount of the dividends
payable was $3,792 , based upon shares of commok atitstanding as of the record date of NovembeR@13 and additional amounts
payable with each quarterly declaration as restlishares vest. The remaining amount payable wes &1d $58 as of December 31, 2014 an
2013, respectively. The quarterly dividend wasaliginued in the second quarter of 2014.

On November 16, 2012, the board of directors ofGhepany declared a special cash dividend of $3e0Ghare, payable on
December 11, 2012 to common stock holders of reabthe close of business on November 30, 2012 aggesgate amount of the dividends
payable was $70,296 , based upon shares of comiwdaautstanding as of the record date of Nover88e2012 with another $1,104 payable
as restricted shares vest. The remaining amourpayas $340 and $608 as of December 31, 2012GiR)| respectively.

Pursuant to the 2006 Plan, holders of unvestedatest shares as of December 11, 2012 qualifydeive the $3.00 dividend on each
future vesting date, subject to continued employrtiEough the vesting date. Holders of unvestettiotsd shares as of December 5, 2013,
March 5, 2014 and June 5, 2014 qualify to recdnee$0.16 dividend on each future vesting date estiltp continued employment through the
vesting date. As of December 31, 2014 , the tatédlends payable on unvested restricted sharesh®@2 , of which $291 is classified as the
current portion of the dividends payable expectebet paid in 2014 and $211 classified as long-tghich is expected to be paid in the vesting
periods in 2016 through 2018.
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Revenues from club operations, including BFX Stutbo the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2012ah# are summarized below:

Membership dues

Joining fees

Personal training revenue
Other ancillary club revenue(1)
Total club revenue

Fees and other revenue(2)

Total revenue

Years Ended December 31,

(1) Other ancillary club revenue primarily consistsSofiall Group Training, Sports Clubs for Kids andg@et sport:

(2) Fees and other revenue primarily consist of rentmime, marketing revenue and management

16 . Corporate Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for the years erddedember 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 consisted dbtlosving:

Current
Deferred

Current
Deferred

Current
Deferred

2014 2013 2012
$ 343,18! $ 358,76. $ 366,04«
12,04 14,39: 11,59¢
70,33¢ 66,367 65,64
22,30 24,72( 29,89°
447,87 464,24( 473,17
5,971 5,98t 5,80¢
$ 45384: $ 470,22 $ 478,98:
Year Ended December 31, 2014
State and
Federal Foreign Local Total
12,45 % 18 $ 26€ $ 12,90:
14,68« — 25,024 39,70¢
27,13t $ 18z % 2529( $ 52,61
Year Ended December 31, 2013
State and
Federal Foreign Local Total
39€ $ 23z $ 17t $ 80¢
6,487 — 77 6,56¢
6,88: $ 23z % 25z $ 7,36
Year Ended December 31, 2012 (Revised)
State and
Federal Foreign Local Total
25C $ 172 $ 79 % 501
6,041 — (221) 5,82(
6,291 $ 172 $ (142 $ 6,321
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The components of deferred tax assets, net carfdisé following items:

December 31,

2014 2013

Deferred tax assets
Building financing arrangement $ 39,29¢ $ —
Deferred lease liabilities 25,071 24,56(
Deferred revenue 12,60: 10,81¢
Deferred compensation expense incurred in conneetith stock options 2,37( 2,101
Federal and state net operating loss carry-forwards 7,197 6,391
Accruals, reserves and other 6,121 5,77:

$ 92,66: % 49,64
Deferred tax liabilities
Basis differences in fixed and intangible assetsliding depreciation and amortization) $ 16,67 $ 16,28
Change in accounting method 10,12: —
Deferred costs and other assets 5,60¢ 4,45
Deferred lease receivable 1,564 —
Undistributed foreign earnings and other 587 49z

$ 34,55( $ 21,23.
Gross deferred tax assets 58,11 28,41¢
Valuation allowance (69,689 (65)
Deferred tax assets, net $ (11,57¢ $ 28,35(

As of December 31, 2014 , the Company has netreféax liability of $11,576 . The state net defertax liability balance as of
December 31, 2014 is $3,274 . In assessing theabdlty of deferred tax assets, the Company eatalsiwhether it is more likely than not
(more than 50%) that some portion or all of theed®fd tax assets will be realized. A valuationvallace, if needed, reduces the deferred tax
assets to the amount expected to be realized. Mihrate realization of deferred tax assets is ddpahupon the generation of future taxable
income in those periods in which temporary diffeesnbecome deductible and/or net operating losgfoarvards can be utilized. The
Company evaluates all positive and negative eviglevieen determining the amount of the net defea®dssets that are more likely than ne
be realized. This evidence includes, but is noitéichto, prior earnings history, scheduled reveo$ahxable temporary differences, tax plani
strategies and projected future taxable incomenifiignt weight is given to positive and negatiwédence that is objectively verifiable.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company is not ireetlyear cumulative loss position. However, the gany is projected to be in a
cumulative loss position during the three yearqukending in December 31, 2015, which was consitigrde a significant piece of negative
evidence. Based on these factors, most notablgrthjected three year cumulative loss, the Compeangrded a $60,368 non-cash charge to
income tax expense (net of the elimination of fatleffect of state deferred taxes of $8,724 anldaage to other comprehensive (loss) income
of $532 ) to establish a full valuation allowangmimst its U.S. net deferred tax assets. Althoegbgnition of the valuation allowance for the
Company'’s net deferred tax assets is a non-casigehiadid have direct negative impact on net sd shareholder’s loss for the quarter and
fiscal year ended December 31, 2014.

In recording the valuation allowance, deferredlialilities associated with goodwill generally catie used as a source of taxable
income to realize deferred tax assets with a defnloss carry forward period. The Company doesamaortize goodwill for book purposes |
does amortize goodwill with tax basis for tax puege. The deferred tax liability recorded at Decan3fie 2014 relates to the tax effect of
differences between book and tax basis of intaegiskets not expected to reverse during the Cortgpagtyoperating loss carry forward
period.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company utilizedettefal net operating loss carry-forwards againgfi2@xable income. Pursuant to
ASC 718-740-25-10, the Company recorded the taefitesf approximately $1,932 with the reductiontieé income tax payable related to the
windfall portion of stock compensation tax deductidhat either created a net operating loss camydrd or increase a net operating loss
carry-forward in a prior period.
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As of December 31, 2014, state tax net operatisg darry-forwards were $7,788 . Such amounts ekgiween December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2033. The Company has not recordax laenefit for the windfall portion of the stocknspensation that either created or
increased the remaining state net operating Idssé¢ax purposes. As such, the amount of stat®petating loss carrferwards for which a ta
benefit would be recorded to additional paid-initdpvhen the tax benefit is realized is approxiehat591 as of December 31, 2014.

The Company'’s foreign pre-tax earnings relatedhéSwiss entity were $762 , $968 and $846 for ey ended December 31, 2014 ,
2013 and 2012, respectively, and the related otite provisions were $183 , $232 and $172 , rdspdy. In 2011, the Company repatriated
Swiss earnings through 2010. In accordance with Z8& 30, the Company has recognized a deferreliataikty of $587 for the incremental
U.S. tax cost on the total cumulative undistribudadnings of the Swiss clubs for the period throDgleember 31, 2014.

The results for the years ended December 31, 201tB2012 include error corrections that resulteghirncrease in benefit for corporate
income taxes and a related increase in deferredssets in the Company’s consolidated statemespeftions and consolidated balance shee
for each year, respectively. In the fourth quaofe2013, the Company identified a correction relgtio temporary differences in fixed asset:
state depreciation that resulted in the recognibioan income tax benefit of $225 . Also in thertbuguarter of 2013, the Company identified
corrections related to temporary differences imllard allowances resulting in the recognition of otiperiod expense of $209 for a net benefi
to provision for corporate income taxes of $16 rded in the year ended December 31, 2013. In theHf@uarter of 2012, the Company
identified corrections related to temporary diffezes in fixed assets, intangible assets and ddfegkenue resulting in the recognition of an
income tax benefit of $483 . The Company does ehébe that these error corrections are materitiéacurrent or prior reporting periods.

The differences between the United States Fedetaltery income tax rate and the Company’s effectax rate were as follows for the
years endeDecember 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 :

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Federal statutory tax rate (35)% 35% 35%
State and local income taxes, net of federal tarefie (8) 8 8
Change in state effective income tax rate 4 — 2
State tax benefit related to insurance premiums @) (6) (7
Tax reserves @ 2 —
Correction of an error — (@D} ©)]
Other permanent differences @ @ 4
(48) 37 35
Valuation allowance 422 — —
Elimination of federal effect of state deferredeax (53 — —

321 % 37 % 35%

The 2014, 2013 and 2012 effective tax rate of 32B8%%6 , and 35% , respectively, on the Companyésax (loss) income was primar
impacted by the change in the valuation allowamzkthe state tax benefits related to insurance iprasmand interest paid to the captive
insurance company.

The amount of unrecognized tax benefits that,dbgmized, would affect the Company's effectiverate in any future periods were
$1,155 and $751 as of December 31, 2014 and 2@kpectively. For the years ended December 31, 20043 and 2012 , interest (income)
expense on unrecognized tax benefits was $(33495 &nd $81 , respectively. The Company recogriaés interest accrued related to
unrecognized tax benefits and penalties in incarekpenses. The Company had total accruals fereisit as of December 31, 2014 and 201:
of $623 and $959 , respectively.

During the three months ended September 30, 2B&4Zompany filed a Form 3115, Application for ChaugAccounting Method
(“Application”), with the IRS requesting a changeaccounting for the treatment of landlord conttitms. Accordingly, the Company reduced
its unrecognized tax benefits by $12,675 for tmellard contributions positions taken in prior yedrse reduction in unrecognized tax benefits
didn’t affect the Company’s effective tax rate @nhe position related to a temporary differenceyéver, the Company recognized a tax
benefit of $414 primarily related to the reversihocrued interest.
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A reconciliation of unrecognized tax benefits, exithg interest and penalties, is as follows:

2014 2013 2012

(Revised)
Balance on January 1 $ 13,83( $ 15,65¢ $ 16,49;
Gross decreases for tax positions taken in priarsye (12,67%) (1,829 (83¢)
Gross increases for tax positions taken in pri@rge 32 — —
Balance on December 31 $ 1,187 $ 13,83 $ 15,65¢

As of December 31, 2014 , the Company had $1,18ihfcognized tax benefits and it is reasonablgipesthat the entire amount,
could be realized by the Company in 2015 sincertbeme tax returns may no longer be subject totand015.

The Company files federal, foreign and multipldestand local jurisdiction income tax returns. Th@rany is no longer subject to
examinations of its federal income tax returnsh®yInternal Revenue Service for years 2010 ana.jyi®. net operating losses generated in
closed years and utilized in open years are sutpeadjustment by tax authorities.

The following state and local jurisdictions areremtly examining the Company’s respective retuonghie years indicated: New York
State (2006 through 2012), New York City (2006, 20énd 2008), and the Commonwealth of Massachu@&g®, 2010).

On March 26, 2014, the Company received from tla¢eSif New York a revised assessment related tgdars 2006-2009 for $3,500 ,
inclusive of $1,174 of interest. The Company hdsseguently received a request for additional infitiam from the State of New York. All of
the information was submitted by January 2015. Chmpany continues to evaluate the merits of thegsed assessment as new information
becomes available during continued discussions thilState of New York. The Company has not reabedtax reserve related to the
proposed assessment. It is difficult to predictfthal outcome or timing of resolution of any pattiar matter regarding these examinations,
however, it may be reasonably possible that omaare of these examinations maybe result in a chamtiee unrecognized tax benefits over
the next twelve months.

17. Commitments and Contingencies

On or about March 1, 2005, in an action styled B&w®auz, et al v. Town Sports International, d/b&aNYork Sports Club, plaintiffs
commenced a purported class action against TSI, ibltfe Supreme Court, New York County, seekingaithpvages and alleging that TSI,
LLC violated various overtime provisions of the N&ark State Labor Law with respect to the paymdmnwages to certain trainers and
assistant fitness managers. On or about June 08, & same plaintiffs commenced a second pumbatéess action against TSI, LLC in the
Supreme Court of the State of New York, New Yorku@ty, seeking unpaid wages and alleging that TBC kiolated various wage payment
and overtime provisions of the New York State Labaw with respect to the payment of wages to alvN@rk purported hourly employees.
On September 17, 2010, TSI, LLC made motions tmidis the class action allegations of both lawdoitplaintiffs’ failure to timely file
motions to certify the class actions. The courhggd the motions on January 29, 2013, dismissiegldiss action allegations in both lawsuits,
which dismissals were upheld by the Appellate Darisn April 2014.

On September 22, 2009, in an action styled TowntSpoternational, LLC v. Ajilon Solutions, a divas of Ajilon Professional
Staffing LLC (Supreme Court of the State of New K,ddew York County, 602911-09), TSI, LLC broughtaction in the Supreme Court of
the State of New York, New York County, againsti@yifor, among other things, breach of contracksgg among other things, money
damages, in connection with Ajilon’s failure to @gsand deliver to TSI, LLC a new sports club eptese management system known as
GIMS. Subsequently, on October 14, 2009, Ajilonugtat a counterclaim against TSI, LLC alleging breatcontract, asserting, among other
things, failure to pay outstanding invoices in duygregate amount of approximately $2,9@@llowing a jury trial and a jury verdict on Jamy
28, 2013, subsequent appeals by both parties eesialian appellate court reversal which vacatediimages and remanded for new trial or
damages to which TSI was entitled. At the new wialSeptember 2, 2014, the trial court re-instatddmages award of $214 , plus interest, tc
Ajilon. In February 2015, Ajilon and TSI, LLC engsf into a settlement agreement, releasing each fotme all claims related to the Ajilon
litigation.

On February 7, 2007, in an action styled Whiterldtlaza Realty, LLC v. TSI, LLC et al., the lardlof one of TSI, LLC’s former
health and fitness clubs filed a lawsuit in statartagainst it and two of its health club subsidmalleging,
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among other things, breach of lease in connectitimtive decision to close the club located in dding owned by the plaintiff and leased to a
subsidiary of TSI, LLC, the tenant, and take addii space in a nearby facility leased by anottibsigliary of TSI, LLC. Following a
determination of an initial award, which TSI, LL@dthe tenant have paid in full, the landlord apeedshe trial court's award of damages, anc
on August 29, 2011, an additional award (amourtiingpproximately $900 ) (the “Additional Award”),as entered against the tenant, which
has recorded a liability. Separately, TSI, LLC dstp to an agreement with a third-party developdrich by its terms provides indemnification
for the full amount of any liability of any natuagising out of the lease described above, includitgyneys’ fees incurred to enforce the
indemnity. As a result, the developer reimbursetf TEC and the tenant the amount of the initial asven installments over time and also
agreed to be responsible for the payment of thatiaeél Award, and the tenant has recorded a ratdévrelated to the indemnification for the
Additional Award. The developer and the landlord emrrently litigating the payment of the Additibavard and judgment was entered
against the developer on June 5, 2013 in the anafagproximately $1,045 , plus interest. On JuBe2D13, the developer filed a notice of its
intent to appeal the judgment. The appeal remanglipg. TSI, LLC does not believe it is probablatthiSI, LLC will be required to pay for
any amount of the Additional Award.

On or about October 4, 2012, in an action stylede¥alabbe, et al. v. Town Sports International, Lpfaintiff commenced a purported
class action in New York State court on behalf@fspnal trainers employed in New York State. Labklseeking unpaid wages and damages
from TSI, LLC and alleges violations of various yigions of the New York State labor law with respecpayment of wages and TSI, LLC's
notification and record-keeping obligations. Thau@das bifurcated class and merits discovery. ddwlline for the completion of pre-class
certification document discovery was December 8142and the deadline for a class certification orots March 2, 2015. While it is not
possible to estimate the likelihood of an unfavtealutcome or a range of loss in the case of aavaméible outcome to TSI, LLC at this time,
TSI, LLC intends to contest this case vigorously.

In addition to the litigation discussed above, @wmpany is involved in various other lawsuits, miaiand proceedings incidental to the
ordinary course of business, including personairinand employee relations claims. The resultdtigition are inherently unpredictable. Any
claims against the Company, whether meritoriousody could be time consuming, result in costhghtion, require significant amounts of
management time and result in diversion of sigaificesources. The results of these other lawsléisns and proceedings cannot be predi
with certainty. The Company establishes accrualfofs contingencies when it has determined thassis probable and that the amount of
loss, or range of loss, can be reasonably estimAtgdsuch accruals are adjusted thereafter aopgpte to reflect changes in circumstances.
As of December 31, 2014, the company has not cdadlthat an accrual for any such matters is reduire

18. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company maintains a 401(k) defined contribugitam and is subject to the provisions of the EmgéoRetirement Income Security
Act of 1974 ("ERISA”). The Plan provides for the @pany to make discretionary contributions. The Mas amended, effective January 1,
2001, to provide for an employer matching contiitmuin an amount equal to 25% of the participaotstribution with a limit of five hundred
dollars per individual, per annum. Employer matghtontributions totaling $200 and $22@&re made in February 2014 and 2013, respecti
for the Plan years ended December 31, 2013 and 2&4i2ectively. The Company expects to make an@mapimatching contribution of
approximately $200 in February 2015 for the Plaary@nded December 31, 2014.

19. Reportable Segments

The Company'’s operating segments are New York Syi2ittbs, Boston Sports Clubs, Philadelphia Spob<; Washington Sports
Clubs, Swiss Sports Clubs and BFX Studio, whidthéslevel at which the chief operating decision erakeview discrete financial informati
and make decisions about segment profitability th@seearnings before income tax depreciation anort@mation. The Company has
historically determined that these clubs have siméconomic characteristics and meet the critehiglwpermit them to be aggregated into one
reportable segment. During the fourth quarter df2BFX Studio started to be managed separatelyepuatted as a separate reportable
segment as it does not meet the aggregation ertiefie aggregated with the clubs. GeographicdléyCompany operates its fithess clubs
mainly in the United States. Segment informatiorgengraphic regions is not material for presentatio

The following tables set forth the Company’s fin@hperformance by reportable segment for the yeaded December 31, 2014, 2013
and 2012. Since the first BFX Studio lease wassigpted until November 2013, BFX Studio had no imbpacthe Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended Decembge2(R112.

F-36




Table of Contents
TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Revenues:
Clubs $ 453,51t $ 470,22 $ 478,98:
BFX Studio 32¢ — —
Total Revenues $ 453,84. $ 470,22 $ 478,98:

The Company presents earnings (loss) before intexpense (net of interest income), provision (fienfer corporate income taxes, and
depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") as thenpary measure of profit and loss for its operatiegrsents in accordance with FASB
guidance for segment reporting. Clubs EBITDA inés@ll corporate overhead expenses and the impaqudy in the earnings of investees
and rental income. BFX Studio reported EBITDA lo§$3,556 in 2014 primarily reflecting the rent amtupancy costs, start-up costs and
overhead payroll for our first BFX Studio unit aotther studios under development.

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

EBITDA:
Clubs $ 53,52: $ 91,77C $ 92,27¢
BFX Studio (3,55¢) (369 —
Total reportable segments 49,96¢ 91,40¢ 92,27t
Depreciation and amortization 47,30° 49,09¢ 49,39
Interest expense 19,03¢ 22,617 24,64(
Interest income — (@D} (43)
(Loss) income before provision for corporate incdmes $ (16,379 $ 19,69: § 18,28:

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Capital Expenditures:
Clubs $ 37,10 $ 30,56 $ 22,49(
BFX Studio 4,95: 29¢ —
Total Capital Expenditures $ 42,05¢ $ 30,86. $ 22,49(
20. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited
2014
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(b) (c)
Net revenue $ 115,90 $ 115,697 $ 112,52 $ 109,72:
Operating income (loss) (2,109 2,06¢ 2,41 (1,629
Net income (loss) (3,519 (919 (867) (63,68¢)
Earnings (loss) per share(a)
Basic $ (0.15) $ 0.0 $ (0.09 $ (2.62)
Diluted $ (0.15) $ 0.0 $ (0.09 % (2.62)
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2013
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(d)
Net revenue $ 119,16 120,11 $ 117,04: $ 113,90°
Operating income 11,47¢ 15,00: 8,77( 5,34¢
Net income (loss) 4,231 6,191 2,591 (69E)
Earnings (loss) per share(a)

Basic $ 0.1¢ 0.2¢ $ 011 $ (0.09)
Diluted $ 0.1¢ 0.2 $ 0.1C $ (0.0%)

(a) Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per shageamputed independently for each quarter preseAtmbrdingly, the sum of the quarterly
earnings per share may not agree with the calaufateyear earnings per share.

(b) Net loss and loss per share for the third quaft@0a4 includec$833 and $0.03 , respectively, comprised of thiefohg: $928 , net of
tax, occupancy gain related to club closures, $64 of tax, related to rental income from the Camps former tenant in the East 86th
Street building, $24 , net of tax, resulting froemtr paid under the building financing arrangemestdrded in interest expense on the
accompanying consolidated statement of operatipasially offset by $123 , net of tax, relatedegal damages resulting from a legal
judgment an@$56 , net of tax, related to legal and other expgrssociated with club closures.

(c) Netloss and loss per share for the fourth quaft@f14 include$60,368 and $2.48 , respectively, comprised of cash charge related to

a tax valuation allowance recorded against defaar@ssets.

(d) Revenue and operating income for the fourttrtgu of 2013 include $424 of rental revenue duantout of period error correction. Net
loss and loss per share for the fourth quarteil0@Banclude $632 and $(0.03) , respectively, cosgatiof the following: $259 , net of tax,
related to the out of period adjustment to remtabime referred to above, $4%®8s on extinguishment of debt, net of tax, in ation with
the Company’s debt refinancing in November 2013, gayroll bonus expense, net of tax, in conneatigh the payment of a $0.16 cash
bonus to eligible stock option holders; $237 ,afdbx, of severance related to an executive depar$l36, net of tax, related to legal fe

in connection with the sale of the Company'$"88reet property and $16 of net income tax bengdltted to corrections of temporary tax

differences.
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The following is a list of all exhibits filed or @orporated by reference as part of this Report:

Exhibit
No.

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

Description of Exhibit

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiohawn Sports International Holdings, Inc. (the ‘Gisrant”)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of thegR&ant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for theder ended June 30,
2006).

Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Rgrating Preferred Stock of Town Sports InternadibHoldings, Inc. filed
with the Secretary of State of the State of Delawar January 2, 2015 (incorporated by referen&xhibit 3.1 of the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated dan@, 2015).

Third Amended and Restated By-laws of the Registianorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed on September 17, 2014).

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated bference to Exhibit 4.5 of the Registrant’s Registin Statement on
Form S-1, File No. 333-126428 (the “S-1 Registratgiatement”)).

Rights Agreement, dated as of December 31, 20X4/dee Registrant and Computershare Trust Compafy, Bs Rights
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1ef Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dat@auary 2, 2015).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Febrda®p04, by and among Town Sports Internationdtlidgs, Inc., Town
Sports International, Inc., Bruckmann, Rosser, @hé&rCo., L.P. the individuals and entities list®n the BRS Co-Investor
Signature Pages thereto, Farallon Capital Parthd?s, Farallon Capital Institutional Partners, I.IRR Capital Partners,
L.P., and Farallon Capital Institutional Partndrd_IP., Canterbury Detroit Partners, L.P., CantieyliMezzanine Capital,
L.P., Rosewood Capital, L.P., Rosewood Capitall¥?., Rosewood Capital IV Associates, L.P., CaBitairce Holdings
LLC, Keith Alessi, Paul Arnold, and certain stockders of the Company listed on the Executive SigreaPages thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of thé Registration Statement).

Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Rights Agreenderted as of March 23, 2006 (incorporated by esfee to
Exhibit 10.21 of the Registrant’s Annual Reportkarm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005).

Amendment No. 2 to the Registration Rights Agreetndated as of May 30, 2006 (incorporated by refezen
Exhibit 10.9.1 of the S-1 Registration Statement).

Credit Agreement, dated as of November 15, 201®ngnTown Sports International, LLC, TSI HoldingslILC, the
lenders party thereto, Deutsche Bank Trust Compangricas, as Administrative Agent, and Keybank bl
Association, as Syndication Agent (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s CairifiReport on Form 8-
K, dated November 15, 2013).

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as ofidey 30, 2015, among Town Sports InternationaC LTSI Holdings
Il, LLC, the lenders party thereto, Deutsche Bartk Mew York Branch, as administrative agent (Filedelwith).

Subsidiaries Guaranty, dated as of November 153, 28thong each of the Guarantors party theretoPadsche Bank AG
New York Branch, as Administrative Agent (incorpm by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Regista@urrent Report on
Form 8-K, dated November 15, 2013).

Pledge Agreement dated as of November 15, 2013pgutie Borrower, Holdings I, each of the Pledguaigty thereto, and
Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, as Collateral dtgecorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 te Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, dated November 15, 2013

Security Agreement dated as of November 15, 20h8ng the Borrower, Holdings Il, each of the Assignparty thereto,
and Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, as Collatagant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@4hte Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, dated November 15, 2013
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Exhibit
No.

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

*10.14

*10.15

*10.16

*10.17

*10.18

*10.19

*10.20

*10.21

*10.22

*10.23

*10.24

Description of Exhibit

Amended and Restated Interest Rate Swap Confirmatetted November 15, 2013, between Town Spomsriational,
LLC and Deutsche Bank AG New York (incorporatedréference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s ArrRieport on
Form 10-K, for the year ended December 31, 2013).

Agreement of Sale, dated December 23, 2013, bybatwleen Town Sports International, LLC and MontyoTkast 86th
Street Associates LLC (incorporated by referendéxoibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Annual Reportkorm 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2013).

First Amendment to Agreement of Sale, dated Mag&H2R14, between Town Sports International, LLC Btohte Two
East 86" Street Associates, LLC (incorporated by refer@ndexhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Repmor Form
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2014).

Second Amendment to Agreement of Sale, dated AptiP014, between Town Sports International, LL@ Blonte Two
East 86" Street Associates, LLC (incorporated by referendexhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Reor Form
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2014).

Third Amendment to Agreement of Sale, dated JulB04.4, between Town Sports International, LLC anzhi¢ Two East
86" Street Associates, LLC (incorporated by referendexhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Regmr Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2014).

2004 Common Stock Option Plan (incorpenlaby reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the S-4 Regt#&in Statement).

Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’'s 2004 CommoweiS@ption Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi2 of the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for dluarter ended September 30, 2007).

Amended and Restated 2006 Stock Incentive Plaorfocated herein by reference to Appendix A of@mmpany’s
definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed\terch 29, 2011).

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement pursuarthe 2006 Incentive Plan (incorporated by refegeiocExhibit 10.1 of
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filegigiist 8, 2006).

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement pursu@ the 2006 Incentive Plan (incorporated bynasfee to
Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s Current ReportFarm 8-K filed August 8, 2006).

Form of the Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreementfmn-Employee Directors pursuant to the 2006 ItigerPlan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of thegRtrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed A#jl2007).

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement pursu@a the 2006 Incentive Plan (incorporated bynesiee to
Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Repartform 10-Q for the quarter ended September 307)200

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement pursuant t®?0@6 Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencexbilit 10.2 of the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for gvarter ended June 30, 2008).

Amended and Restated 2006 Annual Performance Belaus(incorporated by reference to Appendix A & Registrant’s
definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed\éarch 30, 2010).

Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director Compiens@lan Summary Effective January 1, 2013 (inocaped by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 of the Registrant’s AalnReport on Form 10-K for the year ended Decer3thie2012).

Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director Compiensalan Summary Effective January 1, 2015 (inocajed by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant’s QerdytReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Bihe2014).
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No.

*10.25

*10.26

*10.27

*10.28

*10.29

*10.30

*10.31

*10.32

*10.33

*10.34

*10.35

*10.36

*10.37

*10.38

21

23.1

Description of Exhibit

Offer Letter to David M. Kastin, dated July 23, Z0@ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 & Registrant's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembelGQ7).

Amendment to Offer Letter to David M. Kastin, dat@dcember 23, 2008 (incorporated by reference tol#x10.35 of the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for theryeladed December 31, 2008).

Offer Letter, dated March 18, 2010, between theifemt and Robert Giardina (incorporated by rafeesto Exhibit 10.1
to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10e6tiie period ended March 31, 2010).

Letter Agreement with Daniel Gallagher, dated Jaya8, 2014 (incorporated by reference to ExhiBitl1of the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed JagueB, 2014).

Letter Agreement with Carolyn Spatafora, dated IKj8i 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibitl16f the Registrarg
Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 25, 2014).

Form of Executive Severance Agreement between #dggsRant and each of Daniel Gallagher and Davistika
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 of Registrant’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for theryeaded
December 31, 2007).

Form of Amendment to Executive Severance Agreetbetrteen the Registrant and each of Daniel GallaghérDavid
Kastin (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1008%he Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfog year ended
December 31, 2008).

Form of Executive Severance Agreement between #dgisRant and each of Robert Giardina, Paul Bai$aoit Milford,
Carolyn Spatafora and Nitin Ajmera (incorporated-éference to Exhibit 10.28 of the Registrant’s AalhReport on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009).

Amendment dated March 1, 2011 to Executive Severagreement between the Registrant and Robert @&rd
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thegRtrant’s Quarterly Report on Form @QCfor the period ended March @
2011).

Form of Director and Officer Indemnification Agreent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2%hef S-1 Registration
Statement).

Form of 2012 Bonus Letter between the Registradtesth of Robert Giardina, Daniel Gallagher, Da€édtin, Scott
Milford and Paul Barron (incorporated by referetmé&xhibit 10.11 if the Registrant’'s Annual Repont Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2012).

Letter Agreement, dated February 25, 2015, betWeswm Sports International Holdings, Inc. and Rolt&ggrdina
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of thegRtrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed Febyu2b, 2015).

Letter Agreement, dated February 25, 2015, betWeswm Sports International Holdings, Inc. and Da®@ellagher
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of thegRtrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed Feby2b, 2015).

Form of Amended and Restated Executive Severanoeefigent, dated February 25, 2015, between Townts$Spor
International Holdings, Inc. and each of Carolyrat@fora, David M. Kastin, Paul Barron, Scott Millpand Nitin Ajmera
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of thegRtrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed Feby2b, 2015).

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (Filed herewith).

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
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Exhibit 10.5
EXECUTION VERSION

TSI HOLDINGS II, LLC
TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL, LLC

FIRST AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “ First Amendment) is dated as of January 30, 2015
entered into by and amon@SI HOLDINGS II, LLC , a Delaware limited liability company (*_Holdingy, TOWN SPORTS
INTERNATIONAL, LLC , a New York limited liability company (the_ * Bomweer "), the Subsidiary Guarantors listed on the signatage;
hereto (each, a* Subsidiary Guararit@and, collectively, the * Subsidiary Guarantdysthe financial institutions listed on the signatpsge
hereof and executing this First Amendment (the fideys”) and DEUTSCHE BANK AG NEW YORK BRANCH , as administrative age
for the Lenders (in such capacity, the “ Administ@ Agent”) and is made with reference to that certain Credjte&ment, dated as
November 15, 2013 (it Credit Agreement), by and among Holdings, the Borrower, the Lendesdédined in the Credit Agreement) and
Administrative Agent. Capitalized terms used heraithout definition shall have the same meaningseineas set forth in the Cre
Agreement.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Holdings, the Borrower and each Lender party hedeire to amend the Credit Agreement to permiematc
purchase Term Loans in accordance with the tereredf;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the agreemprisisions and covenants herein containec
parties hereto agree as follows:

Section 1. AMENDMENTS TO THE CREDIT AGREEMENT

1.1 Amendments to Section 1: Definitions and Accountinderms

A. Section 1.0Jof the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by adtlingeto the following new definitions, wh
definitions shall be inserted in proper alphabéticder:

“ Eirst Amendment shall mean the First Amendment to Credit Agreemaaitied as of the First Amendment Effective C
among Holdings, the Borrower, the Subsidiary Guanaparty thereto, the Lenders party thereto hedddministrative Agent.

“ Eirst Amendment Effective Daté shall have the meaning provided in the First Amesdinmwhich date is January

2015.

B. Section 1.01of the Credit Agreement is hereby further amendgdaimending and restating the definitior
“Eligible Transferee” appearing therein in its eety as follows:

“ Eligible Transfere€ shall mean and include a commercial bank, anrarste company, a finance company, a financialtingin,
any fund that invests in loans or any other “actegidnvestor” (as defined in Regulation D of thexBrities Act), but excluding individuals,
Parent, Holdings and their respective SubsidiamabAffiliates (except to the limited extent pertdt by Section 2.1@r clause (ii) of the
proviso below); providedhowever, notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) one or mordilkites of Parent (including, for the avoidancedoiubt,
all directors and officers of Parent, Holdings oy &f their respective Subsidiaries) that are meitharent, Holdings nor any of their respective
Subsidiaries, but may include individuals, may hdeéigible Transferee for up to $3,000,000 in thgr@gate of outstanding Term Loans at
time for all such Affiliates so long as any sucHilidte shall have waived its right to (x) receifend by becoming a Lender hereunder hereby
waives its right to receive) information (other tredministrative information such as notificatiamsler_Section 2 not prepared by (or on
behalf of) Parent, Holdings or any of their respecSubsidiaries from the Administrative Agent ayd.ender (or any advisor, agent or cou
thereof) under or in connection with the Credit Dments and (y) attend (and by becoming a Lendeineler hereby waives its right to atte
any meeting or conference call (or any portiongb@rwith the




Administrative Agent or any Lender but in whichther Parent, Holdings nor any of their respectiubstdiaries participates and (ii) Parent
may be an Eligible Transferee with respect to Teoans and, for the avoidance of doubt, may purcBask Term Loans in the open marke
otherwise, so long as all such Term Loans are reffReautomatically cancelled and retired diredily Parent on the settlement date of the
relevant purchase (and such Term Loans may natdméd) or (B) (I) immediately contributed by ParemHoldings, (II) immediately thereafi
contributed by Holdings to the Borrower and (Illjtamatically cancelled and retired by the Borrovieieach case, on the settlement date ¢
relevant purchase (and such Term Loans may natdméd); provided further, that (1) no Lender shall have an obligation tdipipate in any
such assignments and (2) with respect to any suthpse contemplated by this clause (i), the Adstiiative Agent hereby waives the fee set
forth in clause (v) of the second proviso in Setctl®.04(b)it being understood and agreed by the Administeafigent and the Lenders that
(A) the par principal amount of Term Loans of thepective Tranche so purchased by Parent and tsthpersuant to this definition shall be
applied to reduce the remaining Scheduled Term IRegpayments of such Tranche of Term Loans of tiplicgble selling Lenders on a pro
rata basis, (B) Parent may contribute such purech@isem Loans to Holdings (and by Holdings to therBwer) in order to cancel such Term
Loans as contemplated above in this definition @J)dhe Administrative Agent and the Lenders (iéhg any Lender selling its Term Loans
to Parent) hereby consent to the transactions epiéded by clause (ii) of this proviso).

Section 2. CONDITIONS TO EFFECTIVENESS

Section 1 of this First Amendment shall become ctiffe only upon the satisfaction of all of the @iling condition
precedent (the date of satisfaction of such comuitbeing referred to herein as the “ First Amemuiriéfective Date'):

A. Amendment . Holdings, the Borrower, the Subsidiary Guarantord the Required Lenders shall have sigr
counterpart hereof (whether the same or differennterparts) and shall have delivered (includingMay of facsimile (or other electron
transmission) their signed counterparts to the Adstriative Agent.

B. Fees and ExpensesThe Borrower shall have paid all costs, feesgeagps and other amounts due and pa
pursuant to the Credit Documents and any othedieeand payable to the Administrative Agent or afiifiate thereof as may have bt
separately agreed to by the Borrower and the Advinative Agent or such affiliate in connection withis First Amendment, including t
reasonable fees and expenses of White & Case LLP.

Section 3. CREDIT PARTY REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

In order to induce the Lenders to enter into thistFAmendment and to amend the Credit Agreemerth& manne
provided herein, each Credit Party represents adants to each Lender that the following statemarg true and correct:

A. Power and Authority . Each Credit Party has the corporate, partnermshipnited liability company power ai
authority, as the case may be, to execute, dedindrperform the terms and provisions of this Fstendment and has taken all neces
corporate, partnership or limited liability compaagtion, as the case may be, to authorize the &reculelivery and performance by it
this First Amendment. Each Credit Party has dulgcexed and delivered this First Amendment, and Fiist Amendment constitutes
legal, valid and binding obligation enforceableantordance with its terms, except to the exteritttteaenforceability hereof may be limi
by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganizgtimoratorium or other similar laws generally affieg creditors’rights and by equitak
principles (regardless of whether enforcement igyhbin equity or at law).

B. Approvals . No order, consent, approval, license, authoopatir validation of, or filing, recording or regiatior
with, or exemption by, any governmental or publici¥ or authority, or any subdivision thereof, iguged to be obtained or made by, o
behalf of, any Credit Party to authorize, or isuiegd to be obtained or made by, or on behalf 0§, @redit Party in connection with, (i) 1
execution, delivery and performance of this Firsheéidment or (ii) the legality, validity, bindingfe€t or enforceability of this Fir
Amendment (except for those that have otherwise bbéained or made).

C. No Violation . Neither the execution, delivery or performanceabny Credit Party of this First Amendment,
compliance by it with the terms and provisions b&ré) will contravene in any material respect gmpvision of any law, statute, rule
regulation or any order, writ, injunction or deckdeany court or governmental instrumentality, i)l conflict with or result in any breach
any of the terms, covenants, conditions or prowmsiof, or constitute a default under, or resulttia creation or imposition of (or t
obligation to create or impose) any Lien upon ahthe property or assets of any Credit Party or @fys Subsidiaries pursuant to the te
of any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, cregliéament or




loan agreement, or any other material agreementrami or instrument, in each case to which anydi€fearty or any of its Subsidiaries i
party or by which it or any its property or assstbound or to which it may be subject, or (iii)llwiolate any provision of the certificate
articles of incorporation, certificate of formatjiolmited liability company agreement, partnersiaigreement or blaws (or equivalel
organizational documents), as applicable, of argd€iParty or any of its Subsidiaries.

D. Incorporation of Representations and Warranties From Credit Agreement . The representations &
warranties contained in Section 8 of the Credite®gnent are and will be true and correct in all nateespects on and as of the F
Amendment Effective Date to the same extent asghanade on and as of that date, except to the testieh representations and warrat
specifically relate to an earlier date, in whiclse#hey were true and correct in all material retgpen and as of such earlier date; providec
that, if a representation and warranty is qualiisdo materiality, with respect to such repregentaand warranty the materiality qualifier
forth above shall be disregarded for purposesisfabndition.

E. Absence of Default. No event has occurred and is continuing or wabult from the consummation of
transactions contemplated by this First Amendmiggit would constitute a Default or an Event of Défau

Section 4. ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND CONSENT

Each of Holdings, the Borrower and each Subsidauarantor has read this First Amendment and cosdenthe terrr
hereof and hereby acknowledges and agrees thaGaayanty and any Security Document to which it igaaty or otherwise bound s
continue in full force and effect and that all t&f dbligations thereunder shall be valid and ergfabte in accordance with their respective te
except to the extent that the enforceability theraay be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolegnreorganization, moratorium or ot
similar laws relating to or affecting creditorgjhts generally and subject to general princigleequity, regardless of whether considered
proceeding in equity or at law, and shall not bpaired or limited by the execution or effectivenekthis First Amendment.

Each Subsidiary Guarantor acknowledges and aghe¢<i} notwithstanding the conditions to effectiess set forth in tr
First Amendment, such Subsidiary Guarantor is aquired by the terms of the Credit Agreement or atimer Credit Document to consen
the amendments to the Credit Agreement effecteduaunt to this First Amendment and (ii) nothing Ire tCredit Agreement, this Fi
Amendment or any other Credit Document shall bersdekto require the consent of any Subsidiary Guarda any future amendments to
Credit Agreement as amended hereby.

Section 5. MISCELLANEOUS
A. Reference to and Effect on the Credit Agreemerdand the Other Credit Documents.
0] On and after the First Amendment Effective Daach reference in the Credit Agreement to “thise®ment;

“hereunder”, “hereof”, “hereinbr words of like import referring to the Credit Aggrment, and each reference in the other Credit iDents ti

the “Credit Agreement”, “thereunder”, “thereaft words of like import referring to the Credit Aggment shall mean and be a reference
Credit Agreement as amended hereby.

(i) The parties hereto agree that this First Ammaadt is a Credit Document.

(iii) Except as specifically amended by this First Ameadimthe Credit Agreement and the other Credit Doz
shall remain in full force and effect and are hgredtified and confirmed.

(iv) The execution, delivery and performance of thisttAmendment shall not, except as expressly provigeein
constitute a waiver of any provision of, or operasea waiver of any right, power or remedy of Adistirative Agent or any Lender under,
Credit Agreement or any of the other Credit Docutsen

B. Headings. Section and subsection headings in this First Admeent are included herein for convenienc
reference only and shall not constitute a parhisf Eirst Amendment for any other purpose or begiany substantive effect.

C. Applicable Law. THIS FIRST AMENDMENT AND THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE
PARTIES HEREUNDER SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND SHALL B E CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS
OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK .




D. Counterparts . This First Amendment may be executed in any nunalbeounterparts and by different par
hereto in separate counterparts, each of which wsbesxecuted and delivered shall be deemed amatidiut all such counterparts toge
shall constitute but one and the same instrumégriature pages may be detached from multiple sepacainterparts and attached to a si
counterpart so that all signature pages are pHijjsiatiached to the same document. Delivery of x@cated counterpart hereof by facsir
or other electronic transmission shall be as dffeas delivery of any original executed counterpareof.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this First Amendioelné duly executed and delivered by t
respective officers thereunto duly authorized athefdate first written above.

TSI HOLDINGS I, LLC

By: /sl David Kastin

Name: David Kastin

Title: Senior Vice President

TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL, LLC

By: /s/ David Kastin

Name: David Kastin

Title: Senior Vice President

-Signature Page-
First Amendment to Credit Agreement




BFX 30 BROAD STREET, LLC

BFX 1231 THIRD AVENUE, LLC
BFX BACK BAY, LLC

BFX WEST 15th STREET, LLC
BOUTIQUE FITNESS, LLC

TSI 217 BROADWAY, LLC

TSI ALEXANDRIA, LLC

TSI ALEXANDRIA WEST, LLC

TSI ALLSTON, LLC

TSI ANDOVER, LLC

TSI ARDMORE, LLC

TSI ARTHRO-FITNESS SERVICES, LLC
TSI ASTORIA, LLC

TSI AVENUE A, LLC

TSI BACK BAY, LLC

TSI BATTERY PARK, LLC

TSI BAY RIDGE 86TH STREET, LLC
TSI BAYONNE, LLC

TSI BAYRIDGE, LLC

TSI BEACON STREET, LLC

TSI BENSONHURST, LLC

TSI BETHESDA, LLC,
each as a Guarantor

By: /s/ David Kastin
Name: David Kastin
Title: Senior Vice President
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TSI BOYLSTON, LLC

TSI BROADWAY, LLC

TSI BROOKLYN BELT, LLC

TSI BRUNSWICK, LLC

TSI BULFINCH, LLC

TSI BUTLER, LLC

TSI CANTON, LLC

TSI CARMEL, LLC

TSI CASH MANAGEMENT, LLC

TSI CENTRAL SQUARE, LLC

TSI CHERRY HILL, LLC

TSI CHEVY CHASE, LLC

TSI CLARENDON, LLC

TSI CLARENDON STREET, LLC

TSI CLIFTON, LLC

TSI COBBLE HILL, LLC

TSI COLONIA, LLC

TSI COLUMBIA HEIGHTS, LLC



TSI COMMACK, LLC

TSI CONNECTICUT AVENUE, LLC

TSI COURT STREET, LLC,
each as a Guarantor

By: /s/ David Kastin
Name: David Kastin
Title: Senior Vice President

-Signature Page-
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TSI CROTON, LLC

TSI DANBURY, LLC

TSI DAVIS SQUARE, LLC

TSI DEER PARK, LLC

TSI DOBBS FERRY, LLC

TSI DORCHESTER, LLC

TSI DOWNTOWN CROSSING, LLC

TSI DUPONT CIRCLE, INC.

TSI DUPONT II, INC.

TSI EAST 23, LLC

TSI EAST 31, LLC

TSI EAST 34, LLC

TSI EAST 36, LLC

TSI EAST 41, LLC

TSI EAST 48, LLC

TSI EAST 51, LLC

TSI EAST 59, LLC

TSI EAST 76, LLC

TSI EAST 86, LLC



TSI EAST 86" STREET Il, LLC

TSI EAST 91, LLC,
each as a Guarantor

By: /s/ David Kastin
Name: David Kastin
Title: Senior Vice President

-Signature Page-
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TSI EAST BRUNSWICK, LLC

TSI EAST MEADOW, LLC

TSI ENGLEWOOD, LLC

TSI F STREET, LLC

TSI FAIRFAX, LLC

TSI FENWAY, LLC

TSI FIRST AVENUE, LLC

TSI FIT ACQUISITION, LLC

TSI FOREST HILLS, LLC

TSI FORT LEE, LLC

TSI FRAMINGHAM, LLC

TSI FRANKLIN (MA), LLC

TSI FRANKLIN PARK, LLC

TSI FREEHOLD, LLC

TSI GALLERY PLACE, LLC

TSI GARDEN CITY, LLC

TSI GARNERVILLE, LLC

TSI GEORGETOWN, LLC



TSI GERMANTOWN, LLC
TSI GIFTCO, LLC

TSI GLENDALE, LLC,
each as a Guarantor

By: /s/ David Kastin

Name: David Kastin
Title: Senior Vice President

-Signature Page-
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TSI GLOVER, LLC

TSI GRAND CENTRAL, LLC

TSI GREAT NECK, LLC

TSI GREENPOINT, LLC

TSI GREENWICH, LLC

TSI HARTSDALE, LLC

TSI HAWTHORNE, LLC

TSI HERALD, LLC

TSI HICKSVILLE, LLC

TSI HIGHPOINT, LLC

TSI HOBOKEN, LLC

TSI HOBOKEN NORTH, LLC

TSI HOLDINGS (CIP), LLC

TSI HOLDINGS (DC), LLC

TSI HOLDINGS (IP), LLC

TSI HOLDINGS (MA), LLC

TSI HOLDINGS (MD), LLC

TSI HOLDINGS (NJ), LLC



TSI HOLDINGS (PA), LLC

TSI HOLDINGS (VA), LLC

TSI HUNTINGTON, LLC,
each as a Guarantor

By: /s/ David Kastin
Name: David Kastin
Title: Senior Vice President

-Signature Page-
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TSI INTERNATIONAL, INC.

TSI IRVING PLACE, LLC

TSI JAMAICA ESTATES, LLC

TSI JERSEY CITY, LLC

TSI K STREET, LLC

TSI LARCHMONT, LLC

TSI LEXINGTON (MA), LLC

TSI LINCOLN, LLC

TSI LIVINGSTON, LLC

TSI LONG BEACH, LLC

TSI LYNNFIELD, LLC

TSI M STREET, LLC

TSI MAHWAH, LLC

TSI MAMARONECK, LLC

TSI MARKET STREET, LLC

TSI MARLBORO, LLC

TSI MATAWAN, LLC

TSI MERCER STREET, LLC



TSI MIDWOOD, LLC

TSI MONTCLAIR, LLC

TSI MORRIS PARK, LLC,
each as a Guarantor

By: /s/ David Kastin
Name: David Kastin
Title: Senior Vice President

-Signature Page-
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TSI MURRAY HILL, LLC

TSI NANUET, LLC

TSI NATICK, LLC

TSI NEW ROCHELLE, LLC

TSI NEWARK, LLC

TSI NEWBURY STREET, LLC

TSINEWTON, LLC

TSI NO SWEAT, LLC

TSI NORTH BETHESDA, LLC

TSI NORWALK, LLC

TSI OCEANSIDE, LLC

TSI OLD BRIDGE, LLC

TSI PARSIPPANY, LLC

TSI PLAINSBORO, LLC

TSI PORT JEFFERSON, LLC

TSI PRINCETON, LLC

TSI PRINCETON NORTH, LLC

TSI PROVIDENCE DOWNTOWN, LLC

TSI PROVIDENCE EASTSIDE, LLC



TSI RADNOR, LLC

TSI RAMSEY, LLC,
each as a Guarantor

By: /s/ David Kastin
Name: David Kastin
Title: Senior Vice President

-Signature Page-
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TSI READE STREET, LLC

TSI REGO PARK, LLC

TSI RIDGEWOOD, LLC

TSI RODIN PLACE, LLC

TSI SCARSDALE, LLC

TSI SEAPORT, LLC

TSI SHERIDAN, LLC

TSI SILVER SPRING, LLC

TSI SMITHTOWN, LLC

TSI SOCIETY HILL, LLC

TSI SOHO, LLC

TSI SOMERS, LLC

TSI SOMERSET, LLC

TSI SOUTH BETHESDA, LLC

TSI SOUTH END, LLC

TSI SOUTH PARK SLOPE, LLC

TSI SOUTH STATION, LLC

TSI SPRINGFIELD, LLC



TSI STAMFORD DOWNTOWN, LLC

TSI STAMFORD POST, LLC

TSI STAMFORD RINKS, LLC,
each as a Guarantor

By: /s/ David Kastin
Name: David Kastin
Title: Senior Vice President
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TSI STATEN ISLAND, LLC

TSI STERLING, LLC

TSI SUMMER STREET, LLC

TSI SUNNYSIDE, LLC

TSI SYOSSET, LLC

TSI UNIVERSITY MANAGEMENT, LLC

TSI VARICK STREET, LLC

TSI WALL STREET, LLC

TSI WALTHAM, LLC

TSI WASHINGTON, INC.

TSI WATER STREET, LLC

TSI WATERTOWN, LLC

TSI WAYLAND, LLC

TSI WELLESLEY, LLC

TSI WELLINGTON CIRCLE, LLC

TSIWEST 14, LLC

TSI WEST 16, LLC

TSI WEST 23, LLC



TSI WEST 38, LLC
TSI WEST 41, LLC
TSI WEST 44, LLC,
each as a Guarantor
By: /s/ David Kastin

Name: David Kastin
Title: Senior Vice President
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TSI WEST 48, LLC

TSIWEST 52, LLC

TSIWEST 73, LLC

TSI WEST 76, LLC

TSI WEST 80, LLC

TSIWEST 94, LLC

TSI WEST 115TH STREET, LLC

TSI WEST 125, LLC

TSI WEST 145TH STREET, LLC

TSI WEST CALDWELL, LLC

TSI WEST END, LLC

TSI WEST HARTFORD, LLC

TSI WEST NEWTON, LLC

TSI WEST NYACK, LLC

TSI WEST SPRINGFIELD, LLC

TSI WESTBOROUGH, LLC

TSI WESTPORT, LLC

TSI WESTWOOD, LLC

TSIWEYMOUTH, LLC

TSI WHITE PLAINS, LLC



TSI WHITE PLAINS CITY CENTER, LLC,
each as a Guarantor

By: /s/ David Kastin
Name: David Kastin
Title: Senior Vice President
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TSI WHITESTONE, LLC

TSI WILLIAMSBURG, LLC

TSI WOBURN, LLC

TSI WOODMERE, LLC,
each as a Guarantor

By: /s/ David Kastin
Name: David Kastin
Title: Senior Vice President
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DEUTSCHE BANK AG NEW YORK BRANCH , as
Administrative Agent

By: /sl Mary Kay Coyle

Name: Mary Kay Coyle

Title:  Managing Director

By: /sl Kirk L. Tashjian

Name: Kirk L. Tashjian

Title: Vice President

-Signature Page-
First Amendment to Credit Agreement






Company

Parent

TSI Holdings Il, LLC

Town Sports International, LLC
Subsidiaries

BFX 1231 Third Avenue, LLC
BFX 30 Broad Street, LLC
BFX Back Bay, LLC

BFX West 15th Street, LLC
Boutique Fitness, LLC

TSI 217 Broadway, LLC

TSI Alexandria, LLC

TSI Alexandria West, LLC
TSI Allston, LLC

TSI Andover, LLC

TSI Ardmore, LLC

TSI Arthro-Fitness Services, LLC
TSI Astoria, LLC

TSI Avenue A, LLC

TSI Back Bay, LLC

TSI Battery Park, LLC

TSI Bay Ridge 86th Street, LLC
TSI Bayonne, LLC

TSI Bayridge, LLC

TSI Beacon Street, LLC

TSI Bensonhurst, LLC

TSI Bethesda, LLC

TSI Boylston, LLC

TSI Broadway, LLC

TSI Brooklyn Belt, LLC

TSI Brunswick, LLC

TSI Bulfinch, LLC

TSI Butler, LLC

TSI Canton, LLC

TSI Carmel, LLC

TSI Cash Management, LLC
TSI Central Square, LLC
TSI Cherry Hill, LLC

TSI Chevy Chase, LLC

TSI Clarendon, LLC

TSI Clarendon Street, LLC
TSI Clifton, LLC

TSI Cobble Hill, LLC

TSI Colonia, LLC

TSI Columbia Heights, LLC
TSI Commack, LLC

TSI Connecticut Avenue, LLC
TSI Court Street, LLC

TSI Croton, LLC

TSI Danbury, LLC

TSI Davis Square, LLC

TSI Deer Park, LLC

TSI Dobbs Ferry, LLC

TOI NAavalhAantar 11 7

State of
Incorporation

DE
NY

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

nr

Doing Business As

n/a
n/a

BFX Studio
BFX Studio
BFX Studio
BFX Studio
BFX Boutique Fitness Experience
NYSC
wWsC
n/a
BSC
BSC
PSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
BSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
BSC
NYSC
n/a
BSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
BSC
NYSC
BSC
NYSC
n/a
BSC
n/a
WSC
WSC
BSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
WsC
NYSC
WsC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
BSC
NYSC
NYSC

Do

Exhibit 21



TSI Downtown Crossing, LLC DE BSC
TSI Dupont Circle, Inc. DE n/a
TSI Dupont Il, Inc. DE n/a




Company
TSI East 23, LLC

TSl East 31, LLC

TSI East 34, LLC

TSI East 36, LLC

TSl East 41, LLC

TSI East 48, LLC

TSl East 51, LLC

TSI East 59, LLC

TSI East 76, LLC

TSI East 86, LLC

TSI East 86th Street Il, LLC
TSI East 91, LLC

TSI East Brunswick, LLC
TSI East Meadow, LLC
TSI Englewood, LLC
TSI F Street, LLC

TSI Fairfax, LLC

TSI Fenway, LLC

TSI First Avenue, LLC
TSI Fit Acquisition, LLC
TSI Forest Hills, LLC
TSI Fort Lee, LLC

TSI Framingham, LLC
TSI Franklin (MA), LLC
TSI Franklin Park, LLC
TSI Freehold, LLC

TSI Gallery Place, LLC
TSI Garden City, LLC
TSI Garnerville, LLC
TSI Georgetown, LLC
TSI Germantown, LLC
TSI Giftco, LLC

TSI Glendale, LLC

TSI Glover, LLC

TSI Grand Central, LLC
TSI Great Neck, LLC
TSI Greenpoint, LLC
TSI Greenwich, LLC
TSI Hartsdale, LLC
TSI Hawthorne, LLC
TSI Herald, LLC

TSI Hicksville, LLC

TSI Highpoint, LLC
TSI Hoboken, LLC

TSI Hoboken North, LLC
TSI Holdings (CIP), LLC
TSI Holdings (DC), LLC
TSI Holdings (IP), LLC
TSI Holdings (MA), LLC
TSI Holdings (MD), LLC
TSI Holdings (NJ), LLC
TSI Holdings (PA), LLC
TSI Holdings (VA), LLC
TSI Huntington, LLC

T<I Inciiranra Inr

State of
Incorporation
DE

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
PA
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

DE
NIV

Doing Business As
NYSC

NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
WSC
WSC
BSC
NYSC
n/a
NYSC
NYSC
BSC
BSC
NYSC
NYSC
WSC
NYSC
NYSC
WSC
WSC
n/a
NYSC
WSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC and AMFIT Physical Therapy
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
PSC
NYSC
NYSC
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
NYSC

n/a



TSI International, Inc. DE n/a
TSI Irving Place, LLC DE NYSC
TSI Jamaica Estates, LLC DE NYSC




Company
TSI Jersey City, LLC

TSI K Street, LLC

TSI Larchmont, LLC

TSI Lexington (MA), LLC
TSI Lincoln, LLC

TSI Livingston, LLC

TSI Long Beach, LLC
TSI Lynnfield, LLC

TSI M Street, LLC

TSI Mahwah, LLC

TSI Mamaroneck, LLC
TSI Market Street, LLC
TSI Marlboro, LLC

TSI Matawan, LLC

TSI Mercer Street, LLC
TSI Midwood, LLC

TSI Montclair, LLC

TSI Morris Park, LLC
TSI Murray Hill, LLC

TSI Nanuet, LLC

TSI Natick, LLC

TSI New Rochelle, LLC
TSI Newark, LLC

TSI Newbury Street, LLC
TSI Newton, LLC

TSI No Sweat, LLC

TSI North Bethesda, LLC
TSI Norwalk, LLC

TSI Oceanside, LLC
TSI Old Bridge, LLC

TSI Parsippany, LLC
TSI Plainsboro, LLC

TSI Port Jefferson, LLC
TSI Princeton, LLC

TSI Princeton North, LLC
TSI Providence Downtown, LLC
TSI Providence Eastside, LLC
TSI Radnor, LLC

TSI Ramsey, LLC

TSI Reade Street, LLC
TSI Rego Park, LLC

TSI Ridgewood, LLC
TSI Rodin Place, LLC
TSI Scarsdale, LLC

TSI Seaport, LLC

TSI Sheridan, LLC

TSI Silver Spring, LLC
TSI Smithtown, LLC

TSI Society Hill, LLC
TSI Soho, LLC

TSI Somers, LLC

TSI Somerset, LLC

TSI South Bethesda, LLC
TSI South End, LLC

TSI Souith Park Slone 11

State of
Incorporation
DE

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
NDF

Doing Business As
NYSC

WSC
NYSC
BSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
BSC
WSC
NYSC
NYSC
PSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
BSC
NYSC
NYSC
BSC
BSC
n/a
WSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
BSC |
BSC I
PSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
PSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
WSC
NYSC
PSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
WSC
BSC
NYSC



TSI South Station, LLC DE BSC
TSI Springfield, LLC DE NYSC
TSI Stamford Downtown, LLC DE NYSC




Company
TSI Stamford Post, LLC

TSI Stamford Rinks, LLC
TSI Staten Island, LLC
TSI Sterling, LLC

TSI Summer Street, LLC
TSI Sunnyside, LLC

TSI Syosset, LLC

TSI University Management, LLC

TSI Varick Street, LLC
TSI Wall Street, LLC

TSI Waltham, LLC

TSI Washington, Inc.

TSI Water Street, LLC
TSI Watertown, LLC

TSI Wayland, LLC

TSI Wellesley, LLC

TSI Wellington Circle, LLC
TSI West 14, LLC

TSI West 16, LLC

TSI West 23, LLC

TSI West 38, LLC

TSI West 41, LLC

TSI West 44, LLC

TSI West 48, LLC

TSI West 52, LLC

TSI West 73, LLC

TSI West 76, LLC

TSI West 80, LLC

TSI West 94, LLC

TSI West 115th Street, LLC
TSI West 125, LLC

TSI West 145th Street, LLC
TSI West Caldwell, LLC
TSI West End, LLC

TSI West Hartford, LLC
TSI West Newton, LLC
TSI West Nyack, LLC

TSI West Springfield, LLC
TSI Westborough, LLC
TSI Westport, LLC

TSI Westwood, LLC

TSI Weymouth, LLC

TSI White Plains City Center, LLC

TSI White Plains, LLC
TSI Whitestone, LLC
TSI Williamsburg, LLC
TSI Woburn, LLC

TSI Woodmere, LLC

State of
Incorporation
DE

DE
DE
DE

DE
DE
DE

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

DE
DE

DE

DE
DE

DE
DE
DE

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

Doing Business As
NYSC

NYSC
NYSC
WSC

BSC and Bogtacquet Club

NYSC
NYSC
n/a
NYSC
NYSC
BSC
WSC
NYSC
BSC
BSC
BSC
BSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
BSC
NYSC
WSC
BSC
NYSC
NYSC
BSC
NYSC
NYSC
NYSC
n/a
BSC
NYSC



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statement on Forms S-8 (N8-B35048, 333-151965 and 333-
175884) and Form S-3 (No. 333-167377) of Town Splmternational Holdings, Inc. of our report daksbruary 27, 2015 relating to the
financial statements and the effectiveness of materontrol over financial reporting, which appeiarshis Form 10-K.

/s] PRICEWATERHOUSEC OOPERY.LP

New York, New York
February 27, 2015



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Daniel Gallagher, certify that:

1.
2.

5.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1@Kthe year ended December 31, 201Zown Sports International Holdings, Ir

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamtsother financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of angdtfa periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdote designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoégorting, or caused such internal control ovearicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodgiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsagisclosure controls and procedures and presentais report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt’s internal control over financial reportittgat occurred during the

registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theweden!

functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqmbrt financial
information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisa@mtifole in the registrarst’
internal control over financial reporting.

By: /s/ Daniel Gallagher
Daniel Gallagher
Chief Executive Officer

February 27, 2015



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Carolyn Spatafora, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1@Kthe year ended December 31, 201Zown Sports International Holdings, Ir
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiommny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamtsother financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of angdtfa periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoégorting, or caused such internal control ovearfitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsagisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbib report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt’s internal control over financial reportittgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finateeporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theweden!
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqmbrt financial

information; and
(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aismmtifole in the registrarst
internal control over financial reporting.

By: /s/ Carolyn Spatafora
Carolyn Spatafora
Chief Financial Officer

February 27, 2015



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Town Spaénternational Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) onrfp10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2014 filed with the Securities andiaxge Commission on the date hereof (the “RepdrtDaniel Gallagher, certify, pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 9@igeoBarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; an

(2) The information contained in the Report fajphesents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and results of operations of
the Company.

/sl Daniel Gallagher
Daniel Gallagher
Chief Executive Officer

February 27, 2015



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Town Spaénternational Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) onrfp10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2014 filed with the Securities andiaxge Commission on the date hereof (the “RepdrtDaniel Gallagher, certify, pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to 906eoBtrbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; an
(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and results of operations of
the Company.

/sl Carolyn Spatafora
Carolyn Spatafora
Chief Financial Officer

February 27, 2015



